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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
B

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Great Wall Pan Asia
Holdings Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to
report that we continued to successfully execute our strategic
objectives in year 2017.

Financial Results

During the year under review, the Group recorded a total revenue
of approximately HK$123.0 million and the consolidated net
profit attributable to shareholders of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017 was approximately HK$249.2 million,
which included approximately HK$221.0 million fair value gain
on investment properties. Carving out this exceptional item, the
consolidated net profit attributable to shareholders for the year
ended 31 December 2017 amounted to approximately HK$28.2
million, representing an increase of 97.8% as compared with
HK$14.2 million in 2016. The increase in net profit was mainly
due to the revenue growth from financial services segment
generated during the year compared with corresponding period.

*  For identification purpose only
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Property Investment

During the year 2017, the Group’s property investment segment
continued to contribute stable rental income and profit to the
Group by maintaining satisfactory occupancy rates of and income
from the four investment properties in Hong Kong, comprising of
certain floors of the Bank of America Tower in Admiralty, Yue King
Building in Causeway Bay, Ko Fai Industrial Building in Yau Tong
and Sea View Estate in North Point. These investment properties
recorded an aggregate property revaluation gain of HK$221.0
million during the year, which was benefited from the robust
property market in Hong Kong.

The Group has made substantial steps in improving its existing
positions within the property industry in Hong Kong by investing,
through a joint venture, in a diversified retail portfolio in Hong
Kong. The portfolio comprises a number of strategically-located
commercial properties and shopping centres, plazas
and carparks across Hong Kong that sit in the heart of
densely-populated communities and in close proximity to Mass
Transit Railway stations. This transaction marks a new milestone
for the Group in gaining sizeable retail presence in Hong Kong.
Through such investment, the Group also enjoys an exclusive
right to acquire one of the commercial properties in the portfolio,
and such possible acquisition, if materialised, will enable the
Group to further expand its investment property business,
thereby creating additional source of revenue and enhancing its
profitability.

With the recent record high prices on prime Hong Kong
commercial property sites, our Hong Kong investment property
portfolio will continue to benefit from this upward trend.
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Integrated Financial Services

In 2017, the Group has accomplished its strategic objective of
transforming the Group into a conglomerate with businesses of
property investment and integrated financial services through
acquisition of two licensed corporations, which are licensed
to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities) (restricted by certain
conditions), Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”) in Hong Kong, with
well-established platform of Qualified Foreign Limited Partners
under the Shen Zhen Qian Hai’s pilot scheme in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

To further cope with the development strategies of expanding
the Group’s business scope into the financial services in Hong
Kong, Great Wall Pan Asia Securities Limited, a wholly-subsidiary
of the Company, has submitted application to the Securities
and Futures Commission (“SFC”) for a licence to carry out Type
1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity under the SFO, which
will be principally engaged in securities brokerage and margin
finance business after such license is granted by the SFC.
Further announcement to update the shareholders on the status
of the application for the licence will be made by the Company in
due course.

These developments are in line with the Group’s strategic plan
and constitute an important step towards the diversification of
its business to provision of financial services. It is proven that
these developments have provided a strong foothold for the
Group to extend its business presence in the financial services
industry and further broaden its source of income.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Looking forward, leveraging on Types 1, 4, 6 and 9 licences under
the SFO and the money lenders licence that the Group possess,
the Group will fully promote the interconnection between its
financing and investment business and licensed business,
and achieve synergic development of the three major licensed
business platforms, namely “securities”, “corporate finance” and
“asset management”.

Moreover, the Group will actively seize the investment
opportunities in expanding its scope of businesses and exploring
potential investment projects by continuously leveraging on
the brand of China Great Wall Asset Management Co., Ltd. (a
financial conglomerate engaged in a broad range of integrated
financial services) (“GWAMCC”). With the support and experience
of the Group’s controlling shareholder, the Board and the
management of the Company are committed to expanding
prudently and thoroughly the Group’s property investment and
financial services businesses to generate favourable investment
returns to our shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express the Board’s sincere
gratitude to all our shareholders, investors, customers and
business partners for their continuous support and to express
my appreciation to my fellow Directors, management and all
the staff of the Company, who have contributed substantially
to our success, for their hard work, dedication and contribution
throughout the year.

Mr. Ou Peng
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

26 March 2018
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ERRERE N

Executive Directors

Mr. Ou Peng, aged 45, has been our executive Director since 5
November 2016, and the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company since 9 November 2016. He is
also the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company
since 5 November 2016. Mr. Ou is currently also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ou holds a Master
degree in Economics from Jinan University. From February 2000
to May 2010, he worked in the Guangzhou office of China Great
Wall Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“GW Guangzhou Office”),
and served as senior manager of the business development
department of GW Guangzhou Office from June 2009 to May
2010. From June 2010, Mr. Ou has worked in China Great Wall
AMC (International) Holdings Company Limited (“Great Wall
International”), and had served as chief risk officer. Mr. Ou
held the positions of deputy general manager of Great Wall
International from December 2013 to February 2015, director
of Great Wall International since January 2015 and general
manager of Great Wall International since February 2015. Mr.
Ou is currently a vice chairman of both the Chinese Financial
Association of Hong Kong and The Listed Companies Council of
the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association.

Mr. Meng Xuefeng, aged 47, has been an executive Director
and a member of the remuneration committee of the Company
since 5 November 2016, and a Deputy Chief Executive Officer
since 22 March 2017. Mr. Meng is currently also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Meng holds a Master
degree in economics from Jinan University. From 2000 to June
2006, Mr. Meng worked in GW Guangzhou Office, and served
as deputy director of the business development department of
GW Guangzhou Office from May 2005 to June 2006. From June
2006 to July 2010, Mr. Meng served as director of Guangdong
Zhongchangxin Investment Management Co., Ltd.* (B B F &
EREEEBRAR). From July 2010 to February 2012, Mr.
Meng held the posmon of senior deputy manager and senior
manager of the assets operation department of GW Guangzhou
Office. From February 2012 to March 2015, Mr. Meng served as
senior manager of the intermediary business department of GW
Guangzhou Office, where he also once acted as senior manager
of the second intermediary business department. From March
2015 to July 2017, Mr. Meng served as senior manager of Great
Wall International and has served as deputy general manager of
Great Wall International since July 2017.

* For identification purpose only
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Huang Hu, aged 54, was born in Ledong County, Hainan
Province, and graduated from postgraduate course. He has
engaged in finance-related work since August 1983, and
obtained the title of senior economist in 1998. He holds a Master
degree in Business Administration from Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business, and has investigated and studied asset
management and investment banking business in the United
States of America, United Kingdom, Germany and Japan. He
has been a non-executive Director and a member of the audit
committee of the Company since 5 November 2016. From August
1983 to October 1995, Mr. Huang served as deputy division
chief, division chief of human resources department, assistant
to director and deputy director of human resources department
(in charge of comprehensive work) in Guangdong branch of
Agricultural Bank of China (“ABChina”). From October 1995 to
October 1996, he served as deputy governor and Party member
in Guangdong Province Jiangmen branch of ABChina, and
governor of Jiangmen Waihai sub-branch. From October 1996
to June 1998, he served as Party member in Guangzhou branch
and Party secretary in Guangzhou Suixi sub-branch of ABChina.
From June 1998 to December 1999, he served as Party secretary
to the governor in Guangdong Province Shaoguan branch. From
December 1999 to January 2007, he served as deputy general
manager, Party member and secretary of the Commission for
discipline inspection of GW Guangzhou Office. From January
2007 to January 2014, Mr. Huang served as general manager
and Party secretary of the Haikou office of China Great Wall
Asset Management Co., Ltd. Since January 2014, Mr. Huang has
served as supervisor and chief supervisor of Great Wall Financing
Assurance Co., Ltd.* (RIEE R AR 2 7)), while also holding
the positions of supervisor and vice chairman of the supervisory
committee of Great Wall Xinsheng Trust Co., Ltd. (RIFTEEITHE
FREEAF]). Since May 2015, he has served as director of Great
Wall Guofu Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (R¥kEl'E & %GR 2 7). Since
June 2015, he has served as director of Great Wall International.

* For identification purpose only
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Ms. Lv Jia, aged 43, has been our non-executive Director since 5
November 2016. Ms. Lv holds a Master degree in Management
from Beijing Technology and Business University. From
December 2007 to January 2011, Ms. Lv served as chief financial
officer of Golden Credit Rating International Co., Ltd. (R A&
= ARG AR A R]). From January 2011 to December 2011,
she served as vice president and chief financial officer of Golden
Credit Rating International Co., Ltd. (R 5 & R EAFEE
FR 2 \]). From December 2011 to June 2013, Ms. Lv worked as
general manager assistant in the subsidiaries management
department (formerly known as division synergy department)
of China Great Wall Asset Management Co., Ltd., where she has
remained as deputy general manager of the department since
June 2013.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Song Ming, aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, chairman of the remuneration committee, a
member of the audit committee and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company on 5 November 2016. Dr. Song
graduated from Zhejiang University in July 1982 with a bachelor
degree in applied mathematics. Dr. Song obtained his master
degree in applied mathematics from Huazhong University of
Science and Technology (formerly known as Huazhong Institute
of Technology), and was awarded a doctorate by Ohio State
University. He has over 25 years of experience in the research of
bank regulation and management, financial market, derivatives
and macroeconomics. Dr. Song was employed by the school
of economics and finance of the University of Hong Kong since
1997 and is currently a professor at the university. Between 1991
and 1997, Dr. Song was the associate professor and assistant
professor at the department of economics, Cleveland State
University. Dr. Song is currently the director of Centre for China
Financial Research and the associate director of the Institute for
China and Global Development at the University of Hong Kong,
and the vice chairman of the Chinese Financial Association
of Hong Kong. Dr. Song has been heavily involved in various
academic conferences, researches and consultation projects.
Dr. Song is currently an independent non-executive director of
Wuzhou International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1369), The
United Laboratories International Holdings Limited (stock code:
3933) and Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1788), all of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. In addition, Dr. Song is also an independent director
of Tande Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600665), a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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Dr. Sun Mingchun, aged 47, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, a member of the remuneration
committee and a member of the nomination committee of the
Company on 5 November 2016. He has served as the chairman
and chief investment officer of Deepwater Capital Limited since
October 2014. Prior to joining Deepwater Capital Limited, Dr. Sun
held the positions as the senior partner and chief economist at
China Broad Capital Co., Limited, the managing director, head
of China research and chief Greater China economist at Daiwa
Capital Markets Hong Kong Limited, the chief China economist,
head of China equity research and managing director at
Nomura International (Hong Kong) Limited and the senior China
economist, vice president at Lehman Brothers Asia Limited.
During the period from July 1993 to August 1999, Dr. Sun
was also an economist of the State Administration of Foreign
Exchange of the PRC. Dr. Sun is currently the vice chairman of
the Chinese Financial Association of Hong Kong and a member
of the China Finance 40 Forum. He is also a guest professor of
the Finance EMBA program of Shanghai Advanced Institute of
Finance, the School of Economics of Fudan University and the
PBC School of Finance of Tsinghua University, and the honorary
institute fellow of The Asia-Pacific Institute of Business of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Dr. Sun received a bachelor's
degree in international economics from Fudan University in
July 1993. He also obtained a master's degree in engineering
economic systems and operations research and a doctoral
degree in management science and engineering from Stanford
University in June 2001 and June 2006, respectively. Dr. Sunis an
independent non-executive director of HJ Capital (International)
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 982, formerly known as
iOne Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Woo Chin Wan, aged 63, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and the chairman of the audit committee
of the Company on 5 November 2016. He is a retired partner of
Ernst & Young (“EY”). Before his retirement in June 2015, he had
held various senior positions with EY in the Greater China area.
He was a director and the general manager of Ernst & Young Hua
Ming CPA, a member of EY's Greater China Leadership Team,
and the managing partner of EY's Greater China Operations. He
has more than 30 years of professional experience, specializing
in audit, corporate restructuring, IPO, risk management, and
mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Woo is a Canadian Chartered
Accountant, and a Hong Kong Certified Public Accountant. Mr.
Woo is currently an independent non-executive director of Dah
Chong Hong Holdings Limited (stock code: 1828) and Bank of
Communications Co., Ltd. (stock code: 3328), both are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Senior Management

Ms. Li Li Hua, aged 55, was appointed as the Deputy General
Manager of the Company with effect from 21 September 2017.
Prior to joining our Company, she was an executive director
of Shanghai Zendai Property Limited (“Shanghai Zendai”), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 755), during 18 August 2014 to 20 September 2017.
From March 2008 to June 2015, she held various positions in
Shanghai Zendai, including manager of finance department,
general manager of the Hong Kong region, vice president and
chief executive officer and her principal duties were corporate
governance, expansion of overseas business, financial
management, financing arrangement and public relations
management. Ms. Li was an on-the-job postgraduate majoring
in money and banking in the finance division of the Graduate
School of Renmin University of China. Ms. Li has over 20 years
of experience in the investment and management of securities
investment and capital markets. She served as chief economist
of Xiangcai Securities Co., Ltd. and general manager of its
southern headquarters, as well as deputy chief economist and
general manager of the finance department of Hainan Securities
Company Limited.
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Mr. Wang Han, aged 37, was appointed as the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company with effect from 22 March 2017. Mr. Wang
has extensive experience in financial analysis, valuation analysis
and audit. He obtained his bachelor degree majoring in finance
from the business school of The University of Auckland in New
Zealand in 2004 and master degree of business administration
from City University of Seattle in the United States of America in
2014. He is also a Certified Public Accountant and a member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. From 2012
to 2015, Mr. Wang worked in the debt valuation department of
Great Wall Golden Bridge Financial Consulting Co., Ltd. He acts
as the head of finance department of Great Wall International
since 2015. Prior to 2012, he worked as Assistant to chief
financial officer of Carlton Party Hire in New Zealand, auditor of
Ernst & Young Hua Ming and worked in the research department
of ICBC Credit Suisse Asset Management Co., Ltd.

Company Secretary

Ms. Zheng Yuanyuan, aged 39, was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company with effect from 31 October 2016 and
also acts as head of the legal department of the Company from
the same date. Ms. Zheng has extensive experience in handling
large investment and transaction projects. She passed the
National Judicial Examination of the PRC and obtained the Legal
Profession Qualification Certificate in 2002. She acquired bar
qualification in the New York State of the United States in 2008
and qualified as a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong in 2015. After
obtaining a Master degree in Common Law from the University of
Pennsylvania in the United States, Ms. Zheng worked in the Hong
Kong office of Baker & McKenzie from 2007 to 2015, and served
as special counsel prior to her resignation. Since December 2015,
Ms. Zheng has served as co-head of the legal department of
Great Wall International.
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Operating Results of The Group

The Group’s consolidated operating results for the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

AEBREEE
AEEHEZE-_ZE—+tFR_FT—R"F+-A=
T—HIEFEHEAEEERNT

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t+-HLEE

(HK$ millions, except percentages and (BBEL BOLK 2017 2016 % Change
per share amounts) FhemkIN —E—+tF ZERF EHANLL
(Restated)
(#&E5))

Continuing operations HEREXY
Revenue Wz 123.0 917 34%
Production costs R (5.2) (5.0) 4%
Rental and utilities e Mk (12.2) (5.0) *x
Other operating expenses HAeE % (59.5) (48.3) 23%
Operating costs before depreciationand ~ FRHT & K i#sE

amortisation HT N (76.9) (58.3) 32%
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH (1.7) (1.9) (11%)
Adjusted operating profit* RRRLCERR bbb 315 41%
Other income HAWA 0.3 0.7 (57%)
Fair value gain on investment properties 1 & % A FEWK 221.0 118.1 87%
Operating profit RERF 265.7 160.3 77%
Net finance (cost)/income B (RA) /WA T8 (3.8) 1.0 o
Share of losses of associates FE(R B = AR E1E (0.4) (1.3) (69%)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAEHE s ERMEERR

financial asset - 27.1 *x
Gain on disposal of asset held for sale HEREFEEERE - 30.1 *o
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMB R A - 104.2 *o
Income tax expense FTSHRAY (12.3) (3.6) *x
Profit for the year from continuing FEREXB 2 2FRA

operations 249.2 307.8 (19%)
Discontinued operations BRIEREER
Loss for the year from BRI EEB 2 2F R

discontinued operations - (13.0) *x
Gain on disposal of discontinued HEBLR e B

operations - 1,421.7 *x
Profit for the year from discontinued BRIREER 22 FREF

operations - 1,408.7 *x
Profit for the year 2FEER 249.2 1,716.5 (85%)
Non-controlling interests — discontinued ~ JE{% I 1% —

operations BRI T - (1.1 *x
Profit attributable to shareholders R RPEAL B R 249.2 1,715.4 (85%)
Earnings per share (HK cents) BREF (B4L) 15.9 109.5 (85%)

A

Adjusted operating profit is defined as operating profit before other
income and fair value gain on investment properties

** Represents a change in excess of 100%
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Profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31
December 2017 was HK$249.2 million, which included HK$221.0
million fair value gain on investment properties. Comparatively,
profit attributable to shareholders for corresponding year was
HK$1,715.4 million, which included HK$1,421.7 million gain on
disposal of media business, HK$118.1 million fair value gain
on investment properties, HK$27.1 million gain on disposal
of available-for-sale financial asset, HK$30.1 million gain on
disposal of asset held for sale and HK$104.2 million gain on
disposal of a subsidiary. Carving out these exceptional items,
the net profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31
December 2017 was HK$28.2 million, representing an increase
of 98.6% as compared with HK$14.2 million in 2016. The
increase in net profit was mainly due to the revenue growth from
financial service sector generated during the year compared with
corresponding period, though the staff cost increased as a result
of the expansion of business.

Revenue
The consolidated revenue for the years ended 31 December

2017 and 2016 by business segments and for the Group were as
follows:

BE_ZT—tHF+-_A=T—RHLFERRE
{5733$|J7%249 2EERET HThBREREME
NP EWE221.088ETT - LBRBARFE -
REREEENR1,715.48 88T - EheELY
EHBEBWER,421.7E8ET WEMER

FERKRZFIISNEEET REAIHREEZS
MEBEEWNZ27.1EES T LEREGFEEE
W30 TEBBTAMEE — KB AR WS

104.2B 88T - ME LitE%IER - HE
TR+ F+ A=+ HIEFEREEGF
BFA282BEBT R_Z

—NEMI4.28H
EABTTIERI.6% - BMEB TKAHRESIRE

SRIMIBAN - FEMBNDEZHNRFREE
Z 2 BRG D M R AL G PTE R -

W 2

BE_TtHER-_F-R"F+A=+—H
HFE - ?ﬁ%fx”%&’il% B iR ks
T

]]

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2017 2016 % Change
(HK$ millions, except percentages) (B&BL BOLLBRIN) —E—+tHF —T—RF 8 FEHED
(Restated)
(&&&E7)
Continuing operations BERERE
Property investment MERE 61.3 57.8 6%
Financial services & BLARTS 61.7 345 79%
Inter-segment revenue 7 BRI ES - (0.6) *x
Total revenue ey ksl 123.0 91.7 34%

** Represents a change in excess of 100%

* RREEIBIB100%
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Financial Review by Operating Segments EES 2O

Upon completion of the acquisition of two licensed corporations ~ BEZE A& IEAEW%WHW%W?%H?% VN
by the Group during the year, the Group's reportable and SEZAIZ2HREED AT :
operating segments are as follows:

(a) property investment segment comprises the investment ) MEREDHBEERERAEESKAE S
in commercial and industrial premises for rental income CEERTEYDE K
potential; and

(b) financial services segment comprises provision of asset (b) TRURBE DA BIEFRHEEEETIE M ER

management and corporate finance services (regulated Bk (FEEE1 46 EEEBHZ
activities under SFC Types 1, 4, 6, 9 licenses) and direct HREERE)  UEK—BESZEERE -

investment in a fund.
Property Investment NERE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+tZA=tT—HLEE

2017 2016 % Change

(HK$ millions, except percentages)  (B&EITT * BALLERIN —E—tHF —E—RF FHEOL
Revenue (including inter-segment W (B HBE%E)

revenue”™) 61.3 57.8 6%
Adjusted EBITDA" R AR A - BE -

e K iH 2 BRI 49.5 23.2 113%

Adjusted operating profit IR R AT 48.2 21.7 122%

Segment profit* BRI 261.2 258.3 1%

** There is no inter-segment revenue for 2017 and inter-segment ~ ** —tETESPEWE R T —RFEHIH

revenue for 2016 is HK$0.6 million. F'EJMZ s R0.6EBBTT °

~ Adjusted EBITDA is defined as earnings from continuing operations ~ * & FHERRFHAE « TIE - TE R#EHE 2 275

before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation, other income, AER/KE %#ZE%«A%%Z;EJ%M THIE
fair value gain on investment properties and gain from disposal of ER#E EMRARKEEDELFEK
Coastline International Limited in 2016. w2 B RN ZE —NF R A H ECoastline

International Limited Z Y35 o

# Including fair value gains on investment properties of HK$221.0 * BEKREVEAFEKZ221.0888T (—F
million for 2017 and HK$118.1 million for 2016. —+F) RNBNAEBIT (ZE—RF) -
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Revenue of property investment segment increased by around
6% on a year-to-year basis, as higher income from rental was
derived from the investment properties at Bank of America Tower
and Ko Fai Industrial Building due to the increase in monthly
rental incomes upon renewal of rental agreements with the
existing tenants.

Year 2017 witnessed the recovery of the profit margin for the
properties compared with year 2016 as the adjusted EBITDA and
operating profit improved. The low profit margin in year 2016 was
mainly due to one-off transaction expenses in year 2016.

The Group’s investment property portfolio comprises certain
floors of the Bank of America Tower, Yue King Building, Ko Fai
Industrial Building and Sea View Estate. Yue King Building was
reclassified as investment property upon completion of the
disposal of media business in 2016.

Revaluation gain on investment properties for 2017 was
HK$221 million, compared with HK$118.1 million for 2016. The
revaluation gain was mainly due to the contributions from the
investment properties at the Bank of America Tower for around
HK$132 million and at Yue King Building for around HK$45
million.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at 31 December
2017 by independent professionally qualified valuers, Cushman
& Wakefield Limited, who hold a recognised relevant professional
qualification and have recent experience in the locations and
segments of the investment properties valued. For all investment
properties, their current use equates to the highest and best
use. The revaluation gains or losses are shown as “Fair value
gain or loss on investment properties” in the income statement.
Fair values of the office buildings and industrial properties are
derived using the income capitalization approach. There were no
changes to the valuation techniques during the year.
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Financial Services S WRFE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—HLEE

2017 2016 % Change
(HK$ million, except percentages) (B8BBL - BOLBRIN —E2—+tF ZE—RF BHEOL
(restated)
(&2E7)
Revenue e 61.6 34.5 79%
Adjusted EBITDA® KERRERARETRE - B -
HrEe R sH 2 AN 23.2 17.4 33%
Adjusted operating profit KRR 2 ) 22.8 17.0 34%
Segment profit D EBET 18.5 13.2 40%

" Adjusted EBITDA is defined as earnings before interest, tax, * &KFABOKREFE  HE FELEE AR
depreciation and amortisation, and other income. REBKRTFE « BTE - 8 M R U
Ao

The revenue derived from asset management services is around REZEEEEREMHWEL AB.0BEBE T
HK$35.9 million (2016: HK$22.2 million or a 62% increase) ZERF I 2BEBIT  BIBAEG2%)
and the corporate finance services fees recorded around TMATEERBHN T EMEREEBRALHA2BT7TESE
HK$25.7 million (2016: HK$12.3 million or a 108% increase). BIL (ZE—NF:123B BB BIEA
The increase of the financial service income was mainly 108%) > @R AIRFGWAE M ETE RN AEE
attributable to the expansion and focus of the financial service @—H —ZE—+FRIEATE TR EBRIEER -
business by the Group since year 2017, though the profit margin  BEAEBEREEFAEZEEATREE TRA
decreased slightly compared with corresponding period as N E i FHREH & @A AL AN - # M B A R
more professional expertise were hired to join the Group, which &G RIERELHUR > ©

increased the staff cost and other operational costs related.

Liquidity and Capital Resources RBEEREARKR

For the year ended 31 December

BE+ZA=1T—HLEE

2017 2016 % Change
(HK$ millions, except percentages) (A&HBIT ADLLBIN) —Z2—+tF —ZT—RHF FHEOIL
(Restated)
(#£&3%1))
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTHE R 118.6 129.5 (8%)
Shareholders’ funds R E S 1,890.1 1,679.0 13%
Current ratio® MED L 4.31 4.35 (1%)
Gearing ratio BEAMFLE 411% Nil 4 N/A &

#  To avoid fluctuation and distortion of the ratio, the deposit paid of * RERLFEBRRE  FFERBLEE B
approximately HK$1,435 million is excluded when calculating the R EMZEEH1 43585 TT -
current ratio.
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The Group’s cash and bank balances are held predominantly
in Hong Kong dollars. The Group has no significant exposure
to foreign exchange fluctuations. The Group has maintained a
strong cash position and expects its cash and cash equivalents,
and cash generated from operations to be adequate to meeting
its working capital requirements.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$118.6 million, as compared to
HK$129.5 million as at 31 December 2016. The Group’s gearing
ratio as at 31 December 2017 was 41.1% (as at 31 December
2016: Nil), being calculated as total debts (which includes the
loan from an intermediate holding company) less cash and
bank balances, over the Company’s total equity. The increased
borrowings are attributable to the loan from an intermediate
holding Company amounted to HK$1,435.7 million for the
expansion of the Group’s businesses. As at 31 December 2017,
the Group had outstanding principal of unsecured shareholder
loans of HK$1,435.7 million (as at 31 December 2016: Nil). The
Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions.

For the SFC licensed corporations under the Group, the Group
has ensured that each of the licensed corporations maintains
a liquidity level adequate to support the level of activities
with a sufficient buffer to accommodate increases in liquidity
requirements arising from potential increases in the level
of business activities. During the year 2017, all the licensed
subsidiaries have complied with the liquidity requirements under
the Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules.

Operating Activities

Net cash generated from operating activities for the year ended
31 December 2017 was HK$33.8 million, compared with net
cash used in operating activities of HK$10.0 million in 2016. The
increase in operating cash flows was due to higher revenue in the
operations generated during the year.
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Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the year was HK$1,480.9
million, compared with the net cash generated of HK$3,213.3
million in 2016. The cash outflow resulted mainly from the cash
used of HK$39.6 million in relation to the acquisition of two
licensed corporations and HK$1,435.7 million in relation to the
proposed investment in joint venture in 2017, compared with the
cash generated of HK$2,038.0 million in relation to the disposal
of media business and HK$974.6 million in relation to the
disposal of Coastline International Limited, and sales proceeds
of the Group's available-for-sale financial assets of HK$156.0
million in 2016.

Capital expenditure for the year was HK$4.5 million, compared
with HK$11.0 million in 2016. Substantially, the capital
expenditure was incurred in connection with the Company's
current office.

Financing Activities

Net cash generated from financing activities was HK$1,435.7
million, compared with the net cash used of HK$3,695.9 million in
2016. During the year, HK$1,435.7 million loan was received from
the intermediate holding company of the Company, compared
with HK$3,694.0 million dividend paid to the Company’s
shareholders in 2016.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 20 employees.
As the Group’s businesses continue to grow, its remuneration
philosophy is designed to provide its employees with the
opportunity to excel and grow, while aligning with our business
strategies and values.
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The Group’s remuneration and benefit policies, which are
structured in accordance to market terms and statutory
requirements, aim to recognise employees with outstanding
performance, motivate and reward employees in order to achieve
its business performance targets, retain and attract key talents
and ensure alignment with the interests of our businesses, and
thereby enhancing shareholder value. In addition, other staff
benefits such as medical insurance, medical check-up scheme,
mandatory provident fund scheme and rental reimbursement
scheme are offered to eligible employees.

The Group’s employee recruitment and promotion are primarily
based on individuals’ merits, relevant experiences, development
potentials for the positions offered and performance.

OUTLOOK

With the earnest efforts of the Group's management and each
operation team, the Group focused on the development of its
existing businesses and has achieved considerable progress in
2017 with remarkable growth in revenue and operating profit,
which lays a solid foundation for our future development.

Looking ahead, in the complicated and constantly changing
macro-economic environment with fierce competition, the Group
aims to deliver steady business growth and strive for success.
While committing to achieve continuous growth in the business
scale and scope by promoting the synergy and interconnection
between its investment business and licensed businesses, the
Group will continue to identify suitable investment and business
development opportunities prudently and thoroughly, to explore
potential projects and to acquire good quality assets, so as to
ensure the delivery of continuing profitability while maintaining
our strong cash position.

The Board believes that, with extensive market experience, clear
strategic vision and proven execution capabilities, the Group will
continue to enhance its competitiveness and profitability, thereby
generating favourable investment returns to our shareholders.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and the Company’s
management are committed to upholding the Group’s obligations
to shareholders. We regard the promotion and protection of
shareholders’ interests as one of our priorities and keys to
success.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards
are essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard
the interests of shareholders and enhance corporate value,
formulate its business strategies and policies, and enhance its
transparency and accountability.

The Group has put in place sound corporate governance practices
to ensure it adheres to high ethical and business standards.
The key test of corporate governance practices is if they align
the interests of management with those of shareholders to
adequately protect and promote shareholders’ interests. The
Group is committed to the continuous improvement of corporate
governance practices to support the performance of our
business and enable effective oversight. The Group constantly
reviews these guidelines and policies and implements new ones
to ensure they remain relevant and practical in today’s fast
changing business environment and market expectations.

The Group has adopted and applied the applicable principles and
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Corporate Governance Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”)
as its corporate governance practices. The Group also adheres
to certain recommended best practices set out in the Corporate
Governance Code insofar as they are relevant and practicable.

The Board is of the view that, throughout the year ended 31
December 2017, the Company has complied with the principles
and code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code,
save for deviation from code provision A.2.1 as explained in this
report.
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The Group believes that its current corporate governance
practices, which combine governance framework and practices
that develop over time and new practices set out in the Corporate
Governance Code, provide the Group with a sound and sensible
framework for balancing the business of the Group and the
interests of its shareholders. The Group will continue to evaluate
its corporate governance practices in light of its business needs,
regulatory changes and new corporate governance philosophies.

Set out below are our current framework of governance and
explanations about how the provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code have been applied.

The Board of Directors

The Board recognises its responsibility to represent the
interests of shareholders. As at the date of this Annual Report,
the Board comprises seven Directors: two Executive Directors
and five Non-executive Directors (including three Independent
Non-executive Directors). Independent Non-executive Directors
represent more than one-third of the Board.

The Directors of the Company during the year and as at the date
of this Annual Report are:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Ou Peng (Chairman)
Mr. Meng Xuefeng

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Huang Hu
Ms. Lv Jia

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. Song Ming

Dr. Sun Mingchun

Mr. Woo Chin Wan

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family

or other material/relevant relationship) among members of the
Board. The biographical details of all the Directors and the senior
management are set out on pages 14 to 19 of this Annual Report.
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The Board’s main responsibility and purpose is to deliver the
long-term success of the Group and to create long-term value
for its shareholders by providing strategic and entrepreneurial
leadership, and by exercising prudent oversight and control over
the Company. As the business continues to grow, the Board
needs to ensure that the Company has sufficient resources —
both funding and talent - to deliver success. The Board also
recognises the need for effective engagement by the Company
with its key stakeholders, including all its investors.

Each Director brings a wide range and years of business
experience to the Board to meet our long-term objectives.
The Directors’ combined knowledge, expertise and experience
are extremely valuable in overseeing the Group’s business
operations.

The Board sets the strategic direction and oversees the
performance of the Group’s business and management. The
principal matters the Board is responsible for include:

- approval of strategic direction, policies and objectives

« review and approval of business plans and budgets

« monitoring operational and financial performance

« review and approval of annual and interim results

« review and approval of annual and interim reports as well as
the related financial statements

+ Recommendation of final dividend, and declaration of interim
dividend and where appropriate, special dividends

- appointment of auditors

« review and approval of significant acquisitions and disposals
and major financings, borrowings and guarantees

« approval of material contracts

« overseeing the risk management and internal control
systems and ensuring their effectiveness

In addition, the Board discusses major operating issues,
evaluates opportunities and business risks. Decisions and
conduct of matters other than those specifically reserved to
the Board are delegated to the Management whilst structured
monthly updates on the Company’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient details are provided to the Directors to
enable them to discharge their duties.

32 |

EECAARERBEECEEE  RARA
EOREMNER  UBETEXZEERER -
ABAEEERRENKY  BREAERERE
B BEAAAEBHELR  EFSHERER
RABEESRAST T EEER EWERNAE
BRI c EFEEAR - ARRINEEBIER
EREETANEIEROHERFIELLD -

EEFVAEAZFRERZEHERADA LN

AR W ABTRGEZ M TR
REEGR HEBAREZEHLEAEA
ok o

EERANHTRBE S PEBAEE
BRERRE EFRAENISEEAEN
T8 -

o HOEREEM RS R EEZ

- EBRRAEERTEIRERES

. EEREBHRKRIR

- EBHRRBEFEXERTEEE

- BRERIEFERSERPEHRE - AR
BB T 3%

- BERERAERE
(WE ) BRI R

. REZRHE

. BHRHEERKBRNESE  UEE
ZmE -  BEREREE

. HEEREYD

- EBRREERASEERFUBREE
g

N ERHH RS

N BEEENIRENEEEH  FHEEE
REBRR BREEVEHEFTSFELRER

BREZEHI HEEHRXHEEERE -
WEARMEFREARAFERE - EENRNR

LREBRENSAAEBOSHER AR
NEREFEETRENRE

GREAT WALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017



iiiiiiiia

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RS

The Board reviews the arrangements between the responsibilities
of the Board and the matters delegated to the Management
periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate to the need of
the Group and its business.

Corporate Governance and Code of Conduct

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in code provision D.3.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code and adopted a revised Terms of
Reference of the Board on Corporate Governance Functions in
March 2017, including:

« develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance

+ review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management

« review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

« develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors

« review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report as specified under the Listing Rules

Key corporate governance matters performed by the Board
during the year were:

« review of the Company’s compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements

« review of the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code

« review of the effectiveness of the internal control system

« proposal on the re-appointment of the Company’s external
auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers

«  Appointment of senior management

- review and adoption of certain updated internal policies and
Terms of Reference of Board Committees

« approval of connected transactions and continuing
connected transaction

« approval of material transactions
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In March 2017, the Group had adopted an updated
Whistleblowing Policy on malpractice reporting and investigation
setting out specific procedures facilitating whistle-blowing
reports and investigation thereof.

The Company is also committed to upholding sound corporate
governance practices and complying with its obligations to
disclose inside information under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance as well as the Listing Rules. In March 2017, the
Company had adopted an updated Policy on Disclosure of
Inside Information setting out specific policies and procedures
facilitating the Company’s compliance with these obligations.

Board Proceedings

The Board holds four regular meetings annually as a minimum,
usually quarterly, and also meets at such other times as
necessary. The Company generally gives notice and draft agenda
of regular Board and Committees meetings at least 14 days in
advance. For other Board and Committees meetings, notice is
generally given pursuant to the Company’s Bye-Laws and the
respective Terms of Reference of the Committees.

Agenda of Board meetings are prepared by the Company
Secretary in consultation with the Chairman, and based on a
forward calendar which helps ensure that all relevant matters
for the year ahead are considered by the Board in a timely
manner. All Directors are encouraged to contribute to the
agenda setting process. The Board is provided with adequate,
timely and reliable information about the Group’s business and
developments before each Board meeting at which the Directors
actively participate and hold informed discussions. All Directors
are asked to review and comment on the Board minutes within a
reasonable time after the meetings to maintain accurate records
of Board discussions and decisions.
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During the year, the Board held seven Board meetings. The
attendance of each Director at Board and Committee meetings,
and the annual general meeting and special general meetings is
detailed in the table below.

FA - EFGERTLRES
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& oy 22

= = %%%
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Attendance/No. of Meeting(s)

HERE/ &HEA

Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Annual Special

Board  Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee General General

Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting

Ez2 ENZEE HMZEE RRezZEg RREF RER4H

Name of Director BEp? E R EE EE b A&

Mr.Ou Peng -yt 717 -/- -/- 1 1/1 1

Mr. Meng Xuefeng FEl s 717 -/- 1 -/- 1N 1

Mr. Huang Hu EVip e 717 212 -/- -/- 11 171

Ms. LvJia aERL 717 -/- -/- -/- i 0/1

Dr. Song Ming REL 6/7 2/2 n "N "N 01

Dr. Sun Mingchun RREEL 0 -/- 11 11 11 171

Mr. Woo Chin Wan HRERE 6/7 2/2 /- -/~ 1/1 1/1
All the Directors have access to the advice and services of ZBEZEFHINEARMEZER LR - A

the Company Secretary to ensure all board procedures and
all applicable laws, rules and regulations are complied with.
The Directors update the Board regarding offices held in
public companies and organisations, and other significant
commitments once every half year. There are also procedures for
the Directors to obtain independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense.

Apart from regular Board meetings, Mr. Ou Peng, the Chairman of
the Board, also held a meeting with the non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) without the
presence of the other executive Director during the year 2017
pursuant to code provision A.2.7.

Board Diversity Policy

The Group recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of the Company’s
performance.

The Nomination Committee of the Board is primarily responsible
for leading the process for Board appointments and for
identifying and nominating, for approval by the Board, suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board. The
benefits of diversity continue to influence the succession
planning.
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On selection of candidates for directorship of the Company, the
Nomination Committee makes reference to the updated board
diversity policy of the Company adopted in March 2017 (“Board
Diversity Policy”). A range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional and industry experience, skills, knowledge and time
commitments will be considered on selection of such candidates
to become members of the Board. All Board appointments will be
based on merits and contribution that the selected individuals
will bring to the Board. The Company’s own business model and
specific needs will also be taken into consideration. External
recruitment professionals might be engaged to carry out the
selection and recruitment process when necessary.

In conducting the annual review of the effectiveness of the
Board, the Nomination Committee will consider the balance
of talents, skills, experience and background and the diversity
representation of the Board. The Nomination Committee will
review annually all measurable objectives for achieving diversity
on the Board and recommend them to the Board for adoption.
The Nomination Committee will report annually on the process it
has used in relation to Board appointments.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Board confirms the term of appointment and functions of
all non-executive Directors and Board Committee members with
formal letters of appointment.

Directors who are appointed to fill vacancies or as an addition to
the Board are subject to re-election at the next following general
meeting of the Company after his or her appointment. In addition,
every Director, including every non-executive Director, shall retire
from office no later than the third annual general meeting after
he/she was last elected or re-elected. One-third of the Directors
for the time being, or if their number is not three or a multiple
of three, then a number not less than one-third, are required to
retire by rotation from office at every annual general meeting
under the Company’s Bye-Laws. A retiring Director is eligible for
re-election.

The Company maintains procedures for Shareholders to propose

a person for election as a director of the Company. The details of
these procedures are published on the Company’s website.
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Directors’ Remuneration

The Directors’ fees and all other reimbursements and
emoluments (if any) paid or payable to the Directors during the
year are set out, on an individual and named basis, in Note 17 to
the financial statements of this Annual Report on pages 166 to
174.

The remuneration policy of the Group is set out on pages 26 and
27 of this Annual Report.

Compliance with the Model Code and the Company’s
Guidelines

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s
code of conduct for securities transactions by its Directors.
Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, all Directors have
confirmed their compliance with the required standards set out
in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2017
and up to the date of this Annual Report.

The Company has adopted written guidelines (the “Company’s
Guidelines”), which are equally stringent as the Model Code, in
respect of securities transactions by relevant employees of the
Company who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information of the Company pursuant to code provision A.6.4 of
the Corporate Governance Code. No incident of non-compliance
against the Model Code or the Company’s Guidelines by the
Company’s relevant employees has been noted after making
reasonable enquiry.

Independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Board has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a written annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules and is grateful for the
contribution and independent advice and guidance that they
have been giving to the Board and the Board Committees.
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Directors are required to declare their direct or indirect interests,
if any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the
Board at Board meetings and withdraw if appropriate.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of
the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated
briefings for Directors are arranged and reading materials on
relevant topics are distributed to Directors from time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, all the Directors
had participated in continuous professional development
programmes, including internally-facilitated briefings organised
by the Company and qualified professionals and trainings
conducted by lawyers, and reading materials relevant to
directors’ duties and responsibilities. A record of the training
received by the respective Directors are kept and updated by the
Company. The training areas that the Directors received during
the year were as follow.
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Training Areas

EIIEEnE
Corporate
Governance, Risk
Management and Legal and
Internal Control Regulatory Group’s Business
HER - AREE EER
Name of Director BEEfE R A EBESHE EERE s L ES
Mr. Ou Peng BRI 5 A v/ v v
Mr. Meng Xuefeng hEERE 4 4 4
Mr. Huang Hu ERSAE v v v
Ms. Lv Jia aEZT v v v
Dr. Song Ming REHEL v/ v v
Dr. Sun Mingchun REAFB L v v v
Mr. Woo Chin Wan HRES A v v v
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Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting in
respect of Financial Statements

All Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Other matter relating to the Board

The Group has appropriate insurance in place to cover the
liabilities of the Directors and officers of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The primary role of the Chairman is to provide leadership for the
Board. He is responsible for the proper functioning of the Board
and for securing the application of good corporate governance
practices. The Chairman ensures the Board has formulated the
corporate goals and objectives, long-term business model and
strategy for delivering the corporate strategy of the Group, and
establishes an effective system for monitoring the progress
of their effective implementation and achievement. He directs
the corporate development activities of the Group and ensure
effective communication with shareholders and that their views
are communicated to the Board as a whole. The Chairman is
also responsible for setting the Board’s agenda and ensuring
that adequate time is available for discussion of all agenda
items in particular strategic issues. He promotes a culture of
openness and debate by facilitating the effective contribution of
non-executive Directors in particular and ensuring constructive
relations between executive and non-executive Directors.
Furthermore, the Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the
Directors receive, in a timely manner, accurate, clear, complete
and reliable information.

The primary role of the Chief Executive Officer is to focus on
attending to the formulation and implementation of Group’s
policies and overseeing the implementation of the strategies
and objectives agreed by the Board. The senior management
should support the Chief Executive Officer in performing this.
The Chief Executive Officer has principal responsibility for
overseeing day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses
and operations, maintaining the operational performance of the
Group and monitoring the operating and financial results of the
Group’s businesses against plans and budgets.
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The roles of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company have been performed by Mr. Ou Peng, our executive
Director, since 9 November 2016. Although under code provision
A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual, the combination of the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer by Mr. Ou is considered
to be in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. The Company believes that the combined roles of
Mr. Ou promotes better leadership for both the Board and the
management and allows more focus on developing business
strategies and the implementation of objectives and policies. The
balance of power and authority is ensured by the operation of the
senior management and the Board, which comprise experienced
and high-calibre individuals. The structure is supported by the
Company’s well established corporate governance structure and
internal control policies.

Board Committees

The Board has established the Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees with mandates to deal with certain
corporate governance affairs of the Group. The terms of reference
of each of the abovementioned Committees are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

From time to time, the Board will also establish other board
committee(s) to deal with specific aspects of its business.

Each Committee is established with written terms of reference
which are no less exacting than those set out in the Corporate
Governance Code, setting out its roles and functions. Each
member of the Committee has a formal letter of appointment
setting out key terms and conditions relating to his/her
appointment.

Each Committee meets as frequently as required by business
developments and the operation of the Group. Committee
members are provided with adequate and timely information
before each meeting or discussion. All Committee members are
asked to review and comment on the minutes of their meetings
within a reasonable time after the meetings.

The procedures and arrangements relating to the meetings of
the Board are applied to meetings of the Board Committees

whenever it is appropriate.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with its defined written
terms of reference in 1998. As at the date of this report, the Audit
Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Woo Chin Wan (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
and Dr. Song Ming, and a non-executive Director, Mr. Huang
Hu. A majority of Audit Committee members are independent
non-executive Directors, with Mr. Woo Chin Wan and Dr. Song
Ming possessing the appropriate professional qualifications and
accounting and related financial management expertise.

The Audit Committee members have professional qualifications
and experience in financial matters that enable the Committee
to exercise its powers effectively and provide the Board with
independent views and recommendations in relation to financial
matters.

The principal roles of the Audit Committee are to ensure that
the Company has formal and transparent arrangements for
considering matters relating to the Group’s financial reporting,
and risk management and internal control systems and for
maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Company’s
internal auditors (if any) and external auditors.

The duties of the Audit Committee, as set out in its terms of
reference, adhere to the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code.

The Audit Committee holds two regular meetings annually
and also meets at such other times as circumstances require.
Any Audit Committee member may convene a meeting of
the Committee. The external auditors may also request the
Committee Chairman to convene a meeting of the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee may invite the external
auditors and/or members of management to attend any of the
meetings. Special meetings may be called at the discretion of the
Committee Chairman or at the request of management to review
significant internal control, risk management or financial issues.
The Committee Chairman reports to the Board at least twice a
year on the Committee’s activities and highlights any significant
issues.

During the year, Audit Committee held two meetings and the
individual attendance records of each of the Audit Committee
members are set out on page 35 of this Annual Report.
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The Audit Committee’s main works during the year included
reviewing:

2016 Annual Report, including the Corporate Governance
Report, Directors’ Report and the audited financial
statements, as well as the related results announcement
(with recommendations made to the Board for approval)
2017 Interim Report and interim results announcement (with
recommendations made to the Board for approval)
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code, the SFO,
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules

in relation to the external auditors, their report on the audit
of the Group’s accounts, audit services plan and letter of
management’s representation, and their re-appointment and
terms of engagement

Internal Control Report (with areas of concerns discussed
and highlighted to the Board)

effectiveness of the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems and associated
procedures within the Group

connected transactions and continuing connected
transaction

Whistleblowing Policy, i.e. procedures to facilitate employees
to raise, in a strictly confidential manner, concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters

During the year, the Board has not taken any view that is
different from that of the Audit Committee nor rejected any
recommendation presented by the Audit Committee.

There were no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board (which in turn
endorsed the view) that, subject to shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, PricewaterhouseCoopers
be re-appointed as the external auditors for year 2018.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established with its defined
written terms of reference in 2000. A majority of its members
are independent non-executive Directors. As at the date of this
report, the Remuneration Committee comprises two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Song Ming (Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee) and Dr. Sun Mingchun, and an
Executive Director, Mr. Meng Xuefeng.

The Remuneration Committee reviews remuneration policies
and structure of the Group with the delegated responsibility to
determine the remuneration packages of executive Director(s)
and senior management of the Group (as defined in the
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee). It also
makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors.

In conducting its work in relation to the determination of
remuneration of Directors and senior management, the
Remuneration Committee ensures that no individual (or any of
his/her close associates) was involved in determining his or her
own remuneration.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee, as set out in its terms
of reference, adhere to the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code.

The Remuneration Committee meets once a year and at such
other time as necessary. Any Committee member may convene a
meeting of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting and the individual attendance records of each of the
Remuneration Committee members are set out on page 35 of
this Annual Report.
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The Remuneration Committee’s main work during the year
included:

«  review of the remuneration policy of the Group

+ review and determination of the remuneration package of
executive Directors

« review and recommendation of the Directors’ fees of all
the independent non-executive Directors for approval by
the Board

« review and determination of the remuneration packages for
members of senior management appointed/hired during the
year

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established with its defined
written terms of reference in 2005. A majority of its members
are independent non-executive Directors. As at the date of this
report, the Nomination Committee comprises an executive
Director, Mr. Ou Peng (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Song
Ming and Dr. Sun Mingchun.

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for
identifying suitably qualified individuals to become members
of the Board, make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of Directors and senior management, reviewing the
size, structure and composition (including the skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity) of the Board, and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Company’s Board Diversity Policy annually
and making recommendations to the Board on the measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board. It also assesses
the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

Before an appointment is made, the Nomination Committee
evaluates the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the
Board and, in the light of this evaluation, prepares a description
of the role and capabilities required for a particular appointment.
If deemed appropriate, external consultants may be engaged to
identify suitable candidates.

The duties of the Nomination Committee, as set out in its terms
of reference, adhere to the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least annually or meet
at such time as the Committee Chairman shall require. Any
Nomination Committee member may convene a meeting of the
Committee.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting
and the individual attendance records of each of the Nomination
Committee members are set out on page 35 of this Annual
Report.

During 2017, the Nomination Committee completed the review of
the size, structure and composition of the Board and assessed
the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors
pursuant to code provision A.5.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code and made recommendations to the Board on the re-election
of retiring directors. It also conducted a review on the diversity
of the Board and recommended to the Board for approval the
appointment of Mr. Meng Xuefeng as Deputy Chief Executive
Officer, Mr. Wang Han as Chief Financial Officer and Ms. Li Li Hua
as Deputy General Manager.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and Deputy Chief Executive Officer and is responsible
for ensuring there is a good and timely flow of information
to Directors, both in their roles as Board members and as
members of individual Board Committees. She also assists with
the continuing professional development of Board members.
The Company Secretary is responsible for taking and keeping
minutes of all Board and Committee meetings.

The Company Secretary also plays an important role in advising
the Board on all corporate governance-related matters. She
is also available to provide advice to the Board. Ms. Zheng
Yuanyuan, the Company Secretary, has confirmed that she
has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

All activities conducted and all decisions made by the Company
may involve risks to a certain extent. The Board plays a critical
role of monitoring the risk exposure of the Company. The Board
considers the risks in an active manner in setting of strategies.
The Board also considers the risks in assessing opportunities for
business development and growth so as to determine the risk
appetite of the Company.

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for the
risk management and internal control systems and for reviewing
the effectiveness of these systems annually so as to safeguard
the shareholders’ investments and the Company’s assets.
Accordingly, the Company has established internal control and
risk management systems to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss and manage or mitigate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

The Company’s objective is to establish a comprehensive and
effective risk management and internal control systems. The
Board is aware of its responsibility to ensure that an appropriate
and effective risk management system is established and
maintained by the Company.

The Group has in place an Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”)
framework to effectively identify, assess, report, mitigate and
monitor key risks. The framework provides a proactive and
structured approach to identify, manage and monitor risks
on an on-going basis with a common framework across the
organisation to evaluate risk significance and likelihood of
occurrence.

Risks faced by the Company fall into a number of principal
categories: strategic risk, operational risk, compliance risk,
financial risk and information risk. The procedures of ERM
of the Company involve risk identification, risk assessment/
prioritisation, risk response and risk monitoring and reporting.
Risks and uncertainties associated with the business of the
Company may have an adverse effect on business, financial
conditions and results of the Company. The Company has
identified certain principal risks through risk identification and
assessment, and has developed risks monitoring mechanism to
facilitate risk monitoring and control.
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The Group operates a “Three Lines of Defence” risk governance
model to delegate and coordinate essential risk management
and control duties in a clear and cohesive manner:

(a)

First line of defence — Business units are responsible for
maintaining effective internal controls and for executing risk
and control procedures on a day-to-day basis. Operational
management identifies, assesses, controls, and mitigates
risks, guiding the development and implementation
of internal policies and procedures and ensuring that
activities are consistent with goals and objectives. Through
a cascading responsibility structure, mid-level managers
design and implement detailed procedures that serve as
controls and supervise execution of those procedures by
their employees.

Second line of defence — (1) Risk Management Department
monitors the risk management system, and facilitates
the development, setting and effective implementation of
policies and guidelines. It provides advice and guidance to
the first-line functional units on implementation of the risk
management and internal control systems; (2) Compliance
Department monitors various specific risks such as non-
compliance with applicable rules and regulations; (3) Legal
and Company Secretarial Department monitors various
specific risks such as violation of laws and regulations; (4)
Finance Department serves as a controllership function that
monitors financial risks and financial reporting issues.

Third line of defence — internal audit function, which reports
to the Audit Committee, provides independent assessment
over the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems and makes recommendations based on the
audit findings.

During the year, an independent professional advisory firm
has been engaged by the Company as the consultant of the
Group. It is responsible for conducting in-depth review on
risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
The advisory firm has issued a report with its opinion that
the Company has maintained effective and adequate risk
management and internal control systems, which are compliant
and align with the Company’s operational and management
systems.
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The purpose of the internal control system of the Company is to
improve the operating effectiveness and efficiency, safeguard
assets against abuse and unauthorised disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records and that the financial
statements give a true and fair view, and ensure compliance with
relevant legislation and regulations. It provides reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss,
and manages, rather than eliminates, risks associated with the
business activities of the Company.

The Board together with the Audit Committee have reviewed
the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company during the year. The
Board will upgrade the existing systems of the Company with
reference to the recommendations given by the abovementioned
independent professional advisory firm, in the areas of financial
reporting and disclosure, operation and corporate controls
and risk management. The Board is satisfied that effective and
adequate risk management and internal control systems of the
Company are maintained and align with the operational and
management systems of the Company. The Directors consider
that it is necessary for the Company to continuously improve its
internal control system to the extent that the risks preventing the
Company from achieving its objectives can be properly managed.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company has established and implemented specific policies
and procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, including limiting employees’
access to inside information on a “need-to-know” basis and
ensuring that those who need to know understand their
obligations to maintain the confidentiality of any confidential
information of the Group. Appropriate confidentiality agreements
are put in place when the Company enters into significant
negotiations. All inside information is disclosed to the public
pursuant to the requirements under the SFO and the Listing
Rules and is kept strictly confidential before disclosure.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risks and uncertainties can affect the Group’s business,
financial condition and operating results. Key risks affecting the
Group are identified below. Additional risks and uncertainties
not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be
immaterial may also have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows. The Group employs an ERM framework to identify current
and foreseeable risks at different levels of the organisation so as
to take preventive actions to manage and mitigate their adverse
impacts.

(1) Regulatory compliance risks

The Hong Kong financial market in which the Group operates
is highly regulated. The Company, as a listed company in
Hong Kong, together with certain subsidiaries with SFC
licences to carry out relevant regulated activities, are
required to comply with the rules and regulations from
various regulatory bodies. The regulatory and compliance
regime in the financial industry of Hong Kong is changing
constantly, it increases the likelihood of regulatory non-
compliance as new rules are introduced and existing ones
are tightened. The Group may encounter challenges in
keeping abreast of the changes and managing regulatory
compliance risks, particularly in the areas of handling
connected party transactions, notifiable transactions and
managing the disclosure of inside information, preventing
money laundering transactions for money lending business
and securities brokerage business. Failure to comply with
the applicable rules and regulations, the Group may be
subject to fines, or even suspension or revocation of some
or all of the licenses for carrying on the business activities.
Accordingly, the Group’s business operations and financial
results might be materially and adversely affected.
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The Group requires the right people, skills and
capability to manage growth and change

The Group has established an organisation structure to
address recent business changes and relevant regulatory
requirements. Staff roles and responsibilities, authorities
and limits, reporting lines and segregation of duties need
to be clearly defined. Since most of the Group’s core
businesses commenced operation with limited number of
key personnel in each business line, the Group is required
to review the needs of staff resources in order to cope with
the business expansion and deliver success in the future.
Given that the competition for competent personnel in the
industry is intense, there is high likelihood that competent
personnel may leave the Company, therefore, the Group
may encounter difficulties in attracting or retaining the
services of the necessary key personnel for the business.
The Group should hire and retain highly skilled employees
with particular expertise or leadership capability in order
to remain competitive. The implementation of the Group’s
strategic business plans could be undermined by failure to
build a resilient corporate culture, failure to recruit or retain
key personnel, unexpected loss of key senior employees,
failures in the Group’s succession planning and incentive
plans, or failure to invest in the development of key skills.

The Group is subject to a competitive and changing
industry

The financial service industry in Hong Kong has a large
number of participants which makes the industry highly
competitive. The Group has to compete against competitors
which may have greater brand recognition in the market,
more human and financial resources, a wider range of
services and longer operating histories than that of the
Group. Apart from large multinational financial institutions,
the Group also faces competition from local small and
medium-sized financial services firms which offer a similar
range of services. Failure to maintain the Group’s competitive
strengths by responding rapidly to the changing business
environment and intensified competition may erode the
Group’s market share and have an adverse impact on the
operating performance and financial results.
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Risks related to strategic planning and reputation

GWAMCC, one of the four major state-owned financial
asset management corporations in the PRC, is engaged in
the businesses of acquisition, management and disposal
of non-performing assets, asset management, banking,
securities, insurance, trust, leasing, investment, etc. As a
result of changes in the Group’s shareholding structure and
businesses in 2016 and 2017, GWAMCC became the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company. The Group is now
principally engaged in property investment and provision
of financial services including asset management and
corporate finance, while securities brokerage business will
be included upon obtaining the Type 1 license from the SFC.
The Board has formulated development plans and strategies
to accomplish the strategic objectives of transforming the
Group into a conglomerate with businesses in property
investment and integrated financial services, and developing
the Company as a major listed entity and an integrated
development platform of GWAMCC outside Mainland China.

The Group will leverage the solid foundation, strengths and
reputation that GWAMCC has formed in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, in order to constantly expand its businesses.
As such, the Group is exposed to inherent reputation risks,
failure to deliver quality services to clients could result in an
adverse impact on Great Wall’s brand reputation.

Financial and regulatory reporting risks

The Company has statutory and social responsibilities to
prepare accurate and timely financial statements which
provide objective and reliable information for stakeholders to
base their decisions upon. Inaccurate or untimely reporting
could seriously damage the Group’s position such as a
drop in share price, or impaired sourcing/financing ability.
The Group introduced various new businesses in 2017 (i.e.
asset management and corporate finance businesses),
which indicates that new financial reporting processes
are implemented and experienced finance staff would
be required to extract, assemble, aggregate and analyse
financial data to ensure accurate financial reporting. The
process of financial recording becomes more complex and
frequent, and transactions may involve complex accounting
treatment or estimation. Besides, the Group will adopt new or
revised accounting standards (e.g. HKFRS 15 — Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and HKFRS 16 — Lease) in the
near future, the Finance Department is required to assess
the impact of the new or revised standards upon adoption.
In addition, licensed corporations are subject to various
statutory returns (i.e. the Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules, Disclosure of Interests, etc.) under the
requirement of the SFC and other regulatory bodies.
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(6) The Group requires a robust internal control system

and controls

The Group is operating under a highly regulated environment.
As a listed company with SFC licensed subsidiaries,
members of the Group are required to establish sound and
effective internal controls which are designed to identify and
manage the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
ensure reliable financial reporting, effective and efficient
operations, and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. Apart from the investment property business,
other core businesses, including asset management and
corporate finance were newly introduced in 2017, while
securities brokerage business is still undergoing license
application process. The Group is in the process of staff
recruiting and establishing relevant policies and procedures
to cope with the business development. Strengthening of the
internal control and risk management systems is an ongoing
process, the Group is expected to continue designing and
implementing appropriate measures to meet the changing
business environment. Failure in delivering services in a
proper manner, the Group may result in facing a loss in
market share, reputation and sales revenue.

(7) Risks pertaining to investment properties

52

The prospects of the Group’s property investment business
depend on the performance of the property market in
Hong Kong. The property market in Hong Kong is affected
by many factors, including but not limited to, changes
in local and international economic, political, social and
legal environments and changes in Hong Kong’s fiscal and
monetary policies, all of which are beyond the control of the
Group. The Group holds various commercial and industrial
properties in Hong Kong and derives revenue through leasing
out the properties. Being one of the Group’s core businesses,
any property market downturn in Hong Kong may materially
and adversely affect the financial position, operations,
businesses and prospects of the Group and may lead to fair
value loss of the Group’s investment properties.
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External Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers was first appointed as the Group’s
external auditors in 2001.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, PricewaterhouseCoopers
provided the following audit and non-audit services to the Group:

NI B A

BEBIGERMEBAN —_TE—FHRE
RIERANEE 2 INERZBIED

HE_Z—+F+-_A=+—HLEFER &
KRBT EEAMAARBIRH T IIEZ
K OREIZ RS -

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

External audit HINIEZR % 1,100 900
Tax services 5 AR 145 595
Other services E AR 1,647 5,173

Other services were mainly rendered in connection with various
transactions entered into by the Group during the current year.

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and offer themselves for
re-appointment at the annual general meeting of the Company to
be held on 15 June 2018.

The statement by PricewaterhouseCoopers about their reporting
responsibilities for the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” section of this Annual
Report on pages 97 to 103.
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Investor Relations & Shareholders’ Rights

All of the Company’s shares are ordinary shares carrying equal
voting rights. Please refer to the “Directors’ Report” section of this
Annual Report on page 77 for information regarding the public
float status of the Company.

The Company recognises its responsibility to look after the
interests of its shareholders. Shareholder relations play an
integral part in corporate governance. The Company keeps
shareholders informed of its performance, operations and
significant business developments by adopting a transparent
and timely corporate disclosure policy, i.e. the Shareholders’
Communication Policy, which complies with the Listing Rules and
provides all shareholders with equal access to such information.

The Shareholders” Communication Policy is available on the
website of the Company.

The Company reports on financial and operating performance
to shareholders twice each year through annual and interim
reports. Shareholders are given opportunities to raise concerns
or propose recommendations to the Board at the Company’s
annual general meetings. The Company’s external auditors
attend annual general meetings to answer questions about the
external audit and the audit report. Shareholders may visit our
website (www.gwpaholdings.com) for share price information,
latest business developments, announcements, corporate
governance policies and practices and other relevant shareholder
information.

54 |

REEABRRRR ZEF

ARAFFBERNE A EHRKRER 2 EE
e BRARRARKERER RN ZER » F2
BAFHRE/I7TE [EFGRE] —F-

ARAREREAETRBARR 2w - mEE
HERZBEIDEEEABNARRZ —R - K
NRAFRMEERELER 2 AR ERBER
R (MBERBABEK) @ FEARRERFEES
B EEBRREBERERER - ZHENE L
MARRZRE  BAERRDERFHEIG
BRER -

BRERBABER AR AR BRI RER] o

RRAFEBFERERPHERE  BFMAX
MARRERVBREERE - RRANRAR
AZERRBFRE TMEBFGIRLMEAT
ZEHFIREER - ADQF 2 INE R BEAD
HERRBFRE QEBANIINBEZ L
BERmEZRBE - RRABAERNEEHub
(www.gwpaholdings.com) ' EFBBAEHE
MIEER S EBERERL - 0F %
ERIE R EHRIANH MR RE °

GREAT WALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017



iiiiiiiia

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RS

The Company Secretary is responsible for responding
enquiries from shareholders and other interested parties.
Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s and
management’s attention (to the extent it is publicly available
and appropriate to provide) can be sent to the Company, for the
attention of the Company Secretary, by mail to Units 6507-6510,
65/F., The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

Note: Any such letter from the shareholders should be marked

“Shareholders’ Communication” on the envelope.

The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.

The Company promotes fair disclosure of information to all
investors and uses best endeavours to ensure that disclosures
made by the Company comply with the Listing Rules’ prohibition
against selective disclosure of inside information.

From 1990 to 2017, all annual and special general meetings of
shareholders held by the Company were attended by the then
incumbent chairman of the Board. During the year, the Company
held one annual general meeting and one special general
meeting, and the attendance records of each of the individual
Directors are set out on page 35 of this Annual Report.

Shareholders have specific rights to convene special general
meetings. A shareholder or shareholders holding not less than
one-tenth of the Company’s shares may require the Directors to
convene a special general meeting of the Company by depositing
a signed requisition at the registered office of the Company,
pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, with a copy
to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong,
stating the purpose of the meeting.

Note: Any such written requisition from the shareholders should be

marked “Shareholders’ Communication” on the envelope.
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Shareholders can submit a written requisition to move a
resolution at general meeting. The shareholders shall represent
not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having at the date of the requisition a right to
vote at the general meeting to which the requisition relates, or
shall not be less than one hundred shareholders. The written
requisition must be signed by all the requisitionists and state
the resolution, accompanied by a statement of not more than
one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in
any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at
the general meeting. The requisition must be deposited at the
Company’s registered office pursuant to the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, with a copy to its principal place of business
in Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary, not
less than six weeks before the general meeting in the case of
a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less than
one week before the general meeting in the case of any other
requisition. If, after the requisition requiring notice of a resolution
has been deposited at the registered office of the Company, an
annual general meeting is called for a date six weeks or less after
the requisition has been deposited, the requisition though not
deposited within the above-mentioned time shall be deemed
to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof. The
requisitionists shall be responsible for the relevant expenses
incurred in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
unless the Company otherwise resolves.

Note: Any such written requisition from the shareholders should be
marked “Shareholders’ Communication” on the envelope.

The Company held an annual general meeting in June 2017,
during which matters including re-election of retiring Directors,
authorisation of the Board to fix Directors’ remuneration,
re-appointment of external auditors, and grant of general
mandates for the issuance and buy-back of Company’s shares
by the Group, were presented for shareholders’ approval. At such
annual general meeting, details of the poll voting procedures and
the rights of shareholders to demand a poll were set out in the
circular to shareholders. All proposed resolutions were voted by
poll and the poll results were published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During the year 2017, the Company has not made any significant
amendment to its Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws.
The Company’s Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws
is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Company’s forthcoming annual general meeting will be held
on 15 June 2018. A circular containing, among other matters,
further information relating to the forthcoming annual general
meeting will be despatched to the shareholders of the Company
as soon as practicable.

Disclosures of Directors’ Information Pursuant to
Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules

Other Major Appointments

- Mr. Woo Chin Wan (our independent non-executive Director)
was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. (stock code: 3328), a
company listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange, with
effect from 27 November 2017.

- Dr. Sun Mingchun (our independent non-executive Director)
has served as the honorary institute fellow of The Asia-Pacific
Institute of Business of The Chinese University of Hong Kong,
with effect from November 2017.

Remuneration of Senior Management

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:
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The Board is pleased to submit this report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of Great Wall Pan
Asia Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Principal Activities and Segments Information

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group during the year are property investment
and provision of financial services.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segments is set out in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Business Review

A fair review of the Group’s business and the analysis of its
performance as well as prospects of the Group’s business are
provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” sections of this Annual Report (which
form part of the Directors’ Report).

Major Suppliers and Customers

During the year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers represented 86.11% of the
Group’s total revenue and revenue attributable to the largest
customer included therein amounted to 30%.

Save for the continuing connected transactions entered with the
Company’s controlling shareholder, Great Wall International, as
disclosed in this report, as far as the Directors are aware, neither
the Directors, their close associates, nor shareholders who
owned more than 5% of the Company’s total number of issued
shares as at 31 December 2017 had any interest in the five
largest customers.

Since the Group is engaged in property investment and provision

of financial services, in the opinion of the Directors, it is of no
value to disclose details of the Group’s suppliers.
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Financial Results

The profits of the Group for the year and the financial position of
the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2017 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 104 to 110 of
this Annual Report.

Dividends

The Board resolved not to declare any interim dividend for the six
months ended 30 June 2017 (2016: Nil).

The Board has resolved not to recommend any payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Five-year Financial Summary

The summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 196 of
this Annual Report.

Investment Properties

All of the Group’s investment properties were revalued by an
independent professionally qualified valuers as at 31 December
2017 using the fair value model. Details of investment properties
of the Group are disclosed in Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2017 are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Associate
Particulars of the Group’s principal associate as at 31 December

2017 are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Share Capital

Details of the authorised and issued share capital of the
Company are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2017,
calculated under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted
to HK$639,101,000 (2016: HK$642,992,000).

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

The total borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2017 were
approximately HK$1,435.7 million (2016: Nil). Particulars of
borrowings are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws or the laws in Bermuda which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Charitable Donations

During the year, charitable donations made by the Group
amounted to HK$32,712 (2016: Nil).
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Directors =

The Directors of the Company during the year and as at the date ~ FARNAFRB PN ARRIESFNOT :

of this Annual Report are:

Executive Directors Title Date of Appointment as Director

HITES ) BZEAESAY

Mr. Ou Peng Chairman of the Board and Chief 5 November 2016

B HE S A Executive Officer —ZE—RF+—HAAB
EESTRRITHRER

Mr. Meng Xuefeng Deputy Chief Executive Officer 5 November 2016

hEERE BIF TR EL —T—RF+—HAH

Non-executive Directors

FHITES

Mr. Huang Hu 5 November 2016

El bt N s il =
Ms. Lv Jia 5 November 2016
BEZT N B il =
Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

Dr. Song Ming 5 November 2016
REIH L AN S Y il =

Dr. Sun Mingchun
FAFS LT

Mr. Woo Chin Wan
tARELE

5 November 2016
—E-RF+—HAA

5 November 2016
—E-RFt+—ARH

The Board has established three committees, being the Audit EZEETRE=HELZET  HHAEXREZE
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination & : ¥MEZE8ehIERELES
Committee. The table below details the membership and RAFHREH=ZEEESZBERKE MAK

composition of each of the three committees as at the date of 1§ ©

this Annual Report.
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Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee
Director 2= EREEE FMHEEE REEEE
Mr. Ou Peng ST C
Mr. Meng Xuefeng sl M
Mr. Huang Hu |mRAEE M
Dr. Song Ming Bt M C M
Dr. Sun Mingchun FRREEL M M
Mr. Woo Chin Wan AR ESE C
C: Chairman of the Committee C: FESXER
M: Member of the Committee M: ZEEKE

In accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, Mr.
Ou Peng, Dr. Song Ming and Dr. Sun Mingchun shall retire by
rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the Directors has entered into an appointment letter with
the Company and is appointed for a specific term.

No Director proposed to be re-elected at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has an unexpired service contract with
the Group, which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

There are no service contracts with Directors that are exempt
under Rule 13.69 of the Listing Rules. No emoluments were paid
to any Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office during the year (2016:
Nil).

64 |

RBEARNRB 2 ARIHAREIMRZARTE - BT
£ REEERAAFBLHRERT - AT
BEBEBRERARAEERRBFAE LE
BB

EERBEY

REFCDHARRNYZEELIRFEERE
fF o

AEBYERBNERERRBEFAE LE&E
EZERTUAEE TR —FATAELRE
18 OXERERIN) A F AR 2 REEIAR
BaK -

MEREEII VAR HEIRRETLTR
AIZ13.691k c FA » ARAIERERES
IHEAME  EABEMAREE R IMARE
e R BB mE (22— RF &) o

GREAT WALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017



iiiiia

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
=E WG

Interests of Directors and Chief Executives

As at 31 December 2017, so far as was known to the Directors,
none of the Directors and Chief Executives of the Company
had any interest or short position in any shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Rights to Acquire
Shares or Debentures

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors and Chief
Executives (including their spouses and children under 18 years
of age) had any interest in, or had been granted, or exercised,
any rights to subscribe for shares (or warrants or debentures, if
any) of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

Interests of Substantial Shareholders

The interests of substantial shareholders in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as at 31 December 2017, as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
Part XV of the SFO or as the Company is aware, are set out in the
table below.
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The Company had been notified of the following substantial AARIER NIFERFNR_ZT—+F+_A
shareholders’ interests in the shares of the Company as at 31 =1T—BHBEHNARARIKROERNT :
December 2017:

Approximate

Number of percentage of
ordinary the issued
Name of substantial shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest shares held share capital®
HERITRAN
FTERRER B REmitE BEEERYE BAE DO
China Great Wall Asset Management Interest in a controlled 1,174,018,094 (L) 74.89%
Co., Ltd. corporation
FEIRMEEEERNDBR AR REf AR
China Great Wall AMC (International) Interest in a controlled 1,174,018,094 (L) 74.89%
Holdings Company Limited corporation
PRERBEE (BF) ZERERA REf AR
Great Wall Pan Asia (BVI) Holding Limited™ Beneficial owner 1,174,018,094 (L) 74.89%
EmEAA
Central Huijin Investment Ltd.® Interest in a controlled 155,000,000 (L) 9.89%
corporation
PRESIREBREEAT? RiEH AR S
China Construction Bank Corporation® Interest in a controlled 155,000,000 (L) 9.89%
corporation
B RIRTTIRID AR AR RiEH AR S
Wan Tai Investments Limited®? Beneficial owner 155,000,000 (L) 9.89%
BRREGR AR A A
The letter “L” denotes the entity’s long position in such shares. [L] RTRZEEREBBEROTNTFE -
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Notes:

(1) Great Wall Pan Asia (BVI) Holding Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Great Wall AMC (International) Holdings
Company Limited which, in turn, is wholly-owned by China
Great Wall Asset Management Co., Ltd.. Under the SFO, China
Great Wall AMC (International) Holdings Company Limited and
China Great Wall Asset Management Co., Ltd. are deemed to
be interested in all the shares of the Company owned by Great
Wall Pan Asia (BVI) Holding Limited.

(2) Central Huijin Investment Ltd. holds 57.31% of China
Construction Bank Corporation which, in turn, indirectly owns
100% of Wan Tai Investments Limited. Wan Tai Investments
Limited is therefore a controlled corporation of China
Construction Bank Corporation and Central Huijin Investment
Ltd. pursuant to Section 316 of the SFO.

(3) Approximate percentage was calculated based on the
1,567,745,596 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at
31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Company
had not been notified of any persons who had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
Part XV of the SFO.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which
was approved at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 24 May 2010. The Scheme is designed to motivate the
eligible persons, whose contributions are or will be beneficial to
the performance, growth and success of the Group, to optimise
their future contributions to the Group and reward them for their
past contributions and enable the Group to attract and retain
individuals with experience and ability.

Under the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, grant options
to the eligible persons as defined in the Scheme (the “Eligible
Persons”) to subscribe for shares of the Company (the “Shares”).
The basis of eligibility of any of the Eligible Persons to the grant of
any options shall be determined by the Board from time to time
on the basis of their contribution to the development and growth
of the Group.

GG
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The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme (and
under any other scheme of the Company) shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of the adoption
of the Scheme (the “Mandate Limit”) provided that the Company
may seek approval from its shareholders to refresh the Mandate
Limit. Moreover, the maximum number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Scheme (and under any other scheme
of the Company) shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue
from time to time. The maximum number of Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to any one Eligible
Person (including exercised and outstanding options) under
the Scheme in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue from time to time.

There were no outstanding options under the Scheme at the
beginning of the year ended 31 December 2017.

The period within which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but no option
may be exercised later than 10 years from the date on which the
option is granted. The minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised is determined by the Board
upon the grant of an option. The amount payable on acceptance
of an option is HK$1.

The subscription price of the options under the Scheme shall be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion at the time of
grant of the options but it shall not be less than whichever is the
highest of: (i) the nominal value of a Share; (i) the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of the Board’s approval of grant of the
option (the “Offer Date”); and (iii) the average of the closing prices
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the Offer
Date.

The Scheme will expire on 23 May 2020.

No share option was granted or cancelled under the Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors of the Company has any interest in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, or with the business of the Group during the year.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts of Significance

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, the
Company’s subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its holding
company was a party and in which a Director of the Company
or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
ended 31 December 2017 or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts

(1) A Tenancy Management Agreement was entered into
between a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
Cushman & Wakefield Property Management Limited
("“DTZ”) whereby DTZ is responsible for management of our
investment properties.

The Tenancy Management Agreement was entered for a
term of 2 years commencing from 14 November 2016 to
13 November 2018 and will be renewed automatically on a
year to year basis unless terminated in accordance with the
terms of such Agreement. Management fee of approximately
HK$68,390 was paid by the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017.

(2) An Advertising Agency Agreement was entered into between
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and SCMP
Outdoor Media Limited, the then wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, whereby SCMP Outdoor Media Limited is
responsible for management of our outdoor billboards, which
are on the exterior walls of Yue King Building at Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong.

The Advertising Agency Agreement was entered for a term
commencing from 5 April 2016 and ending on 31 May 2018.
Approximately HK$3,001,800 was paid by the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Apart from the foregoing, no contract concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

The Company’s Bye-Laws provide that, to the extent not avoided
by the statutes, the Directors are entitled to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all losses, liabilities and
costs which he/she may sustain or incur in connection with the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto.

Directors’ liability insurance policies containing permitted
indemnity provisions have been taken out and maintained in
force during the financial year and as at the date of approval
of this report to provide appropriate cover for the Directors
and directors of the subsidiaries of the Group in respect of the
relevant liabilities and costs associated with legal proceedings
against them.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

For more details about the principal risks and uncertainties
in which the Group are facing and also the relevant risk
management objectives and policies, please refer to the “Risk
Management and Internal Control” section contained in the
Corporate Governance Report and Note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements of this Annual Report.

Financial Key Performance Indicators

The relevant financial key performance indicators relating to the
business of the Group are set out in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” section and the consolidated financial statements
of this Annual Report.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and
Regulations

The Group mainly carries out its businesses in Hong Kong. As
far as the Board of Directors and management are aware, the
Group has complied in all material respects with the relevant
laws and regulations in Hong Kong that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Group. During the year
ended 31 December 2017, there was no material breach of, or
non-compliance, with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.

70 |

B Lt &SN ARBRAFEARNL BRI X
EEBEELEERRARZ MM ERNE BN
EBZAK -

BEFFIRERX

ARBHRBHRNRTE - NG EDAR A BUE
MBERT  BUESHAELETHALER
TTEHBEMAeB kA BN EEMK
ARARNREETERRE -

AEECRABREATRERNNESTELE
REBIR - YRR FEAREERERR

EZAHMERAR U HREZERRERF
ZHEBEELRERAARRRAEENE AT
ERRPEENORE

FTERREIAEERER

BN E P S 2 = 2 E K M AEE B E A
LABRAREEBERBRNFE  F2HAAN
FHREXEARETH [EREIERAEEE]
AR fr & SRR FE29 ©

MBBRRRAER

BERAANSREXBGAEBMBRRRREFTHR
AEHR [EEE T M oWT] Kira %R
=N e

18 <F AEBA L B 2 A5 5

AEEXTZNEBETEER - BEFERE
BREMM  AEERABEEATEECETH
AEEEXGREEAERTE ZHBETEED
ERG - RBEE-_T—tF+-_HA=1+—H1t
FEAR AEERMEREERITBTERA
51 K S1451 o

GREAT WALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017



iiiiia

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
=E WG

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. To constantly
enhance the sustainable development and strengthen the
awareness of environmental protection of all staff, the Company
has formulated and implemented the Green Office Policy, and
such policy will be updated from time to time in accordance
with actual market conditions so as to cover more scopes,
thus benefiting the implementation of green office culture.
The Green Office Policy states that the Company is committed
to the materials saving, energy saving, waste reduction, and
strives to minimise the consumption of natural resources and
energy; reduce the creation of waste and recycle material
whenever practical; ensure all waste is disposed of in a safe and
responsible manner; and monitor and evaluate progress and
performance for continuous improvement.

The environment policies and performance of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017 is set out in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” section on pages 78 to 96 of this
Annual Report.

Relationship with Employees and Customers

The Group ensures all employees are reasonably remunerated
and regularly reviews the employment policies on remuneration
and other benefits.

Details of the practices in relation to employment are set out in
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” section on
pages 78 to 96 of this Annual Report.

The Group maintains a good relationship and close contacts
with the customers and has regular review of requirements of
customers.

Retirement Benefits Scheme

The Group's principal retirement benefits scheme available
to its Hong Kong employees are defined contribution scheme
(the Mandatory Provident Fund) which is administered by
independent trustees. Both the Group and the employees
contribute respectively to the schemes sums which represent a
certain percentage of the employees' salaries.
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BREXZRFERERS

Connected Transactions and
Continuing Connected Transaction

() BEXZ -WERABRTEEEESR

(1) Connected Transactions — Acquisitions of Great Wall

72

Pan Asia Asset Management Limited and Great Wall
Pan Asia Corporate Finance Limited

On 19 May 2017, Great Wall Pan Asia lll Holding Limited
(“GWPAIIIH”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and
Great Wall International entered into the sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which Great Wall International
conditionally agreed to sell, and GWPAIIIH conditionally
agreed to purchase, the entire issued share capital in Great
Wall Pan Asia Asset Management Limited (K ¥ 38 o5 & &
& 12 AR 2 7)) (“GWPA-AM”) for a cash consideration of
HK$38,701,969.

On 19 May 2017, Great Wall Pan Asia Il Holding Limited
(“GWPAIIH”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and
Great Wall International entered into the sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which Great Wall International
conditionally agreed to sell, and GWPAIIH conditionally
agreed to purchase, the entire issued share capital in Great
Wall Pan Asia Corporate Finance Limited (R IRagE AR
A a)) (“GWPA-CF”) for a cash consideration of HK$868,834.

The acquisitions of GWPA-AM (licensed to carry out Type 1
(dealing in securities) (restricted by certain conditions), Type
4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities under the SFO) and GWPA-CF (licensed
to carry out Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated
activity under the SFO) were in line with the Group’s
strategic plan and constituted an important step towards
the diversification of its business to provision of financial
services. The Group, enlarged with GWPA-CF, GWPA-AM and
its subsidiaries with well-established platform of Qualified
Foreign Limited Partners under the Shen Zhen Qian Hai’s
pilot scheme in the PRC, would be able to enhance the
Group’s revenue sources, profitability and long-term growth
potential.
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As Great Wall International is a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the
above acquisitions of GWPA-AM and GWPA-CF constitute
discloseable and connected transactions for the Company
under the Listing Rules. Details of the said acquisitions are
set out in the Company’s announcements dated 19 May, 29
June, 21 July and 6 October 2017 and the Company’s circular
dated 30 June 2017.

Completion of the above acquisitions of GWPA-AM and
GWPA-CF took place on 6 October 2017.

Continuing Connected Transaction — Asset
Management Agreement in relation to the Provision of
Discretionary Asset Management Services

On 29 June 2017, GWPA-AM and Great Wall International
entered into an amended and restated asset management
agreement (the “Restated Asset Management Agreement”),
pursuant to which the parties thereto agreed to amend and
restate certain terms of the asset management agreement
dated 19 May 2017 previously entered between the aforesaid
parties. Pursuant to the Restated Asset Management
Agreement, GWPA-AM conditionally agreed to provide
discretionary asset management services to Great Wall
International for a term of three years commencing on 11
October 2017 at a management fee equal to 1.5% per annum
of the assets as consideration for performing discretionary
asset management services. Details of the Restated Asset
Management Agreement and the agreed annual caps set for
each of the four financial years ending 31 December 2020 are
set out in the circular of the Company dated 30 June 2017.

As Great Wall International is a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the
entering into of Restated Asset Management Agreement and
all the transactions contemplated thereunder constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the aggregate
amount of management fee received by GWPA-AM
under the Restated Asset Management Agreement
was HK$10,125,000, which is within the annual cap of
HK$13,500,000.
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The Group has followed the terms of the continuing
connected transactions conducted during the year as
mentioned in paragraph (2) above, which were determined
in accordance with the pricing policies as set out in the
relevant circular of the Company. Such continuing connected
transactions have been reviewed by the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company who have confirmed
that the transactions have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

() in accordance with the agreement governing the
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The Company’s auditors was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transaction in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor of the Company has issued
an unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transaction disclosed
by the Group in accordance with paragraph 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules and confirmations of the matters set out in that
rule. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions, other than
connected transactions and continuing connected transactions,
undertaken in the normal course of business are provided
under Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements. None
constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined
under the Listing Rules.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Shares

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Board has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct for
securities transactions by its Directors. Having made specific
enquiry with all Directors, all Directors have confirmed their
compliance with the required standards set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the
date of this Annual Report.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance. Details of the Company’s corporate
governance practices are set out in the “Corporate Governance
Report” section on pages 30 to 57 of this Annual Report.
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Material Event
Very Substantial Acquisition

Reference is made to the circular of the Company dated 30
December 2017 (the “VSA Circular”), capitalised terms used in
this sub-paragraph have the same meanings as those defined in
the VSA Circular.

On 28 November 2017, GWPA Property | Holding Limited (“GWPA
Property”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered
into the Shareholders Agreement (which was amended and
restated on 15 February 2018 and 12 April 2018 respectively)
with Broad Street Investments Holding (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.,
Garden Cruz Limited, the JVCo and the Manager in relation to the
formation of the JVCo.

GWPA Property agreed to subscribe for 29.9% of class A ordinary
shares of the JVCo. The total Contribution contributed by GWPA
Property under the JV Investment (other than the Advance) would
be up to HK$3,192,000,000, and as at the date of this Annual
Report, the actual contribution paid to the joint venture by GWPA
Property was HK$3,123,382,161.

Under the Shareholders Agreement, GWPA Property also agreed
to provide an Advance of not more than HK$743,000,000 to the
JVCo in consideration of the grant of a call option which entitles
GWHPA Property to purchase the Option PropCo and as at the date
of this Annual Report, the actual amount of the Advance provided
to the joint venture by GWPA Property was HK$725,051,488.

The JVCo is the holding company in the JV Group which carries
on the business of acquiring, holding, managing, developing or
disposing of the Portfolio Assets comprising certain commercial
properties and shopping centres, plazas and carparks in Hong
Kong. The JV Group had contracted to purchase the Portfolio
Assets following acceptance of the Bid by the Seller on 28
November 2017.
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At the special general meeting of the Company held on 22
January 2018, approval has been granted to GWPA Property by
the shareholders of the Company regarding the Shareholders
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
(including the JV Investment and provision of the Advance).

Completion of the Shareholders Agreement took place on 22
February 2018 and completion of the acquisition of the Portfolio
Assets by the JV Group took place on 28 February 2018. Further
details are set out in the Company’s announcements dated
1 December 2017 and 22 January 2018, and the Company’s
circular dated 30 December 2017.

Sufficiency of Public Float

According to the information that is available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the percentage of
the Company’s shares which were in the hands of the public
exceeded 25% of the Company’s total issued shares as at the
date of this Annual Report.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the year
have been audited by the auditors of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Ou Peng

Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 26 March 2018
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About this Report

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “Report”)
serves as a review on the efforts and achievements made by
Great Wall Pan Asia Holdings Limited (the “Company”, “GWPA
Holdings” or “we”) for its sustainability issues in 2017. This
Report discloses the Company’s practices for its commitment
to social responsibilities and its philosophies of sustainable
development. As a platform for communication with all
stakeholders, this Report also makes responses to the major
concerns of all stakeholders in our efforts to facilitate mutual
understandings. This Report is to be read in conjunction with
GWPA Holdings’ 2017 Annual Report, in particular the Corporate
Governance Report contained therein.

Reporting Boundary

This Report covers the material sustainability issues in the
operation, correlated efforts and activities, which the Company
has control on. This Report covers the period from 1 January
2017 to 31 December 2017 (the “Reporting Period”). This Report
encompasses the offices rented and operated by GWPA Holdings,
which are the Units 6507-6510, 65/F., The Center, 99 Queen’s
Road Central, Hong Kong.

Preparation Basis

This Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 of the
Main Board Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

Feedback to this Report

We welcome feedback on our sustainability practice and
performance. The feedback could be sent by post to the Company
Secretary at Units 65607-6510, 65/F., The Center, 99 Queen’s
Road Central, Hong Kong.
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Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality ER ABBREERENM

Assessment

AARHAEEEEEA BB REEHE
BoR - BT - HER TFARMEEAR I
BFFEREBEIZ LM BRBYEFE TN

The Company identifies government and regulatory authorities,
shareholders, employees, suppliers, customers and the
general public as its major stakeholders, and attaches

significance on maintaining communication and interaction

BT A M 5 B 25 A BB R o

with the stakeholders by establishing diversified platforms and

mechanisms of communications.

The Company has prepared this Report to respond the ten
major concerns identified based on the materiality principle and

selected by analyzing the opinions from the stakeholders.

ARrREBEERMHRAEESANEREDINE
HTAT2EE  YEAREPETOMRE -

Major areas Ten major concerns
TEEHE TREERE
Social-Product responsibility Customers satisfaction
ne-EmaE BEFmBE

Social-Employment and labour practices

e - EENSTIESR

Social-Supply chain management
e — HEEER

Social-Employment and labour practices

HE - EEMSTER

Environment
IBIE

Social-Employment and labour practices

HE - RERSTER

Social-Product responsibility
He-EmEE

Social-Anti-corruption
ne-REHS

Social-Employment and labour practices
He - ERLRBIER

Social-Anti-corruption
e -RES

Development and training of employees
8 TR L7

Selection of suppliers and assessment of their products and services

HErEE - EmMRG G

Remuneration packages and benefits of the employees
BT RS

Energy use

BERBER

Composition of employees
8 T4ERK

Protection of consumer data and privacy

REHBEEER MR

Preventing bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering

oLERRRE - BIR - BGFRERE

Preventing child and forced labour
B b & T s ilss T

Anti-corruption policies and measures and whistle-blowing
RETHER - 1EhE N B ik
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This Report is divided into two major sections to respond
the environmental and social concerns by reporting the
corresponding achievements during the Reporting Period. The
Company recognises the importance of sustainable development
and environmental protection and determines to respond to
the environmental concerns of our stakeholders by formulating
policies and introducing measures to manage our impacts.
Meanwhile, we still focus on our social performance and consider
it as a crucial part of evaluating our overall performance.

1.

80

Environment

The Company is committed to fulfilling its environmental
responsibilities and reducing the potential environmental
impacts of its operation as far as practicable. The Company’s
operation, focusing on property investment and provision of
financial services, involves mainly clerical work and business
meetings. The resulting direct emissions are limited to
employees’ workplace waste, sewage, waste paper and
waste office stationery. The indirect greenhouse gas (‘GHG”)
emission from purchased electricity is the largest component
of our carbon footprint. We are aware of the negative impacts
of the climate change on our operation. Thus, we will ensure
that activities in our offices are conducted in accordance
with sound environmental practices.

The Company developed a Green Office Policy to enhance the
management and standardize the sustainability practices
in our office. The policy was announced to all levels of
employees and was implemented in September 2017. All
employees of the Company are responsible for being aware
of the environmental and health impacts of their jobs and for
continually striving to minimise these impacts as set forth in
the policy.

The Company participated in the “Hong Kong Green
Organisation Certification” led by the Environmental
Campaign Committee alongside the Environmental
Protection Department and in conjunction with nine
organisations. We obtained two of these certificates,
including “Wastewi$e Certificate (Basic Level)” and
“Energywi$e Certificate (Basic Level)”, and signed the £nergy
Saving Charter issued by the Hong Kong Government. We
were successfully granted the title and logo of “Hong Kong
Green Organisation”.
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In the current Green Office Policy, the Company enhances the
commitments previously made in last year’s Environmental,
Social and Governance report through various additions:

We strive to

+  Minimise the consumption of natural resources and
energy

« Reduce the creation of waste and recycle material
whenever practical

«  Ensure all waste is disposed of in a safe and responsible
manner

+ Monitor and evaluate progress and performance for
continuous improvements

Responsibilities in the areas of management, energy
conservation, waste reduction and resource saving and
procurement are pronounced and informed responsible
staff. The corresponding responsibilities in each area are
introduced in later sections.

The Company will review and revise the policy regularly to
maintain a high level of governance in sustainability issues.
Channels are prepared to communicate with employees and
collect their opinions and suggestions on the sustainability
practices and performance.

The Company complies with the environmental laws and
regulations, such as the Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter
354 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Noise Control
Ordinance (Chapter 400 of the Laws of Hong Kong). In 2017,
there were no confirmed non-compliance incidents or
infringements in relation to environmental protection that
would have a significant impact on the Company.
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Environmental Performance in 2017
Emission/Resource consumption

PR EIRE A

The offices rented and
operated by GWPA Holdings
RABTEREEREHMBA

“EEFREEN

Intensity

E EE

Indirect GHG emission (Scope 2?)
FERERBHNRD (FE =)

Electric power consumption

HFE

Paper usage

MRAE

Paper collected for
recycling purpose

B R RBERBENHE

Toner cartridge used
mamE

Note:

19.713 tonnes CO2

19.7137AMF

24,953 kWh
24,953 F FL B

11.390 kg
11.390F 5%

0.230 kg
0.230F %

10 pieces

1015

—EtmEsE

1. The definition, calculation method and relevant emission
factors of GHG emissions are referenced to 4 Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard and the Sustainability
Feport 2076 issued by the Greenhouse Gas Protocol and the HK

Electric Investments respectively.

2. According to A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard,
Scope 2 is defined as the GHG emissions from the generation of
purchased electricity, steam, heating and cooling consumed by

the company.
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0.013 kg per employee
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0.556 piece per employee
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Emission Reduction and Energy Conservation

The Company recognises the importance of emission control,
in particular emission of GHG. The Company takes actions
to reduce emission of air pollutant and GHG. We encourage
our employees to attend business meetings and commute
by public transport. We have no self-owned vehicles under
control and no leased vehicles for our operation. The
sources and emission of air pollutant and GHG are limited to
uncontrolled sources (volatile organic compounds (“VOCs”)
generated from printers for instance) and indirect emission
from purchased electricity respectively. Electric power
consumption is the major GHG emission source during our
operation and we step up to reduce power usage and hence
GHG emission.

According to the Green Office Folicy, we are committed to the
following responsibilities in energy conservation:

« Turn off lights when not in use and use natural light
when possible

« Turn on the lights at specific spot in the office for
employees working overtime and turn off the other lights

in the office when not in use

«  Turn off air conditioning at or before 7:30 p.m. every day,
in order to save energy

«  Provide fans and purifiers to employees in the office after
7:30 p.m.

« Arrange monthly cleaning for air conditioning system

»  Power off electrical appliances that are not in use after
office hours

« Arrange regular maintenance for appliances

> BE B R B A BEIR

ARBEAREFHFRNEZNE - LERR
ZRBAOBEM o AR FEREUR D AR5 R
VAR EREBRAEE - HASEE T
HEBBEEN L TIRFLRAALZBT
B o AR EXH T RIEFIEA S
BEEHMEERH - ARSAVIARE
SRS B SRR AN HE IR D BIME PR IS AN S22 il B
KR (TR EENEREAREED
(TVOCs|)) MIMNBE NEREE IR - B

HRERMKEBRETNIZREREY
BUR > ZPIMARNERLDREE - MR

DR ERBEHEIL ©
REA(GERAZTRER)  ARNBIRE
ETAIBE R A EAELAT&ET

- BEEFEMECHHEBE LWEA
BEER B AR

- ERAEIEBRIGR  ETFEIH
R e g - WRIEAE thEFE MR
FRE e

- BEBRLVRI0DRZAIMMAMAZEE
& ARDE BERERE

- HEEE7RI0DERINABIHA - &0
B THRHEFMZERFLE

- BARBIE=RARGNEZR

- HIEMAKRE BEEAMEEFERN

== B8 F=
E=R=rR==W/iN

- EMTHIESRNGENRRE

REBRDEZERERAE —T—tFFH | 83



s

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B e RE IR W

- Affix reminders to all electrical devices to remind
employees of:

« Switching off lighting, air conditioning, fans and
purifiers after use

« Switching off/switching the office equipment into
standby mode in the office after use

Waste Reduction and Resources Saving

The Company has enforced waste classification and
material recycling in the Reporting Period under the Green
Office Folicy. We attach immense importance to educating
employees in recyclable material identification and
facilitating the recycling practices in the office. We began
collecting plastic bottles, waste papers and aluminum cans.
Recyclable materials are collected by types and retrieved by
qualified organisations to facilitate and maintain quality of
recycling practices. We will build upon the current practices
and expand the recycling practices whenever practicable.

The Company pays attention to the paper usage and makes
an effort to reduce paper consumption. We encourage
employees to communicate by electronic means and apply
double-sided printing whenever possible. The GHG emission
generated from waste papers in landfill is accordingly
reduced.

The Company’s water is sourced from municipal supply
and controlled by the property management operators.
We promote the importance of water saving and raise the
awareness among employees by reminders.
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According to the Green Office Policy, we are committed to the BEBEIGERAETRE) KRB NIRE
following responsibilities in waste reduction and resources BAREMEKE IR T HAEATEE
saving:
«  Use electronic means for communication whenever . ERlgeEAEFEAAR
possible
«  Apply double-sided printing whenever possible o BAREEITEMETH
+  Collect and reuse single-sided printed paper and old - WESEEITHNAERREEHETS
envelopes for printing IRFTED
«  Collect and reuse old box files and apply electronic - WENMEEFERESTEXR - WEAR
means for filing whenever possible REFHETXHEFRE
«  Replace rubbish bag not more than twice a week - BHEEBAT SAEBRNRETE
whenever possible BRIR
«  Collect and repair computer accessories, electrical - WEWHEEREG ERMEMA
appliances and repairable items for reuse BENERAEBXER
«  Reuse rechargeable batteries whenever possible - BAREEAAIAESE)
«  Reuse decorating materials - ERFARMHYE
«  Collect recyclable materials for recycling, including: - WEREIRBEYE - B
«  Waste paper . BEHR
«  Metal - B
. Plastic - R
«  Used toner and ink cartridges - FRANENENER
«  Glass bottles - I
«  Rechargeable batteries - REE)
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«  Encourage employees to use municipal water suppliers,
rather than bottled water

«  Affix reminders near all printers and photocopiers to
remind employees of saving paper

«  Affix reminders at collect points and notice boards in the
office to encourage waste recycling

«  Affix reminders on taps in the office to remind employees
of turning tap off after use

The Company’s employees avoid using disposable materials
under the newly implemented Green Office Folicy. The
current collected amounts of plastic bottles, used papers
and aluminium cans are thus modest in the offices. The
implementation of the Green Office Folicy shows a positive
impact on the environmental performance of the Company.

Society

The Company takes notice of the needs and pursuance of
stakeholders and considers itself closely linked with the
community. We target to achieve comprehensive social
benefits including corporate earnings through compliance
practices, engagement activities and community investment.

Employment and Labour Practice

The Company strives to protect the rights of employees
through strict compliance with labour-related laws. We also
work towards a diversified composition of employees with
various races, education, work experience, nationalities,
knowledge and skills. We have clearly stated working hours
per day. The Company persists in recruiting and employing
staff in a fair and equal manner.
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The Company is committed to adhere to the hiring principle
of justice, equality and diversification. We have established
and optimized its evaluation mechanism for recruitment.
The recruitment process and employment decision focus
on the applicants’” work experience, technical skills and
work performance instead of their age, education, gender,
nationality, race, sexual orientation, physical disability and
marital status. The termination of labour contracts and
dismissal of employees are carried out in strict compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations so as to fully protect
the rights and obligations of employees and the Company.

Regarding employee promotion, the Company considers
and examines the performance and competence of each
employee to achieve a fair and positive promotion. Hence,
we motivate our employees to create more value and achieve
his/her personal growth.

The Company strictly complies with the labour legislation in
Hong Kong, including the £mployment Orainance (Chapter
57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Employee Compensation
Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
Minimum Wage Orainance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and other relevant laws and regulations. The Company
proactively checks the identity certificates of applicants
during recruitment and employment to prevent hiring child
labour, and absolutely prohibits forced labour.

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not receive
any complaint about unequal employment and there was not
any case of illegal child and forced labour that would have a
significant impact on the Company.
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Benefits and Welfare

The Company clearly states the types of benefits for
employees in the Managgement Methods for Compensation
and Welfare established in accordance with Hong Kong’s
labour legislation. Our employees are entitled to the statutory
holidays, paid annual leaves, sick leaves, casual leaves,
marital leaves, maternity leaves, etc. in accordance with the
laws. The Company provides its employees with well-covered
medical insurance, rental reimbursement programme,
labour insurance, overtime allowance, monthly transport and
entertainment allowance in addition to their basic salaries.

The Company encourages its employees to continuously
enhance their skills and knowledge, and provides study
subsidy to employees with reliable proof.

The Company promotes work-life balance and conducts
various sport and leisure activities regularly for employees;
for instance, hiking, badminton games and wine tasting.
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The Company conducted a hiking activity in November 2017
KRBV ZE—+EF+—ARWTILED

Development and Training

The Company respects self-development and career
planning of its employees. Based on the personnel training
system and the staff development mechanism, we arrange
various professional trainings on a regular basis covering
topics of securities, investment, compliance, code of ethics
and conduct, asset management and capital funding to
provide targeted and personalised training to our employees.
The Company believes that improving their professional skills
is in line with the Company’s development strategies, hence
increasing the Company’s competitiveness.
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The Company’s employees attended professional training on law and compliance
RNRAE TLEEREEE

Health and Safety REHEZE

The Company emphasizes the importance of occupational AAFIRFABERELENEEN - AR
health and safety. The Company complies with the AIETFBELE REZERA) (BEED
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of F509F) @ WHIMZIBERRLIERIZERK
the Laws of Hong Kong), and we have various measures to BRI HEE - BPIEEREY —ERE -
ensure our working environment and equipment are well ZERMBEN THERRAINERMANEL
maintained. We believe that building up a healthy, safe and MEBX 5 o

positive working environment can benefit both our employees
and operation.
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The Company regularly carries out air-conditioning system
cleaning and has established safety and health notice and
safety warning.

The Company offers a versatile medical insurance plan for
employees and arranges a regular body examination for
employees and their eligible family members. We provide
flexibility in the body examination and insurance package to
assure protection of our employees. The Company invited
the insurance provider to hold a briefing session and provide
detailed information of the medical plan during the Reporting
Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not receive any
prosecutions in relation to occupational health and safety
that would have a significant impact on the Company.

The following case in 2017 demonstrates the importance
attached by the Company to employee health:

The Company actively promotes living a healthy lifestyle
among employees. We have formed a running group that
covers the most of our employees. A competition based on
the data recorded by the step counting application in the
mobile phone of each employee in the group is conducted,
and fascinating prizes are awarded for winners.

Supply Chain Management

The Company established a management system for
supply chain and standardised the tendering process
under the principles of qualification verification, openness,
fair competition, justice, honesty and integrity as well as
centralised purchase by the Company.

The Company has enhanced the requirements of
procurement in the aspects of energy efficiency and
resource saving with the aim of reducing carbon footprint
in the Reporting Period. We reduce our carbon footprint
by procuring energy efficient equipment, refilled toner
cartridges and ink cartridges. We regularly review and
amend our procurement requirements in the aspects of
sustainability.
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Product Responsibility

The Company continues to be alert on the local laws
and regulations and ensure compliance to the relevant
regulations, such as the Landlord ond 7enant (Consoliaation)
Ordinance (Chapter 7 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Securities
and Future Oradinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), etc. We strive to provide our customers
and consumers with quality products and excellent services.
We make much of the customer satisfaction for testing the
quality of our products, services and brands. We always
choose the experienced service providers to manage our
properties and outdoor billboards. Cushman & Wakefield
Property Management Limited (“DTZ”) and SCMP Outdoor
Media Limited are selected by the Company to manage our
properties and outdoor billboards respectively.

DTZ and SCMP QOutdoor Media Limited are the leading
service providers for real estate and advertising respectively.
We assure that all the tenants’ needs are recognised
by requesting service providers to collect the views and
recommendations of the tenants on a regular basis and
provide timely feedback to us.
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ME-Z—+E£+-A=+—0 RER
SERREBHELERUTYE

As at 31 December 2017, GWPA Holdings had the following
properties under its management in Hong Kong:

No. Type Address

Am 5% it LE 3::h0l

1 Offices and car parking 20th and 21st Floors and Car Parking Spaces Nos. 21, 22 and 23 on 4th
Spaces Floor, Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Central, Hong Kong
NSV BEBPIRERB1 29 ERRITRO20 2118 a8 2 21 ~ 22 R 235 RE L

2 Workshop unit Ground and 1st Floors, Block B, Ko Fai Industrial Building, 7 Ko Fai Road,

Yau Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

THEM EENBERESIEBE7RSEIERNEBEM X118

3 Office and retail shop The lobby on G/F and the front (or southern) portions of the 1st, 2nd and

3rd Floors including the staircase therein leading up to the 3rd Floor and
the lift therein serving the 1st, 2nd and 3rd Floors only and portion of
the canopy on the 1st Floor level, Yue King Building, 26, 26A, 27, 28, 29
& 30 Canal Road West, 1-7 Leighton Road and 41-47 Morrison Hill Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

MRERTER BEEFEREEF26 - 26A ~ 27 - 28 - 29/%305% « BIEE1E7H LERE
841 E47R M RE T RE R - 2R3EZATE (SEH) (BIEAMSE
EVIERE MRS T 2R BB FHIRME) - PAR B AR BB

Industrial building

T#EKRE

8th Floor of Block C, Sea View Estate, 8 Watson Road, North Point, Hong
Kong
BRIt AEREST AR NECEESE

The Company takes notice of the environmental policies and
the occupational safety and health policies implemented by
its service provider for property management as property
investment is one of the principal activities of the Company.

DTZ undertakes their operations and delivers products
and services in accordance with the international standard
for Environmental Management Systems, ISO 14001. DTZ
also maintains a safety and health management system
in line with international Occupational Health and Safety
standards and complies with applicable laws, regulations
and standards.

During the Reporting Period, the Company was not aware of
any incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations
concerning the provision and use of the Company’s products
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and services, including but not limited to, product and
service information and labelling, marketing communications
including advertising and promotion, and property rights
including intellectual property rights that would have a
significant impact on the Company.

The Company neither experienced any customer data
leakage, nor received any complaints about inappropriate
use of customer information during the Reporting Period that
would have a significant impact on the Company.

Anti-corruption

The Company attaches great importance to employees’
honesty and trustworthiness. We ensure compliance with
anti-corruption-related laws and regulations, such as the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).

As for maintaining long-term relations with partners,
self-inspection is performed on an annual basis to balance
and protect the interests of the Company and its related
parties. Moreover, the Company hires independent auditors
to conduct external audits on the Company. Malpractice
and unethical behaviours are accordingly prevented and
controlled through internal inspections and external audits.

The Company’s anti-corruption practices are in line with its
controlling shareholder’s compliance manual and regulation
of anti-money laundering. The Company formulated and
implemented a whistleblowing policy in March 2017. The
Company is committed to protecting and keeping the
whistle-blowers’ identity confidential.

During the Reporting Period, the Company did not receive
any allegation against the Company or its employees of
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering that would
have a significant impact on the Company. No whistleblowing
disclosures related to anti-bribery and anti-corruption were
received.
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Community Investment

The Company places appreciable emphasis on contributing
to the community. The Company takes society-dedicated
as one of its core values. We have established a long-term
relation with U-Hearts, which is an influential local charitable
organisation. A GWPA Holdings’ volunteer team is formed
under the guidance of U-Hearts, and the team aims to take
part in various volunteering and charitable activities. We
proactively participate in U-Hearts’ charitable activities by
means of donations, material support and volunteering. The
Company also organises internal volunteering workshop
and invites external professionals to deliver lectures in the
workshops.

We are proud to announce we have been granted the logo
of the 2017/18 Caring Company issued by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service. This logo demonstrates that we
proactively fulfil our commitment to the social responsibility.

We consider building up linkages with more charitable
organisations in the future to serve the community and
develop more channels for employees to participate in
charitable activities. The Company strongly supports its
employees to contribute to charitable and volunteering
activities.

HERE

RAFIFEEERHHROER - ARFIA
HeEFARLEERE - RAERH—(E
ERARENNEZHAB ML — 0] Y
TRENGERR - £ — 0 035
BT HPIRZT RWRTIERNE TE
5o WiEBEE MEXKNETIRES
ARAERZ2EEBRETREMEZED -
ARAREBABARE T TIEY - WEGEI
MEXATHEIIEGHER -

BPREFWEMRRMESTHEELS
R EREN2017/18FE[EHARMA
B IR - R SERRRMESRETH AL
B H ErYAGE

BPMERARET L RERBETIHE
ARBiHE  TRETRHEELZ2HEEE
ABHRE - ARAANIKFEIRES
ARETREESIELER

REBBRDZERERIE —T—+FFH | 95



s

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B e RE IR W

Activity Means of participation
EE SEERX
Volunteering Workshop «  Promoting the vision of serving community
EITES EERBLEIER
« Encouraging employees to participate in charitable activities
HEET2EEELE
«  Expounding how to better bear the responsibility of
volunteer

AR E i R ER TR

Inner Music Charity Concert « Funding the concert
[B2fR - Bek ) BREZES gpEke
«  Purchasing charitable products
BEREEM
« Volunteering

& TR

UNICEF Charity Run 2017-Run for every child  «  Promoting the charity run in the Company
HERRERESERER2017 RARNEFEER
« Mobilizing all employees to register for the charity run and
sponsoring the registration fee
HHERETRRESHUEYREE

The Company’s employees participated in UNICEF Charity Run 2017
AAREBI2EBARRELSRRER2017
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GREAT WALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Great Wall Pan Asia
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 104 to 195, which comprise:

« theconsolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017;

« the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

« the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

« the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

-« the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as follows:
«  Valuation of investment properties

Key Audit Matter

HFEET T EA R EF AT

s WEWXME

RRESTER

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to notes 2(i), 3(a) and 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The investment properties are a key component of the Group’s
net assets value and underpins the results for the year. As
at 31 December 2017, the carrying values of the investment
properties were HK$1,781.5 million and the Group recognised
investment properties revaluation gains of HK$221 million in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The investment properties of the Group comprise a retail shop,
office buildings and industrial and other properties. Management
determined the fair values of these properties, with reference
to the valuation performed by an external valuer engaged by the
Group (the “Valuer”), using the income capitalisation approach.
The income capitalisation approach involved significant
estimates, such as rental yields and capitalisation rates taking
into consideration of the locations, sizes and qualities of the
properties, to derive the fair values of each of the properties.

The valuation was inherently subjective due to the significant
estimates involved. Changes in these estimates could result in
material changes to the valuation of the properties and hence
the results of the Group.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BN ESNMEERREETEE

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included principally the following:

« assessing the Valuer ‘s competency, capabilities, and
objectivity;

- reading the valuation reports issued by the Valuer which
covered the property valuation of all the investment
properties in the Group;

« involving our internal valuation specialists to compare the
rental yields of similar properties and capitalisation rates
used in the valuation process to our independently formed
market expectation; and

« agreeing the management data used by the Valuer, including
tenancy schedules and square footage details, to the
tenancy agreements of the Group.

We found the assumptions used in the valuations were
supportable by the available evidence.

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise ERBFE(EEEFTEL]) ETEHBRES
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism HFIER T EXHE - RIFTEEERLE -
throughout the audit. We also: FAITR

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of  ®

the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the  ®
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used o
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the o
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content ®
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Chiu Kong, Edmond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2018

e 3 BEREBRNERIEFIBNIBER
EERER  BENELERE UBHERS

MBHRREXER - ZMEE BEKEFE
AR BEEMEHIT  RAR/EAER

EEREELE

BREMERN  RMAEBEZESEE T8
MESHE - BRTH  EAFFERET &
FERIRAPIFEZR AT A &8 Al th PO B BE 4 RO (E R KR

B o

BHPERBEZZESRIEH  FARMDH
BREMBYEMNABEERBRER - I B
ABAAEAEMER AT ERFIELIEN
PIEBEMEMEIR  UREBRNBRLT -
ek ey

RBEZRESBBNFRET - HFIHETE L
ERHAPGEMBRRNBARLSER B
MK RS E R - HPIEZBE RSP
AELFIR - RIPDEFERTAFRRAREE
LEIR - AERBFERLNERT - MREGER
HMERMBETBBREHENN B R RE
BELNRZAE - RIORENEERS A
B FIA

HARBY ZBEBENRAHEEBAZR
e

‘O KEGEERA
R G AN

&8 —F-N\F=A=+iA

RBREZERERAT —T—+FFH | 103



/////////////////////

//////////////////////

CON SOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

GEBEEAMRRE

31 December

31 December

2017 2016
—E—+fF —E—RF
+=A=+—H t-—A=1+—H
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T BT T
(Restated)
(€<==27l))
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EMBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y2 - 28 AR 5 5,309 2,460
Investment properties KEYE 6 1,781,500 1,560,500
Investment in associates REE AR 2R E 8 2,607 3,011
Available-for-sale financial asset AEEZSREE 9 1,196 =
1,790,612 1,565,971
Current assets mEEE
Accounts receivable JRE o R IE 10 8,986 3,707
Prepayments, deposits BNER a2k
and other receivables Hth fE Y R TE 11 1,445,002 15,546
Cash and bank balances B & MIRTT4E 24 118,561 129,455
1,572,549 148,708
Total assets BB E 3,363,161 1,714,679
LIABILITIES &f&
Non-current liabilities EmBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTISTEE 12 1,814 1,574
Loan from an intermediate RE B AR
holding company ZE& 13 1,439,513 -
1,441,327 1,574
Current liabilities mEaE
Amount due to the intermediate FEfT A IR A Bl 5RIE
holding company - 3,059
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary fﬁlﬁ%ﬁﬁ%“‘ IR - 2
Amounts due to associates JEAST B & A B 5RIE 8 1,054 2,228
Other payables and HAERNE IE&
accrued liabilities EErEE 14 24,149 28,357
Current income tax liabilities BNERFTIS T B (5 6,527 5,505
31,730 34,151
Total liabilities BmEe R 1,473,057 35,725

104 |

GREAT WALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017



/ / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / /

/
/////////////////////////////////////
/////////////////////////////////////

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Continued)
GeREARRE (8)

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
+=ZA=+—8 +tZHA=+—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BEE BT T BT
(Restated)
(re&=751)
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves BAR K&
Share capital A& A 15 156,775 156,775
Reserves B 16 1,733,329 1,522,179
Total equity B 1,890,104 1,678,954
Total equity and liabilities wmERNAaE 3,363,161 1,714,679
The notes on pages 111 to 195 are an integral part of these E111EZF 1958 2T R FLHREMBHRE
consolidated financial statements. Z—Ep1n o
Mr. Ou Peng Mr. Meng Xuefeng
s £ aRBIEEE
Chairman Director
x*E EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e R

Year ended 31 December

BEEt-A=t-HLHEE

2017 2016
2t ZT—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
B sE BT BT
(Restated)
(& =51))
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEEEEY
Revenue Wz 4 122,953 91,707
Other income HAb A 322 740
Cost of production HERA (5,184) (5,030)
Rental and utilities Me k&t (12,212) (5,044)
Depreciation and amortisation wEREH (1,656) (1,887)
Other operating expenses HmEeRY (59,531) (48,282)
Fair value gain on investment properties KEMEATEK T 6 221,000 118,100
Operating profit of continuing operations BFEREER RERR 18 265,692 150,304
Net finance (cost)/income B (BA),/ WA F58 19 (3,805) 1,002
Share of losses of associates e B & A B8 (404) (1,339)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERAHHE 2 eREERR
financial asset - 27,062
Gain on disposal of asset held for sale HEREFEEEKE - 30,089
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RME R A - 104,218
Profit before income tax from continuing FEREER
operations RS A BF 261,483 311,336
Income tax expense PSR 20 (12,325) (3,617)
Profit for the year from continuing operations BFEREER2Z2FRA 249,158 307,719
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS ERIEREEK
Profit for the year from discontinued ERIEREEKZ2FRR
operations 32 - 1,408,732
Profit for the year 2ERF 249,158 1,716,457
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

Gaemlak (8)

Year ended 31 December

BEEt-A=t-HLEE

2017 2016
2t ZT—RF
Note HK$°000 HK$000
B s BETT AT
(Restated)
(4 =%1))
Other comprehensive income/(loss) HthZEWA /(E8R)
ltems that will not be reclassified TAHEERIEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmEE -
Fair value gain recognised upon the HHE L REFERE
transfer from leasehold land and REMERERZ
buildings to investment properties N EE 16 - 307,948
- 307,948
ltems that may be/have been reclassified Hign / BEHHERE
subsequently to profit or loss: BERER -
Fair value gain on available-for-sale AtHECEREEL
financial assets AEERE - 8,248
Fair value loss on available-for-sale HER AR 2 I E 2
financial assets released upon disposal SRIEE N FEFE - (18,616)
Currency translation difference on mERAREEZELES
consolidation 1,563 (1,230)
Currency translation difference released HEREREEERR—K
upon disposal of assets held for sale and BERE 2 B R
partial interest in an associate fRiR 2 BN ZRE - 10,170
Reserves released upon disposal of HERHB R R 2
interests in subsidiary fRRR 2 (1 - (4,337)
1,563 (5,765)
Other comprehensive income 2EHM2EBA
for the year, net of tax (BrFi %) 1,563 302,183
Total comprehensive income for the year 2E2HBALE 250,721 2,018,634
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

e el (8)

Year ended 31 December

BEt-RA=t-HLHFE

2017 2016
ZE—tF —TREF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Fasx BETR BT
(Restated)
(fg5751)
Profit attributable to: R
Continuing operations BERSE 249,158 307,719
Discontinued operations B4R FRE K 32 - 1,407,641
Shareholders of the Company AREIRRE 249,158 1,715,360
Non-controlling interests Puiled: oy
- discontinued operations - BREEEER 32 - 1,091
249,158 1,716,457
Total comprehensive income attributable to: FE{E 2 E AL
Continuing operations BB 250,721 614,391
Discontinued operations BRIEREEY 32 - 1,403,152
Shareholders of the Company ARNRIRE 250,721 2,017,543
Non-controlling interests FEIEI
- discontinued operations - BRILEEER 32 - 1,01
250,721 2,018,634
Earnings per share BREF 22
Continuing operations BECLER HK15.89 cents &1l HK19.64 centsiLl
Discontinued operations BRIEEEEY - HK89.85 centsi&Ll
Basic HA HK15.89 centsfll  HK109.49 centsi{ll
Continuing operations FEICEEK HK15.89 cents &1l HK19.64 centsiill
Discontinued operations B R - HK89.83 centsilL
Diluted B8 HK15.89 centsi&fll  HK109.47 centsEfll
The notes on pages 111 to 195 are an integral part of these H111HZE %WSEZW&%& FRE PR TRE

Z—5Mh

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GalRER

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE_T—+H&+-_A=+—HItEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG N 3
Reserves
ﬁﬁ Non.
Share Share Contributed ~ Merger Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  surplus  reserve  reserves profits Total interests equity
Ei3 2]
kx  ROEE BARH AHRE  RtRE  RERA aE  fER  GE&
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKF000  HK§O000  HKBOOO  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
AETT  ARTm  AETn  AETn AR AU BETn AT AT
(Note 16) (Note 16(a))
(Kit16) (HH3¥16(a)
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZE-NE-A-B&H
as previously reported (MAT2H) 156,106 41126 803,234 = 36,032 2,280,857 3,317,956 56,934 3,374,489
The Acquisitions (Note 2(c) Y235 (RizE2l) - - - 15000 - (3067 11933 - 1193
Balance at 1 January 2016, asrestated  R=F—7F—F—B &
(7)) 156,106 41126 803,234 15,000 36,032 2,277,790 3,329,868 56,534 3,386,422
Comprehensive income 2ERA
Profit for the year KEREA = - - - - 1715360 1,715,360 1001 1,716,451
Other comprehensive income Eh2EMA - - - - 302,183 - 302183 - 302,183
Total comprehensive income ERALE - = - - 302183 1715360 2,017,543 1091 2018634
Transactions with shareholders ARRZRS
Acquisition of the subsidiaries WEEHB AR - - - 15560 - - 15560 - 15560
Employee share-based compensation M2 EEM SR
benefits = = = = 2 = 2 - 2
Dividends and cash payment EERRENZRER
declared and paid (Note 21) R (1) = - (492399 - - (3201571) (3693964  (21,920) (3,715,88¢)
Share issued upon exerciseof share  {TFEREAC Z TR
options 669 9,256 = = = = 9925 = 9,925
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - - - - - - - (35705  (35,709)
Transfer % - - - - () 5,441 - - -
Total ransactons with sharefiollers BB SHER B9 925 (923 1550 (49 (%130 (66847) (57609 (372600
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
tZA=+-RiH 156,775 50,382 310,841 30560 333376 797,020 1,678,954 - 1,678,954
Balance at 1 January 2017 RIF—tE-R-BER
as previously reported (IEI2H) 156,775 50,382 310,841 - 334454 786908 1,639,360 - 1,639,360
The Acquisitions (Note 2(c) g2 (k) - - - 3050  (1078) 10112 39,59 - 30,59%
Balanceat 1 January 2017, asrestated R =F—tE—f—BEH
(&E31) 156775 50382 310841 30560 333376 797020 1,678,954 - 1,678,954
Comprehensive income 2EHA
Profit for the year REERF - - - - - 249158 249,158 - 24958
Other comprehensive income E2EMA - - - - 1,563 - 1,563 - 1,563
Total comprehensive income RAUAEE - - - - 1563 249,158 250,721 - 250721
Transaction with shareholders HREZRS
Acquisition of the subsidiaries WENBAR - - - (39,57M) - - (39,57M) - (395M)
Total transaction with shareholders SRR ZRH4H - - - (395M) - - (395M) - (3957)
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZB-tE
tZB=t-REH 156,775 50,382 310,841 (9,011) 334939 1,046,178 1,890,104 - 1,890,104

F111ERE1958 2 MERIEFHEPHRE
Z—8btn o

The notes on pages 111 to 195 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GellemER

//////
i

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-HLEE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RTF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B s BET T BT
(Restated)
(2 57))
Cash flows from operating activities RETFHZRERE
Cash generated from operations TmEELE RS 24(a) 44,836 801
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENBBFER (8,308) (10,800)
PRC income tax paid ERRBEAEH (2,755) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities REEBELE /(FTA) 238 E 33,773 (9,999)
Cash flows from investing activities RETEZHRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, BAYE - HEEREE -
intangible assets and investment properties EREERICEE (4,505) (11,031)
Net cash inflow from disposal of interests of HENBRRERZ
subsidiaries FRERA
- Media business — REER 32 - 2,037,962
- Coastline International Limited — Coastline International Limited ~ 24(d) - 974,570
Proceeds from disposal of HEREREEELZ
asset held for sale FTSs0E - 53,611
Proceeds from disposal of HEAHRHE 2MEE
available-for-sale financial assets Fi8s0E - 155,984
Interest received BEUYF B 40 2,168
Payment of deposit for investment in SR ERZEERAZIES
a proposed joint venture (1,435,668) -
Purchase of available-for-sale financial asset BAREEZSREE (1,174) -
Acquisition of the subsidiaries g1 )= lNE] 2(c) (39,571) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities REEE (1) EE2FRE (1,480,878) 3,213,264
Cash flows from financing activities MEED 2@&7’;‘&%
Dividends paid to a non-controlling ENTHEA
interest of subsidiaries FErEd) \fﬁé Zﬁﬁ g - (21,920)
Dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders B FARRREZKE 21 - (3,693,964)
Proceeds from shares issued BETROFTEHRIE - 25,485
Loan from an intermediate holding company REFEIERARZER 24(c) 1,435,668 -
Increase in amount due from FEW’:F‘FW SUNE]
intermediate holding company IR - (5,525)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities BEFHEL (FR) 2584 1,435,668 (3,695,924)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents fﬁi kIReEE 2 FHD (11,437) (492,659)
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rate [EXREF) o & 543 (535)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January —A—BzREkREEE 129,455 622,649
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December EQJr:H =+—H2
RekBeEE 24(b) 118,561 129,455

The notes on pages 111 to 195 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

110 |

Z—Ebn

GREAT WALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017

F1N1BEEE1958 2T AEss

SlIpvEES



S ST S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S SSSSSSSS

/////////////////////////////////////

LSS S S S S S
LSS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G 6 BB R I A

1.

(a)

Corporate information

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability. Its principal place of business
in Hong Kong is Units 6507-6510, 65/F., The Center, 99
Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company acted as an investment holding company
during the year. The principal activities of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017 comprised (a) property
investment and (b) financial services.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”).
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties and available-for-sale financial asset, as further
explained below.

1. ARIEFR

ARRR/—FRAREEMKL 2 EH R
EREERA - ARBINBEBZEELR
WHSBEBE2RANETINNRFTRT L66E
6507-6510% °

ARBRAEFER/REERAR - AEE
RBE-_Z—tF+-_A=+t—HLFE

ZEBEBRFEQWERERbOSRR
i&

EEGUBRREE
ﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁzzﬁ FHBR
FIBINT - BRRAIIASL - HEEHBOR
EE@%%K%E R -

(a) RBEXE

KB BHRERDIRBECE AT HHRE LD
(IFEFBRELEDN RS - RUBHRK
TRBELKAERERE  EREYE
RAHHEZ CREETNIREMHETIRK -
BB I e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 2. EEETTHRREE (&)
(Continued)

(b) B BRI RKE

(b) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
() New and amended standards adopted by the Group (i) EEBFFRBZH 5T RARIEETER)

ATEASEEBZREBEL ZEFTNZ
Tt F A HABZHRFEHERR
i EER A o

The following amendments to existing standards that is
relevant to the Group are mandatory for the first time for the

financial year beginning 1 January 2017.
Amendments to HKAS 12, ‘Income taxes’, amendments to EASFTERFE12% [FMEH | 2185 - &
HIKAS 7, ‘Statement of cash flows’ and amendment to HKFRS BETERE7TRIBERER] 2B
12, ‘Disclosure of interest in other entities’. BV HREEDE125 [EMEE 2 &
=S| Z1E5T -
FHEFTEHAREEME WL NERK ©

The above amendments are not material to the Group.
(i) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (ii) (KRR 2 FTETER R 2 FE

HEAREARHEL B MBREDH
ER_—F—tF—A-BRBZVERF
ERARER - EAREEFRA o

New standards, amendments and interpretations, that are
relevant to the Group, have been issued but are not effective
for the financial year beginning 1 January 2017 and have not
been early adopted.

Applicable for BRARUT
accounting periods HEAS AR BRR
beginning on/after ZastHm
HKFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’ 1 January 2018 BB E LERIZE 95 —ET-N\F—H—H
(&R T A
HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from 1 January 2018 BEUHmEERSE155 0 —E—N\F—H—H
Contracts with Customers’ [EFPEHIMA
HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’ 1 January 2019 BEUBHREELFE 16 - NF—HA—H
[FHE ]

R EMFRTREERTER - $IMAAER| 2
BRI RAERBENR  AEEKE T AK
o

The Group will adopt the above new or revised standards,
amendments and interpretations to existing standards as
and when they become effective.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M B R I ()

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(i) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities,
introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new
impairment model for financial assets.

Impact

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and liabilities
and is expecting the following impact from the adoption of
the new standard on 1 January 2018:

The Group’s available-for-sale investment in investment fund
does not meet the criteria to be classified either as at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or at
amortised cost and HK$1,196,000 will have to be reclassified
to financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”).
There is no fair value gain/loss to be transferred from the
available-for-sale financial assets reserve to retained profits
on 1 January 2018.

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting for
financial liabilities, as the new requirements only affect
the accounting for financial liabilities that are designated
at fair value through profit or loss and the Group does not
have any such liabilities. The derecognition rules have
been transferred from HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement and have not been changed.

2. EEGTHERRAE (H)

(b) EFFBERz2EBRIKE (F)

(ii) [ ARERA 2 T BRI R 2 FE ()

BB EEREIN [T R

ﬁi’éﬁﬁ%iﬁi‘? RISl eMEE NS
MEBEZOE  FFERRIEERILSIAY
5¢@§+5£2%ﬁiﬁﬂﬂLxﬁﬁﬂéf?%ﬁﬂfﬁﬁ
EQ o

ye
AREEENHGMEERAM  LEH

R-ZZ—\F— A —BERAFTEAFE
ETIIRE

REBRESKREZHEERETKTE
PHEBEATEFAEBEZEKRA ([EA
FEFAHMEEmEA ) SIS HR A
HEIEE - ™1,196,0008 T BEFH D
BERAFEFABR (HQQWEDH\?E
m)HWEREE - R=ZTE—N\F—A—
H - MEEAAFEKS /)EETEILHQ—”
HEZeRMEER#BEERERERTN -

AEBEzeRBESTEERTEXE
Z ARIHCESERATEFAR
B/eRBESIEE  MASEEWELE
MZEaE - RIEBRBER S 8B/ ED
ARIEI (£ THE : BRKF=] A
LB o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(i) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

114

(Continued)
HKFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’ (Continued)
Impact (Continued)

In addition, the new impairment model requires the
recognition of impairment provisions based on expected
credit losses rather than only incurred credit losses as is the
case under HKAS 39. It applies to financial assets classified
at amortised cost, debt instruments measured at FVOCI,
contract assets under HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers, lease receivables, loan commitments
and certain financial guarantee contracts. Based on the
assessments undertaken to date, the Group expects an
immaterial impact in the loss allowance for trade debtors.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These are
expected to change the nature and extent of the Group’s
disclosures about its financial instruments particularly in the
year of the adoption of the new standard.

Date of adoption by the Group

Must be applied for financial years commencing on or
after 1 January 2018. The Group will apply the new rules
retrospectively from 1 January 2018, with the practical
expedients permitted under the standard. Comparatives for
2017 will not be restated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M B R I ()

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(i) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) has issued a new standard for the recognition of
revenue. This will replace HKAS 18 which covers contracts for
goods and services and HKAS 11 which covers construction
contracts. The new standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognised when control of a good or service
transfers to a customer. The standard permits either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach for the
adoption.

The management is undertaking a detailed assessment of
the impact of the above new rules on the Group’s financial
statements. The adoption of the above new rules is not
expected to have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years commencing on
or after 1 January 2018. At this stage, the Group does not
intend to adopt the standard before its effective date.

2. EEGTHERRAE (H)

(b) EFFBERz2EBRIKE (F)

(ii) [ ARERA 2 T BRI R 2 FE ()

BRI B ERE 155 [ E P EATHA

SHMAS([EBEHMAE])EEH
ﬁuﬁzm REFER o LMK EAS S
£RIFE185 (REERMRBE L)) MEH
SETERENS CRERESR) - FER|
BEEMRA AWK S @RS A 5l
HBRERPERER - Jtt/‘iﬁlJW HEEEY
FEAN SRS BB M 7 TV A

B TR JE IR IE B bl B AR RIS AN & [ B 7
ROZEBETHANE - NEBEERA
RN EEAREGE M BHRRE
REXRZE -

ERMBEREENFEIGHENR T~ N\F—
A— B a2 &R0 B BUF B A58 1R
E o RULMEER - AEBW MTEREEXN
B BRI SR % 22 A

REBRSEZERERAR —T—+HFFH | 115



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(i) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

116

(Continued)
HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being recognised on
the balance sheet, as the distinction between operating and
finance leases is removed. Under the new standard, an asset
(the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to
pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are short-
term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for
Group’s operating leases. As at the reporting date, the
Group has non-cancellable operating lease commitments
of HK$19,056,000 (see Note 26). However, the Group has
not yet determined to what extent these commitments will
result in the recognition of an asset and a liability for future
payments and how this will affect the Group’s profit and
classification of cash flows.

Some of the commitments may be covered by the exception
for short-term and low value leases and some commitments
may relate to arrangements that will not qualify as leases
under HKFRS 16.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the
Group does not intend to adopt the standard before its
effective date.
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(b) EFFBERz2EBRIKE (F)

(ii) [ ARERA 2 T BRI R 2 FE ()

BB L ERFE 165 [1HE )

ERENMEHEZRNZEREIUENG
AT BAFBHREENE165EFEB
FHRABNHEREERBRTER - R
BRI ER - NEE (HEEBEBNERE)
ke ESMEeEER  ERHR
EERERNELL -

AL B RRETREEARE -

ZEABFEFEAEELEHENSE
BE- RREBH - RNEBERTA B
4 FH B AHE 519,056,000 7T (R FT&E
26) o AT - ANEE MR E I FAEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M B R I ()

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(c) Application of business combination under common
control

Acquisition of subsidiaries

On 6 October 2017, the Company (the “Purchaser”), through
its wholly-owned subsidiaries, completed the acquisition
of the entire issued share capital of each of Great Wall
Pan Asia Asset Management Limited (R¥IRIEEEEIEHS
R A &) (the “First Acquired Company”) (together with its
respective subsidiaries, the “First Acquired Group”) and
Great Wall Pan Asia Corporate Finance Limited (& ¥ % op
A& AR A A]) (the “Second Acquired Company”), (together
with the First Acquired Group, the “Acquired Group”) (the
“Acquisitions”) from China Great Wall AMC (International)
Holdings Company Limited (FBI&#MEE(BEIERER D
A]) (the “Vendor”), an intermediate holding company of the
Company. The considerations of the Acquisitions for the
First Acquired Group and the Second Acquired Company
are HK$38,701,969 and HK$868,834 respectively. The
considerations were settled in cash on 6 October 2017.

The considerations of the Acquisitions recorded in the
consolidated financial statements represents the fair values
at the date of completion of the Acquisitions.

2. ERETTRERRBE (&)

(c) BRHAREESIT 2 RBE 6

WrBHTE 2 A

RZZB—tF+ARB XRRATEHR]
BRHZEWB AR TR AR BE RN EE
(B ZERBRQE (TEF ] (RARZ
Ak “"T)H&ﬁﬁﬁi}ﬁﬁaéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
RAA ([E—WBEAR]) CEREENB
RE GEIFE-WEEE]) REMIRE
BMEBERLR ([BE-WBLAD (ERE
—WEEE sECWESEE]) (KB
ZH]) REZEHEBTRA - £
SERFE_WBARZWBERARESD 5
#%38,701,9697& 7T [ 868,834 T - % &
REER-Z—LFTARNBURSEN -

KRB BRERESNEBEEERERK
BEER K AR FE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

2. EEGTHERRAE (H)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(c) ERHAREZEST 2 XBE 6 (&)

(c) Application of business combination under common

118

control (Continued)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

Upon completion of the Acquisitions, the Acquired Group
became the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. The
First Acquired Company is a company incorporated under
the laws of Hong Kong with limited liability and licensed by
the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (the
“SFC”) to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities) (restricted
by certain conditions), Type 4 (advising on securities) and
Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”). The Second Acquired Company is
a company incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong with
limited liability and licensed by the SFC to carry out Type 6
(advising on corporate finance) regulated activity under the
SFO.

As the Company is an indirect subsidiary of the Vendor, the
Acquisitions were accounted for as a business combination
under common control. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017, together with the comparative figures,
were prepared using the principles of merger accounting as
prescribed in Hong Kong Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger
Accounting for Common Control Combinations” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, as if the
Acquired Group had been combined with the Group from the
earliest date when the Acquired Group first came under the
control of the Vendor.

The following is a reconciliation of the effect arising from the
business combination under common control of the Acquired
Group on the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and the consolidated statement of financial position
of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 2. EEETTHRREE (&)
(Continued)

(c) Application of business combination under common (c) FEAHEZEFI T 2K &6 (&)
control (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) WEHE 2 a (1)
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income %’%’-Aéﬁ & E
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE—F—ANF+—H=1—HIFE

The Group Effect of business

(before business combination
combination  under common
under common control of the
control)  Acquired Group Consolidated
REE EREEE
(HEREZHIT  HEEST
2% Z%%GT}%
& BfAl) bz Aot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT T
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FRBEREEY
Revenue Wz 57158 34,549 91,707
Direct operating costs HEEERAR (41,971) (17532) (59,503)
Profit before tax TR & T 294,295 17,041 311,336
Income tax credit/(expenses) Fris#ides,/(Fx) 245 (3,862) (3,617)
Profit for the year from continuing RS EB 2 2 F AT
operations 294,540 13,179 307719
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS DRI SR
Praofit for the year from discontinued
operations BRI 2 2 F BN 1,408,732 - 1,408,732
Profit for the year 2ERF 1703,272 13,179 1716,451
Attributable to: A& IERES -
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZ SN 1702181 13179 1,715,360
Non-controlling interests FEE I R 1,091 = 1,091

1,708,272 13,179 1,716,451
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 2. EEETTHRREE (&)
(Continued)

(c) Application of business combination under common (c) FEAHEZEFI T 2K &6 (&)

control (Continued)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) WEHE 2 a (1)
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income meatEkER
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—F—+F1+_A=1—HIFFE
The Group Effect of business
(before business combination
combination  under common
under common control of the
control)  Acquired Group Consolidated
KEE CRBERE
(HEEHT HEEHT
ZEH ZEBAH
A BtAT) HEe At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
Revenue Yes 61,325 61,628 122,953
Direct operating costs BEREERAK (39,433) (38,828) (78,261)
Profit before tax FiRI AR 238,653 22,830 261,483
Income tax expenses i (7,973) (4,352) (12,325)
Profit for the year ZERF 230,680 18,478 249,158
Attributable to: AT BIBER
Owners of the Company AARHEBA 230,680 18,478 249,158
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

2. ERETTRERRBE (&)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
(c) Application of business combination under common (c) FEAHEZEFI T 2K &6 (&)
control (Continued)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) WEHE 2 a (1)
Consolidated statement of financial position mEMBERRR

At 31 December 2016 R-ZF—NFEf+=—H=+—H
Effect of
The Group business
(before business combination
combination under common
under common control of the
control)  Acquired Group Adjustments Consolidated
Bl
A&E SEHAR
(HRAEHT BT
LR FBak
aftan) i nE aft
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
(Note)
(Htt)
Investment properties BEME 1,560,500 - - 1,560,500
Prepayments, deposits BER ke
and other receivables Eftr eI 9,700 5,846 - 15,546
Cash and bank balances BeRRITES 88,387 41,068 - 129,455
Other liabilities less assets R EHEE (19,227) (7320) - (26,547)
Total assets less liabilities BEERAE 1,639,360 39,594 - 1,678,954
Share capital AR 156,775 30,560 (30,560) 156,775
Merger reserve At - - 30,560 30,560
Other reserves Eiti 695,677 (1,078) - 694,599
Retained profits REEF 786,908 10112 - 797,020
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ANARIEE AFE(EHER 1,639,360 39,594 - 1,678,954
Total equity fBEn 1,639,360 39,594 = 1,678,954
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M B R I ()

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 2. EEETTHRREE (&)

(Continued)

(c) Application of business combination under common (c) FEA R EEHI T 2 ¥ K& 6F (&)

control (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) WhERTE 22 A (#E)
Consolidated statement of financial position mEMBERRR
At 31 December 2017 R_E—+F1+_H=+—H
Effect of
The Group business
(before business combination
combination  under common
under common control of the
control)  Acquired Group Adjustments Consolidated
BB
r5E EERR
(HR2H BHTZ
TZEE EBaf
&t k-7 HE =i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BRI BRI
(Note)
(HzE)
Investments in the Acquired Group REEWEEE 39,571 - (39,571) -
Investment properties K& 1,781,500 - - 1,781,500
Accounts receivable JEYEE 6,433 2,553 - 8,986
Prepayment, deposit and other receivable BNER B2k
EftEWFUR 1,444,723 279 - 1,445,002
Cash and bank balances Be RiRfTEe 59,697 58,864 - 118,561
Loan from an intermediate holding company ~ REPEHERAR 2 EX (1,439,513) - - (1,439,513)
Other liabilities less assets EfBEREE (22,371) (2,061) - (24,432)
Total assets less liabilities BEERAG 1,870,040 59,635 (39,571) 1,890,104
Share capital R 156,775 30,560 (30,560) 156,775
Merger reserve At - - (9,011) (9,011)
Other reserves HftlE 695,677 485 - 696,162
Retained profits RE & 1,017,588 28,590 - 1,046,178
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ A2 RIEA AJE(H#E 1,870,040 59,635 (39,571) 1,890,104
Total equity s 1,870,040 59,635 (39,571) 1,890,104
Note: The adjustments represent adjustments for elimination of sk ZSABERBHEREXNEANAE - B
investment cost. The difference has been accounted for in EHORGEEREHRTNEHREE
the merger reserve in the consolidated statement of changes ABR o
in equity.
No other significant adjustments were made by the Group RNEEBAF AN FEEREG T 2 %5
during the year to the net assets and net profit or loss of EHEEAEENFEERBNSNEE
any entities as a result of the business combination under FREERAMEMERAREAERER
common control to achieve consistency of accounting R B — B -
policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

G 6 BB R I A

2.

()

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(d) Basis of consolidation

(i)

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December 2017.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Except for acquisitions under common control as described
in Note 2(c), the Group uses the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event
of liquidation are measured at either fair value or the
present ownership interests’ proportionate share in the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(d) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(i)

124

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

Interests in subsidiaries in the Company’s balance sheet are
accounted for at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
0 W Wk Mt (80

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 2. EEETTHRREE (&)
(Continued)

(d) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (d) &reE%E (E)

(i) Subsidiaries (Continued) (i) WELE (&)
Business combinations — common control combinations REE G — RS G
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the AV BREREERL H? %'J/\G?Z HE
financial statements of the combining entities in which the RBoMBHRE  BOZEEHEREHES
common control combination occurs as if they had been //\EE? HAEH HEARRE &6 -

combined from the date when the combining entities first
came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities are combined EHERBZEEFEDNRENT ZHER
using the existing book values from the controlling parties’ EEGHAR - EEsHEREEER 2
perspective. No amount is recognised in consideration RET - SRR S T R U R
for goodwill or excess of acquirers’ interest in the net AZAHANEE BERIBEGEATF
fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and B2 R Bm RS HREp AN 2 =58 -

contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of the
controlling party’s interests.

The consolidated income statement includes the results FeERaRPEAHERBERTEE2Y A
of each of the combining entities from the earliest date REBEHERSERLRZES B AR (A
presented or since the date when the combining entities REHERE) & MAZEHRE
first came under the common control, where there is a HlEfrz BEf -

shorter period, regardless of the date of the common control
combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial REVBHRRACLERESEEY BB INZ
statements are presented as if the entities had been BN AT RFF B R R (A
combined at the previous year end date or when they first BRREHERE) 56 -

came under common control, whichever is shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by those ZEERRERAS—HGHBER - 5 E
entities. All intra-group transactions, balances and BHTA £ E Wﬁﬁ X5~ BEREKER S
unrealised gains on transactions between combining entities BWARERW N &G -

are eliminated on consolidation.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration RGKRA - BREEXER aME @K
fees, costs of furnishing information to shareholders, costs RRHEENNER  BEAIRBIEBE
or losses incurred in combining operations of the previously HmEENKNAKERFRRAEHET
separate businesses, etc., incurred in relation to the common EFTERERZESIE FEBERIKA - R
control combination that is to be accounted for by using REFHFENZ L -

merger accounting is recognised as an expense in the period
in which itis incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
0 W Wk Mt (80

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(d) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(i) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

(iii) Associates

126

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group’s interests in associates include goodwill identified on
acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment loss.

| GREAT WALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017

2. EEGTHERRAE (H)

(d) REE%E (&)
(i) HERTE 2 A

EAKETBREEEHER  REBMNET
MREESRREEHEEANAFEE
atg o REENESHAEBRRAER -
BEBRERBEARIERZERR  8&

PERIEMEER A FERIEDNKREKR
18 o EHN - SE AT E fth 2 [ U o R AR B 5%

EREENEMARERENASEEE TR
HEEMEEXRBENARAALR - A8
ERELEEMEERSERNREE
HiofEEER o

(iii) B & 22 &)
BEQREASEHEREARNERED
HECEER . —RMs  BHA X

ER20%EE0%FIRERE 2B o B &
RAE|Z T AREIEARR - I F AR
MR ARERBE AR 2 Em B AN K
BROHM 2AE (BMBREARBERE
Ei8) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
0 W Wk Mt (80

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 2. EEETTHRREE (&)
(Continued)

(d) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (d) &reE%E (E)

(iii) Associates (Continued) (i) & 22 7] (&)
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses AEBEEEEE AR RKEE 2 Bx M
and post-acquisition movements in reserves of associates HEBE DA AARREE 2185 KRS
is included in the Group’s profit or loss and consolidated HA - RBRWEEEHNRERTEEL
reserves respectively. The cumulative post-acquisition FE o MAKEEEHE R ABEESENK
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the HBEAERBERARZER (BREMEM
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate BIKIFRUGRIE) - AEBTZE PR
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any e RIFHDESEEZERMEME ESK
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise RKEtE R RMER AT -

further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether ﬁﬁlﬁ/\ MEDBHETHERARZKRE
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the BEZAMNREEE - WEZER
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates &E/f = OREEE AR E QR KB FKIA
the amount of impairment as the difference between the HEEABE EZE  TRE2EKERPE
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value RETELBEAREE/&BF] ZHR
and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of losses/ g o
profits of associates’ in the statement of comprehensive
income.

(e) Segment reporting (e) P EBHE
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent EENHMCERANERETEIELER
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating REZANEBRE - - TBLERKRER
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who ERANEETHAN  ABEREENPZ
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing BRD IR FERTL

performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Group’s Chief Executive Officer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
0 W Wk Mt (80

2.

(f)
(i)

(ii)

128

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

I[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”), which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit or loss, except when
deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges.

Translation differences on investments in equity instruments
classified as available for sale financial assets are included
in other comprehensive income.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in foreign currency classified as available-for-sale are
analysed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security.

Translation differences related to changes in amortised cost
are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

2.

(f)

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies

(@

On consolidation, the balance sheet of subsidiaries and
associates denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date
whilst the statement of comprehensive income is translated
at an average rate. The resulting translation differences
are included in the translation reserve. When any of these
subsidiaries or associates is sold, any translation differences
previously recognised in respect of such subsidiary or
associate are reclassified to the profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate. Currency translation differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in
the ordinary course of the Group’s activities.

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when these
benefits can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

() on the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer provided that the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(i) newspaper advertisements and other services, based on
the period in which such services are rendered;

(iii) rental income, in the period in which the properties
are let out and on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms;

(iv) asset management and investment advisory related
services, based on the period in which such services are
rendered; and

(v) corporate investment advisory related services, based on
the period in which such services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

(h)

130

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than assets in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an
asset comprises its purchase price and any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Cost may also include transfers
from hedging reserve of any gains/losses on qualifying cash
flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant
and equipment. Assets in progress represents property,
plant and equipment under construction or instalment and is
not yet ready for use. They are transferred to the respective
category of property, plant and equipment when they are
ready for use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest becomes
available for its intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land
classified as finance lease and depreciation on other assets
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
as follows:

- Plant and machinery
- leasehold improvements

10 to 20 years

Shorter of remaining lease
term of 2 to 50 years or
useful life

3to 4 years

3to 10 years

3to 10 years

3to 10 years

- computer equipment
— office equipment

— office furniture

- others
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

G 6 BB R I A

2.

(h)

(i)

()

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

No depreciation/amortisation is provided for assets in
progress.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties that are held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Investment
properties are measured initially at costs, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at fair values, with changes in fair
values recognised in the profit or loss. The methods used to
determine the fair values of the investment properties are
set out in Note 6 to the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure on an investment property is
included in the asset’s carrying amount only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment and its fair
value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
accounting purposes.

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference
resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value
of this property at the date of transfer is recognised as a
movement in the asset revaluation reserve. Such movement
will not be subsequently recycled to profit or loss. However,
if a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the
gain is recognised in the profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

G 6 BB R I A

2.

()

(k)

132

()

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases,
net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged
to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
periods.

When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the
asset is included in the balance sheet based on the nature of
the asset.

Lease income on operating leases is recognised over the
term of the lease on a straight-line basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets
is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is
recognised to reduce the carrying amount of the assets to
their recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

G 6 BB R I A

2.

(0

(i)

()

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables, and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise ‘accounts and other receivables’ and ‘cash and
cash equivalents’ in the balance sheet.

Accounts receivable are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of accounts receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Accounts and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less. Interest income on bank deposits calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as part of finance
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2.

(0

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

134

Available-for-sale financial assets are investments in
equity and debt instruments that are designated in this
category. They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose of it
within 12 months at the end of the reporting period.

Purchases and sales of available-for-sale financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. They are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs and
subsequently carried at fair value at each balance sheet
date.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in a foreign currency and classified as available-for sale
are analysed between translation differences resulting
from changes in amortised cost of the securities and other
changes in the carrying amount of the securities. Translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of
the securities are recognised in the income statement, and
other changes in the carrying amount are recognised in the
other comprehensive income.

When available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently
sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the profit or loss as ‘gains
and losses from available-for-sale financial assets’.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as part of other income when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established. Interest on available-
for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of finance income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

() Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or
the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets
Loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that the Group will
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. When such evidence exists,
an allowance for impairment is established. The amount of
the allowance is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Impairment loss is recognised in the profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such
as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal
of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in
the profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

G 6 BB R I A

2.

0

()

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

136

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. For debt securities, if
any such evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available for sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated income statement. For
equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence
that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognised
in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement on equity instruments are
not reversed through the consolidated income statement.

(1)

(ii)

(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

2. EEGTHERRAE (H)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(m) Share capital (m) A

(n)

(o)

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. The par value of the
shares issued and fully paid is recognised in the share capital
account. Any excess of proceeds from a new issue of shares
(net of any incremental costs directly attributable to the new
issue) over the par value of the shares issued is recognised in
the share premium account.

Other payables

Other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Other payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, and
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount
can be made.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it
will then be recognised as a provision.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

2. EEGTHERRAE (H)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(p) Employee benefits (p) EERIZ

(i) ESEMEE

(i) Employee retirement schemes

138

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
operated four staff retirement schemes comprising a defined
benefit pension (“DB”) scheme, a defined contribution
pension (“DC”) scheme, a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
and a Top-up (“Top-up”) scheme for its employees, the assets
of which were held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds. The retirement schemes
were generally funded by payments from employees and
by the relevant Group companies. These schemes were
disposed together with the disposal of media business on 5
April 2016 except for the MPF Scheme.

The Group’s contributions to the DB scheme were made
based on the periodic recommendations of independent
qualified actuaries. Pension costs were assessed using
the projected unit credit method: the cost of providing
pensions was charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income so as to spread the regular cost over
the service lives of employees in accordance with the advice
of the actuaries who carry out a full valuation of the plans.
The pension obligation was measured as the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market
yields of Government securities which had similar terms as
the related liabilities.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan,
recognised in the income statement in employee benefit
expense, except where included in the cost of an asset,
reflected the increase in the defined benefit obligation
results from employee service in the current year, benefit
changes, curtailments and settlements.

Past-service costs were recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The net interest cost was calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost was included in
employee benefit expense in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
0 W Wk Mt (80

2.

(p)
(i)

(ii)

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Employee retirement schemes (Continued)

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustment and changes in actuarial assumptions were
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income
in the period in which they arose. The Group had no further
constructive obligation for post-employment benefits beyond
the contributions made.

Contributions to the DC, MPF and Top-up schemes were
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as incurred. For the DC and Top-up schemes,
the amounts charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income might be reduced by contributions
forfeited by employees who leave these schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.

Share-based compensation

The Company has a share option scheme which is a part of
remuneration policy with rewards determined based upon
the performance of the Group and individual employees.
The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of options is recognised as an expense in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
and credited to the employee share-based compensation
reserve. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted, taking into account the vesting conditions.
At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to be vested, and
the impact taken to the profit or loss, and corresponding
adjustment to the employee share-based compensation
reserve.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital and share
premium when the options are exercised.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in
the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value
of employee services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity accounts.

All the remaining share options were either exercised or
lapsed upon the disposal of media business on 5 April 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Current and deferred income tax

140

Income tax expense is the aggregate amount included in
the determination of profit or loss for the year in respect of
current tax and deferred tax.

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

G 6 BB R I A

2.

()

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

()

(s)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders, or directors, where appropriate.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographic
area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the income statement, which
comprises the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation and the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s) constituting the
discontinued operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

G 6 BB R I A

3.

(a)

()

Critical accounting estimates and judgement

Management are required to exercise significant estimates
and judgments, which are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, in the selection and
application of accounting principles.

Fair value of investment properties

The valuation of investment properties is performed in
accordance with the “Valuation Standards on Valuation
of Properties” published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. The valuation is reviewed semi-annually by
qualified valuers by considering the information from a
variety of sources including but not limited to:

() comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market; and

(i) rental income derived from the existing tenancies with
due provision for any reversionary income potential.

The fair value of investment properties is determined by
using valuation technique. Details of the judgement and
assumptions have been disclosed in Note 6.

Changes to the assumptions used in deriving the valuation
could have a significant risk of causing material adjustment
to the carrying amounts in the balance sheet.

(b) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

142

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges
for its property, plant and equipment. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. The depreciation for future periods are adjusted if
there are material changes from previous estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

4. Revenue and segment information 4 WK EHER

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) of the Group, who reviews
the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. The Company’s management has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The Group has two reportable segments, property investment
and financial services, for the year ended 31 December
2017, while it had three reportable segments: newspaper,
magazine and property investment for the year ended 31
December 2016.

Property investment segment holds various commercial and
industrial properties in Hong Kong. It derives revenue through
leasing out its properties.

Financial services segment holds licences to carry out Type
1 (dealing in securities) (restricted by certain conditions),
Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities
under the SFO.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, Newspaper segment
was engaged in the publication of South China Morning Post,
Sunday Morning Post and other related print and digital
publications. It derived its revenue mainly from advertising
and sales of newspapers. Magazine segment was engaged
in the publication of various magazines in Chinese and
English language and related print and digital publications.
Its revenue was derived from advertising and sales of
magazines. Both Newspaper and Magazine segments were
classified as discontinued operations. As the sale of media
business was completed on 5 April 2016, the revenue and
results of operations of Newspaper and Magazine segments
in 2016 only covered their results for the period from 1
January 2016 to 5 April 2016.
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G 6 BB R I A

4,

144

()

Revenue and segment information (Continued)

The chief operating decision-maker assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on profit or
loss after tax. The Group considers that the measurement
principles for profit or loss after tax are consistent with those
used in measuring the corresponding amounts in the Group’s
financial statements. Hence, profit or loss after tax is used
for reporting segment profit or loss.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as those described in the summary of significant
accounting policies except that interest in the profit or loss
of an associate is accounted for on the basis of dividend
received or receivable in segment profit or loss while such
interest is accounted for under the equity method in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business
units that offer different products and services. They are
managed separately because each business requires
different marketing strategies. Transactions between
reportable segments are accounted for on arm’s length
basis.

Revenue for 2017 consists of revenue from property
investment and financial services segments.

Revenue of continuing and discontinued operations for 2016
consisted of revenue from all of the Group’s then reportable
segments, which comprised newspaper and magazine,
up to the date of disposal of media business as described
above, property investment and financial services as well as
other segments whose contributions to the Group’s revenue
and profit or loss are below the quantitative threshold for
separate disclosures. The total revenue of continuing and
discontinued operations for the year ended 31 December
2017 and 2016 were HK$122,953,000 and HK$302,318,000
respectively. The other segment mainly includes expenses
incurred by the Company.

Substantially all the activities of the Group are based in
Hong Kong and below is segment information by reportable
segments:

4,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

4. WEKRDEBER (&)
(a) AT E D EEE

4. Revenue and segment information (Continued)

(a) Reportable segment profit or loss

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—tF+-HA=+—-HLFE
Continuing operations
BESEEY
Property Financial
investment services Others Total
NERE SRRH Hitr st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BETT BETR BT
Revenue from external customers REF 2 Wz 61,325 61,628 - 122,953
Profit/(loss) for reportable and EEE e
other segments BF /(B8) 261,208 18,478 (30,124) 249,562
Net finance income/(cost) BBBA/(RA) 558 1 30 (3,846) (3,805)
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH (279) (363) (1,014) (1,656)
Income tax FiSH (7973) (4,352) - (12,325)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 (restated) HE-_T—R"E+A=+—RHLFE
(&&E75)
Continuing operations (Restated) Discontinued operations
RETERE (FE5) BEREEESH
Property  Financial
investment  services  Others Total Newspaper Magazine  Others Sub-total Total
(Restated) (Restated)
WERE  SRRE At o i 553 Bt Gt a5t
(&#53)) (&53))
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HKEO00  HK$000
AETT BT BT AT AETn A%t BT AT A%t
Total segment revenue PEEkE 57844 34549 - 9233 152,739 58,254 1,762 212,755 305,148
Inter-segment revenue AEE Y (686) - - (686) (21) (2,064 (B9 (2144  (2830)
Revenue from extemal customers  SREE 2z 57058 34549 - 907 1718 58190 1703 210611 302318
Profit/(loss) for reportable and AIHRE RE 7 2
other segments B /(B BEH8 19079 7596 279091 (18149) 532 (13 (13120) 265971
Finance income BB - 24 o8 1,002 507 - - 507 1,509
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH (1552 (335) - (1887) - - - - (1887)
Income tax it U5 (3862) - 3617 (1343  (930) - QM) (B8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

4. Revenue and segment information (Continued) 4. W& K28 &R (&)

(b) Reportable segment information (b) AT E D WHEHR
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—tF+-HA=+—-HLFE
Continuing operations
BEEERK
Property Financial
investment services Others Total
NERE ERERH Afts ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BRI AR
Capital expenditure BRRx 4,302 203 - 4,505
For the year ended 31 December 2016 (restated) HE-_ST—XRNE+-_A=+—HILEE
(fe&75)
Continuing operations (Restated) Discontinued operations
REEELE (RE)) BRIHEESH
Property  Financial
investment  services Others  Sub-total  Newspaper  Magazine Others  Sub-total Total
(Restated) (Restated)
NERE  SREHK b it §2 5 it it a3t
(&=31) (5 &5)

HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSDOO  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKS000
AT BETn A%Tn AETr  AMTr BT AT AT BBt
Capital expenditure BRI 1778 - -8 1% MY ST 11,249
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

4. Revenue and segment information (Continued) 4. W& K28 &R (&)

(c) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or lossto  (c) AI ¥ &2 iR m A2 F B F#H IRK
profit for the year

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t+-RLEE
2017 2016
“E-t% “TRE
Total-
Continuing Continuing Discontinued
operations operations operations
BERE & BR&LE Total
E3 ek mesxh b &t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AETT BETT BETT
(Restated)
(8=51)
Profit/{loss) for reportable segments AREHHEF / (Bi8) 279,686 271,497 (12,807) 258,690
(Loss)/profit for other segments EtbAE (B8)/ BF (30,124) 7,594 (313) 7,281
249,562 279,091 (13,120) 265,971
Reconciling items: YA -
Elimination of inter-segment transactions DR 5 L - (122) 122 -
Share of losses of associates under equity REER e ARGEE
method of accounting ARIEE (404) (1,339) (1) (1,340)
Gain on disposal of asset held for sale HEREFEEERE - 30,089 - 30,089
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations HERRIHEERBKE - = 1421731 1421731
(404) 28,628 1,421,852 1,450,480
Profit for the year 2ERF| 249,158 307,719 1,408,732 1,716,451
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

5. Property, plant and equipment 5. ¥I% - HERRE
Leasehold Other
and and Leasehold Fixed
buildings Plant&  Computer Office Office Improvement Assets  Assetsin

&4  machinery Equipment Fouipment  Fumitre  HEWE  EfET  progess Total

BT KEREM EREE BAZRE FAERE  MEIR B REE 3
HKS000 ~ HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKOOD  HKE0OD  HKSO000
AETT  ALTn BT Afn  AbTn A%t BEfr BT AT

At 1 January 2016, R=%—E-F-A
as previously reported (nRI2%)
Cost AR 115,827 106 2122 2467 203 = 12,326 662 133,713
Accumulated depreciation and ZENER
impairment losses HEEE (26,210) (68) (2,008) (1,170 (117) - (7.006) - (36,759)
Net book valueat 1 January 2016, R=E-7E-F-A
as previously reported LIEHFE (N2H) 89617 38 2% 1297 8 - 5,230 662 96,954
Acquisition of the Acquired Group (Note 2(c) WEE R IS £ 3 (F:2 () - - - 09 184 197 - - 1590
Net book value at 1 January 2016, R=Z—E-f-H
s restated A (%) 80617 3 2 1,506 270 1,197 5,230 662 9854
Opening net book value EEEFE 89617 38 2% 1,506 0 1,197 5,230 662 98 544
Additions AE = = - 77 = = 483 1,295 1,855
Depreciation i (923) @) (12 (299) (59) (244) (347) = (1,887)
Revaluation upon transfer to BRERENER
investment properties LEfh 307,948 - - - - - - - 307948
Transfer to investment properties ERERENE (396,642) (39) - - - - (7329) - (404000
Reclassification E v - - - - - - 1,957 (1957) -
Closing net book value EXGEEE = - 12 1,084 m 953 - - 2460
At31 December 2016, RZE—RE+-A=1-A
as previously reported (mai2)
Cost A = = 2122 2467 203 = = = 4,792
Accumulated depreciation and ZENER
impairment losses EEE - - (2,110 (1.417) (137) - - - (3,664)
Netbookvalue at 31 December 2016,  R=F—~E+-A=1-R
as previously reported LETHE (MAI28) - - 12 1,050 66 - - - 1128
Acquisition of the Acquired Group (Note 2(c) B2 WEE£3 (K3t 2(0) - - - 24 145 93 - - 1332
Net book value at 31 December 2016, ~ RZE—FT-A=1-H
as restated LA (%) = - 12 1,084 2 93 - - 2,460
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M B R I ()

5. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

5. W% - #EKRE (F)

Leasehold
Computer Office Office  Improvement
Equipment  Equipment Furniture nEnE Total
BlRE  BOZRE  BOZRR REIR a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
BT YT BT BT 8T
At January 2017, as previously reported R=Z-tF—F-A (WHi2H)
Cost A 2122 2,467 203 - 4792
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment losses ~ ZIETE RAERE (210) (1417) (137) - (3,664)
Net book value at 1 January 2017, RZE—t5-B-R/EE%E
as previously reported (A2 %) 12 1,050 66 - 1128
Acquisition of the Acquired Group (Note 2(c)) WEEkESE (i) - 234 145 953 1332
Net book value at 1 January 2017, RZE—tE-A-R/KR5E
as restated (%)) 12 1284 M 953 2,460
Opening net book value, as restated ENRRE (9E5) 12 1,284 M 953 2,460
Additions hE - 391 610 3,504 4,505
Depreciation it (12) (340) (105) (1/199) (1,656)
Closing net book value FREDFE - 1,335 716 3,258 5,309
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+E+-f=1-H
Cost A 2122 3,182 1,009 4721 11,034
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses ~ 2R E REER (2122) (1847) (203) (1,463) (5,725)
Net book value at 31 December 2017 RZE—tE+-R=1-Az
HREFE - 1,335 716 3,258 5,309
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

6. Investment properties 6. REWE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T PEEET T
At 1 January n—H—H 1,560,500 1,923,400
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EERAYE - WS REE - 404,000
Fair value gain NP ERE 221,000 118,100
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—KMEAR - (885,000)
At 31 December MW+—A=+—H 1,781,500 1,560,500

For the year ended 31 December 2017, direct operating
expenses of HK$12,458,000 (2016: HK$13,797,000) arising
from investment properties that generated rental income
and no direct operating expense arising from investment
properties that did not generate rental income (2016:
HK$3,794,000), were charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

Armada Property Investment Limited (now known as “Great
Wall Pan Asia Property Investment Limited RIRIR T2 B %%
EABRAR]), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, had
entered into an agreement for the sale of the entire issued
share capital of Coastline International Limited, which was
the then wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group and held
the vacant property at Clear Water Bay, to Paulton Global
Limited, an independent third party on 2 September 2016 for
cash consideration of HK$990 million. The transaction had
been completed on 28 September 2016.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s total future minimum
rental receivables under non-cancelable operating leases for

HE-_ZE—+E+=-_A=+—HIEE
mEETEURRENRBELEHASBAZ
REMHES| Bz BEREKL LR X 12,458,000
BT (ZF — /N F :13,797,000% 7T)
&EET\FE%E%M&)\Z#Eﬁ%¥$EﬁEﬁ%|ﬁ
BEELERSI (ZT—/NF : 3,794,000
JT) °

A& B 2 & K B A 5lArmada Property
Investment Limited (3784 [ Great Wall
Pan Asia Property Investment Limited &
WRDEERERRAAL ERZZF—RN
FNA BB E = FPaulton Global
Limiteds] 3 1 #% A H & MCoastline
International Limited®) & %8 B 3 17 i%
A BEREAI0EEB T ° Coastline
International LimitedE K AXRNEB M2
BEfBAR WHRIBKEEBEREZEY
¥ o ZERGER-ZE—FNFNLAZFTAN
HEAX o

RZB—+F+_A=+—H A5ER
BEREMFEZ AR MEEEHEZRK

its investment properties are as follows: RIERERFKBEEENT
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$000
BT T BB T
Not later than one year NE—F 40,237 46,129
Later than one year but not later than five years ~ HB@—FETBBEF 13,501 40,613
53,738 86,742
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

6. Investment properties (Continued) 6. REWE (&)
Particulars of investment properties held by the Group as at RZTE—+tFRZFE—RNF+_A=+—
31 December 2017 and 2016: AARKEMFREDNEFS
Property Type Lease term
LE 3 5l A
(i) 20th and 21st Floors and Car Parking Spaces Nos. 21, 22 and 23 Offices and car parking Long
on 4th Floor, Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Central, spaces
Hong Kong
ERRRERB12FERRITHO20R2MERMEZ21 « 22823 WAERRHEN R
SROREfL
(i) Ground and 1st Floors, Block B, Ko Fai Industrial Building, 7 Ko Workshop unit Medium
Fai Road, Yau Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BAENERESEE/F B LEAEBREM R 1E THE A
(iii) The lobby on G/F and the front (or southern) portions of the 1st,  Office and retail shop Medium

2nd and 3rd Floors including the staircase therein leading up

to the 3rd Floor and the lift therein serving the 1st, 2nd and 3rd

Floors only and portion of the canopy on the 1st Floor level, Yue

King Building, 26, 26A, 27, 28, 29 & 30 Canal Road West, 1-7

Leighton Road and 41-47 Morrison Hill Road, Wanchai, Hong

Kong

EBEFREEF26 - 26A ~ 27 ~ 28~ 29/k305%  BEB1ZE75: MHLAERTERE A
MREBE BN ZFRMRE T RE R - 2R3 2 ATE (3%

FER) (BIE@RME SR RARK - 2R3 2 THIEH) - AR

Hp L=
(iv) 8th Floor of Block C, Sea View Estate, 8 Watson Road, North  Industrial building Medium
Point, Hong Kong
Bt AREEESE= NECESE THKNE HhHR
Investment properties comprise: REMEBLE
2017 2016
—E—+EF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Long term leasehold (not less than 50 years) RHRAG (TR A+F) 999,000 867,000
Medium term leasehold (less than 50 years FRHATRA (DRAT+EF
but not less than 10 years) BRDR+5) 782,500 693,500
1,781,500 1,560,500
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
0 W Wk Mt (80

6. Investment properties (Continued) . REWE (&)
Fair value measurements using significant ERAERFTABEEGARENDFE
unobservable inputs st EE
Office
Buildings Industrial
and and other
retailshop  properties
WAKE IXR Total
REERE Hitn 3 #ast
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
AT AT AT
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R~"E—H—H 789,400 1,134,000 1,923,400
Transfer from property, plantand equipment BB B - B L HRE 404,000 - 404,000
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—KWER = (885,000) (885,000)
Fair value gain - unrealised NHEKRE — RER 108,600 9,500 118,100
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—X~"F+-_A=1+—H 1,302,000 258,500 1,560,500
At 1 January 2017 R-E—t&—F—H 1,302,000 258500 1,560,500
Fair value gain - unrealised N ERE — KEHR 177,000 44,000 221,000
At 31 December 2017 RN_E—+F+_-_A=1+—H 1,479,000 302,800 1,781,500
Valuation processes of the Group AEEWNEERRE
The Group's investment properties were revalued at 31 AEENKEEYEER T —tF R =_ZF

152

December 2017 and 2016 by independent professionally
qualified valuers, Cushman & Wakefield Limited, who hold
a recognised relevant professional qualification and have
recent experience in the locations and segments of the
investment properties valued. For all investment properties,
their current valuations are based on the highest and best
use. The Group’s finance department includes a team that
review the valuations performed by the independent valuers
for financial reporting purposes. The revaluation gains or
losses are shown as “Fair value gain or loss on investment
properties” in the income statement.

At each financial year end the finance department:

- verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation
report;

- assesses property valuation movements when compared
to the prior year valuation report;

« holds discussions with the independent valuer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
0 W Wk Mt (80

6. Investment properties (Continued) 6. REWE (&)

Valuation techniques

Fair values of the office buildings, retail shop and industrial
properties are derived using the income capitalisation
approach. The income capitalisation approach is based on
the capitalisation of the net income and reversionary income
potential by adopting appropriate capitalisation rates,
which are derived from actual location, size and quality of
the properties and taking into account market data at the
valuation date. The prevailing market rents adopted in the
valuation have reference to the actual location, type and
quality of the properties and supported by the terms of any
existing lease, other contracts or external evidence such as
current market rents for similar properties.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during
the year.

Significant inputs used to determine fair value

Capitalisation rates are estimated by management, after
consultation with valuers based on the risk profile of the
properties being valued. The higher the rates, the lower
the fair value. At 31 December 2017, capitalisation rates of
2.75% to 4% (2016: 2.75% to 4.25%) are used in the income
capitalisation approach for the retail shop, office buildings
and industrial properties.

Rental rates are estimated based on recent lettings of
HK$110 psf (2016: HK$100 psf), HK$36 psf to HK$92.8 psf
(2016: HK$32 psf to HK$80 psf) and HK$12.5 psf to HK$26.5
psf (2016: HK$11 psf to HK$23 psf) for the retail shop, office
buildings and industrial properties respectively. The lower
the rents, the lower the fair value.

fh{E7 %
MoRE ZEERIEMENRFERE

L€ ,éf$1t/?ﬂﬁ o W B ARMET A
RRABEE 2 BN R B WA FER R &
EERBBATAERN MG L - MEARE
HERDRENENERGE REREE
WEREMEER 2T HSRIEFE - REES
R EHSEHEHSERBYENERL
E BAUNEGEETF YREMREHED
iRk~ A A RIMEF RIBUDE N
B A5 EEEHF -

RER - [HEDELEEE -

BEEAFENEERARE

BEARELE R RERE EEARAGEMEBIR
FritEYENRERERRMEE o kXl
& AFEIEE R_T—+tF+=A
=+—HB KARABR G EBENS
EE - RARKEBRITEMEFA2.75%FE
4% (ZZF—78F 1 2.75% 2 4.25%)H & A
b= -

HEDREBETEE WARKERTEME
AR AESFEFRIIBT(ZE—X
F: FFHFRI00ET) EFE%%;‘%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M B R I ()

7. Interests in subsidiaries

Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 30 to

the financial statements.

8. Investmentin associates

7. RIE LRz

TEMB AR FEHNIMEHRKRMTEIO0

8. RMELQR 2RE

2017 2016
S . e
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Associates kNG
Share of net assets other than goodwill: EIFEE (TBRERE)
Unlisted shares IE TS 2,607 3,011
Amounts due to associates JE B X RO (1,054) (2,228)

The amounts due to associates are unsecured and interest-
free. Details of the principal associates are set out in Note 30 =

to the financial statements.

Following the Group’s disposal of interests in The Post
Publishing Public Company Limited in 2016, the remaining
investment in associates that are accounted for using the
equity method are, in the opinion of the Directors, individually
immaterial to the Group. The aggregate amount of the
Group’s share of losses of those associates is HK$404,000

(2016: HK$1,339,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M B R I ()

9. Available-for-sale financial asset

9. THHEZERMEE

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

At market value BTh{E BT T BETIT

Investment in fund, unlisted in the
People’s Republic of China

REARKAMBEIE EHESZIRE

1,196

The above investment has been measured at fair value as at
31 December 2017, by the level 3 in the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value treatment is categorised:

R EER = E—+tF+-_A=+—H
BAFEREZFZIRAFETE  MAF

BRI DHE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1R H2R 3R st
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BT BY¥Tr BYTR

Available-for-sale financialasset TAtHECEREE

Investment in fund HERE

- - 1,196 1,

196

There was no transfer between levels during the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016.

(i) Valuation of financial instruments with
unobservable inputs

The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning
balance to the ending balance for fair value measurement in
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

REE_T—+tFF_FT—R"F+_-_H=

+— B L FEARRED RS -

() BEEFAERAAHENERTIAN

fH{E

TRINE R FERE T UAEIRAFEFE

FUEHREFREHNE IR -

2017

—E—+tF

HK$°000

BT T

Opening balance FHEEER -
Acquisition Wi 1,196
Closing balance FRER 1,196
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

9. Available-for-sale financial asset (Continued)

(i) Valuation of financial instruments with

9. THHEZEHEE (&)
() BEFTERRARENERIAN

unobservable inputs (Continued) &8 (&)
Valuation Unobservable
Investment Fair value Technique inputs Rate/Range
R&E DNEE  HESE FABR@AARE 6l EE
HK$°000
BT T
Available-for-sale financial asset 1,196 Recent transaction N/A N/A
— Investment in fund price N3 N3
AHEreREE — EeRE AR 5B

The available-for-sale financial asset under level 3 fair
value measurement represents the investment in limited
partnership and is not traded in the active market. The
directors have determined that the recent transaction price
represents fair value at the end of the reporting period for
the investment in limited partnership as the investment was
purchased close to year end and therefore, the purchase
cost approximates the fair value as at 31 December 2017.

10.Accounts receivable

The Group allows an average credit period of 1 to 60 days to
its customers and an ageing analysis of accounts receivable
is as follows:

FEIRAFEFERTHAIRLEZERE
ERNERABZIKE  BXIFRERT
BR5 BEERR HRNZBRERELF
EBA IR ZERRBERAR 2K
ERBEMROAFE AR -_F—+t
FH+ZA=1+—8 BEXKNEQFEHR

++

Eo

JE WK

AEEGETHEEPHNFHERHERAS—H
EXRTH - BURFIRZREDHAT

2017 2016
—EB—+tF NS

Balance Percentage Balance Percentage
o2 [ERi4 KR ANt
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %

BT BT T

(Restated)

(f&5)
Current RIER 6,170 68.6% 1,544 41.7%
Less than 30 days past due BELR =18 553 6.2% 1,006 271%
31 to 60 days past due BE=+—HZ=/"1H 553 6.2% 1,157 31.2%
61 to 90 days past due BEIN+—HBZEATH 855 9.5% - -
Over 90 days past due BEIZR TR 855 9.5% - -
Total FEE 8,986 100.0% 3,707 100.0%

156

Accounts receivable that are neither past due nor impaired
amounted to HK$6,170,000 (2016 restated: HK$1,544,000).
These balances relate to a wide range of customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

10.Accounts receivable (Continued) 10.FE W FRIE (48])
Accounts receivable past due but not impaired represent EaEERNRBEZEKRFIBEREASE
balances that the Group considered to be fully recoverable BIBAE KRB RAIEBUWE 2 &k o Z
based on past experience. A portion of these balances ZEBRBHBER IR SRS IRITER
is secured by cash deposit placed by customers or bank TERIEIR o
guarantees.
As of 31 December 2017, none of the accounts receivable HE-_ZT—tF+-_A=1+—HAHEERA
were impaired (2016: Nil). There is no provision as of 31 TEZJ,EWMIE (ZZE—RF:8) - HZE
December 2017 (2016: Nil). — Rt F T A=t HUEFELEE

“TRE &\
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

11.Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

158

As at 31 December 2017, the balance included mainly
deposits of HK$1,435,668,000 paid for investment in a joint
venture.

On 28 November 2017, GWPA Property | Holding Limited
(“GWPA Property”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the shareholders agreement (which
was amended and restated on 15 February 2018 and 12
April 2018 respectively) with other investors regarding the
formation of a joint venture, of which GWPA Property agreed
to subscribe for 29.9% of class A ordinary shares of the joint
venture. The total contribution agreed to be contributed by
GWPA Property (other than the advance as described below)
would be up to HK$3,192,000,000, and as at the date of
this annual report, the actual contribution paid to the joint
venture by GWPA Property was HK$3,123,382,161. The
joint venture group had contracted to purchase a portfolio
of assets comprising 17 diversified commercial properties
and shopping centres, plazas and carparks across Hong
Kong (the “Portfolio Assets”). Completion of the joint venture
investment by GWPA Property took place on 22 February
2018. Completion of the purchase of the Portfolio Assets by
the joint venture group took place on 28 February 2018.

Under the said shareholders agreement, GWPA Property also
agreed to provide an interest-free advance of not more than
HK$743,000,000 to the joint venture in consideration of the
grant of a call option under which GWPA Property is entitled
to exercise such option to purchase all the equity interests
in the relevant intermediate holding company of the joint
venture group holding interests in one of the Portfolio Asset,
and as at the date of this annual report, the actual amount of
the advance provided to the joint venture by GWPA Property
was HK$725,051,488.

Management considers GWPA Property’s investment in the
joint venture as an investment in an associate.
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R—ZFE—+F+=-_A=+—H " &
FTERERRESELERAIE NS
1,435,668,000/8 JT °

R—ZZT—+&F+—A=+/\H GWPA
Property | Holding Limited ([GWPA
Property ) (KRGl 22 &EWEBRF) H
PX L& & A BB E M 18 &8 & 5T S IR R 1%
Z(EIHIR=ZZE—N\EF-_A+HAAKE=
TE-NFHNA+-HEITRER) ' Bt
GWPA PropertyE RIZ R A & 2 alAKE
A 229.9% © GWPA Property[ &%
AZEEREE (BRT X8RN &% 5B
3,192,000,0007% JT » M A 2~ F ¥k B Hf
GWPA PropertyBEB S & & R RIAEE
B 33,123,382,161 BT - &2 B
EWRERESMHREBMNI7TIEZ TLE
MEARBYRL BEREESNAS
BiE ([BAEE]) - GWPA PropertyB 1

T \FZAZ+ZHEKAERRE
B 525NN \F=-A=+/\H
ERKEBESEE -

R Eat B E %= E T © GWPA Property
NEERAEGEAAREEZERTZR
743,000,000/8 T 2 B3 AMEREHR
BEEREZRE - It - GWPA Property
BRTEEHRERERNAEEERERS
HEeBEERERP —BHEEZ#NERTE
ERARINFAAERE  MARARFERBE -
GWPA PropertyER A& & A ARt a9 &
N A725,051,48878 7T ©

EIEE R AGWPA Propertyl& B4 & QA
RR—REBERRZIRE -



LSS S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S
/////////////////////////////////////
S S S S SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS

SSLL LSS LSS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M B R I ()

12.Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax liabilities are calculated in full on
temporary differences under the liability method.

12 EEFREH

EEFSHRAGBRAABEEINERERE

2B -

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Deferred income tax FRIEFTIS TR 1,814 1,574

The movement on the deferred income tax liabilities account EFFERa@EE s EHnT

is as follows:
2017 2016
—E2—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$000
BT T BT
At 1 January m—A—H 1,574 17,959
Charged/(credited) to profit for the year ANF[E 8 ZFIHER (Gt A) 240 (6,728)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMBEAF] - (9,657)
At 31 December »+—A=+—8 1,814 1,674
RBBEZERERAG —T—+FF®m | 159
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

12.Deferred income tax (Continued) 12 BEFTBH (5])
The movements in deferred income tax liabilities and assets BEFREHAaBEREE CREHRRA -
(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation BRDEER 2 &8R) RFEAZEENT

jurisdiction) during the year are as follows:

Accelerated tax Fair value gains on
depreciation properties Total
MERERE IEREL 6 -
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFEHER E-tF T ZB-tf T F Bt T %

HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000
AR BETT  ABTn  BETR  ARTn BETR

At 1 January R—A—H 1,574 17,898 - 6,465 1,574 24,363
Charged/(credited) to profit REFBBFIMR
for the year (EA) 240 19 - (6,465) 240 (6,446)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RHBAA - (16,343) - - - (16,343)
At 31 December WrZA=t-H 1,814 1574 - - 1,814 1574
Tax losses
BIEEE
2017 2016
Deferred income tax assets ELEFRERERE —E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
At 1 January R—HA—H - (6,404)
Credited to profit for the year REFETARF - (282)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—KMBAA - 6,686
At 31 December R+=—A=+—~” - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

12.Deferred income tax (Continued) 12 EEFER (8)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry EEHEEE CHIABEMAR 2 MENRR
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related ARt @B RARRERNBANRERE - &
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The EAMEMEETSWER - 74»‘%@72*%
Group has unrecognised tax losses of HK$9,231,000 (2016: FAYEER R 2R FE R B WA K 88 2 R HERE
HK$9,080,000) to carry forward against future taxable TH &5 18 /49,231,000 7T (= ZF — X ¢
income and the expiry dates of these tax losses are shown as 9,080,000 7)) Kk EHIEEE 2 Eim B
follows: BN -
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
After the fifth year FRER 9,231 9,080
9,231 9,080

13.Loan from an intermediate holding company 13.REFPEZERARZER

During the year, an intermediate holding company, China MM AT RER - PREIRBEE
Great Wall AMC (International) Holdings Company Limited, (BIFR) ERER AR (—KRPEZERAFR)
has agreed to provide loan facilities up to HK$4,130,000,000 B E IR HE1E4,130,000,0008 TR E R
for financing the Group’s investment in a joint venture as BE  URAEERRENR—REERFR
described in Note 11. As at 31 December 2017, the Group HEL RZTE—+F+A=+—8"
has drawn down HK$1,435,668,000. A& E 2 $RER1,435,668,000# 7T ©

The loan from an intermediate holding company is REFREIERARZER M/%TE.:HE ﬂ
denominated in HK$, interest bearing at Hong Kong ERBABRITRAEFREFEIN.9% » WA
Interbank Offered Rate plus 1.9% and is repayable by R-E-_—F+—ARI28EE - K@_J
November 2022. The directors of the Company consider the ESRAERE— ﬂi?ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ’(ﬂﬁ - B
loan is on normal commercial terms. The carrying value of R EREBEEEQNTEES

the loan approximates its fair value.

14.0ther payables and accrued liabilities 14 HitERRERESEE
The balance mainly includes rental received in advance EHREIEZEBEBER—BHEHPEZY
from one of the tenants of approximately HK$810,000 810,000/ 7T (= E — /X F : 810,000/
(2016: HK$810,000), deposits received from tenants of Jt) - ERHEFZ 411,962,000/ 7T (=
approximately HK$11,962,000 (2016: HK$11,379,000) T—7%F 11,379,000 L) REFTEE
and accrued liabilities of HK$10,128,000 (2016 restated: 10,128, 0008 T (ZE — R EKE I
HK$9,581,000). 9,581,000/ 7T) °

REBRTEZERERAR —T—HFFH | 161
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

15.Share capital 15. & A
2017 2016
ZE—+tF “TRF
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares
e x| R ER %
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Authorised: EIE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each ~ BREE0.107 7.2 L&A 5,000,000,000 500,000 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAE -
Opening balance FEE 1,567,745,596 156,775 1,561,057,596 156,106
Shares issued under share option  BEHEIREA 21217 21D
scheme (Note) (H1it) - - 6,688,000 669
Ending balance FRER 1,567,745,596 156,775 1,567,745,596 156,775
Note: MizE -
Pursuant to the employee share option scheme of the Group, BEASEZ EEBRESS REE_F

6,688,000 options were exercised during the year ended 31 —A~FTZHA=+—HI1:%/56,688,0001) &

December 2016, resulting in the equal number of shares being
issued with cash proceeds of HK$9,924,992. Since the media
business was sold to Alibaba Investment Limited on 5 April 2016, all
remaining share options were lapsed on that day and there were no
outstanding options under the scheme as at 31 December 2016 and
2017.

16.Reserves

(a) Group

162

Movements of the Group’s reserves for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016 are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 109.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the excess
of the nominal value of the shares of subsidiaries acquired
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor during the Group reorganisation in 1990,
less dividend distributions.

Capital reserve represented gain on partial disposal of a
subsidiary without losing control, and was transferred to
retained profits in 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M B R I ()

16.Reserves (Continued)

(a) Group (Continued)

The Group’s other reserves consist of the following

16.f# % (%)
(a) &H (&)

AEBEMFHBRATAEAXE D

components:
Employee
share-
based
Investment Asset compensation
revaluation revaluation reserve
reserve  reserve Translation  BEXfT  Capital
REEf; EEEff  reseve  EEME  reserve Total
i i EXRE R ERRE @t
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000
AETT B¥Tn AT AT BT BT
(Restated) (Restated)
(tr=51) (g =5)
Balance as at 1 January 2016 RZZ—E—A—-B&H 10364 26117 (5,288) 3,892 1547 36,632
Other comprehensive income At 2ERA
Fair value gain recognised upon the transfer from BHETHRETEREREMF
leasehold land and buildings to investment properties BBz AFEKE - 307948 - - - 307948
Available-for-sale financial assets e SREE
- Fair value gain credited to equity — it AR 2 A FENE 8,048 - - - - 8248
- Fair value gain released upon disposal - hERBR ATERR (18,616) - - - - (18616)
Currency translation on consolidation GaRAREL/EHER - - (1,230) - - (1,230)
Currency translation differences release upon HERHBLR 2 ERFER
disposal of interests in subsidiary BiES = = (4,341) = = (4,341)
Investment revaluation released upon disposal EIN NG s
of interest in subsidiaries REE 4 - - - - 4
Currency translation difference released upon MERIEREBERRR 2
disposal of assets held for sale ERER - - 10,170 - - 10170
Total comprehensive income el (10364) 307948 4,599 = - 302183
Employee share-based compensation benefits Mg 7 EEBE R = - - 9 - 9
Transfer Eh - - - (3894 (1547 (5.441)
Balance as at 31 December 2016, as restated RZE-RE+ZB=t-H&H
(fE51) - 334,065 (689) = - 333376
Balance at 31 December 2016 s previously reported REE—E+-R=t-H&H
(1 2%) - 334,065 389 - - 334454
Acquisition of the Acquired Group (Note 2(c)) WiEEkiEEE (Mit0) - - (1,078) - - (1,078)
Balance as at 31 December 2016, as restated RIZ—"ET-A=T-R&H
(& E51) - 334,085 (689) - - 333376
RUBRERAERLAT —Z—tFF3k | 163
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

16.f# % (%)
(a) &H (&)

16.Reserves (Continued)

(a) Group (Continued)

Asset
revaluation
reserve Translation
EEEMR reserve Total
E1] B i H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
AT ok BT
(Restated) (Restated)
(feE7) (gzE7)
Balance as at 1 January 2017, RZE—tF—A—B##
as previously reported (tNETZ2HHR) 334,065 389 334,454
Acquisition of the Acquired Group WEEEKEEE - (1,078) (1,078)
Balance asat 1January 2017 asrestated ~ R=T—+F—A—RB#&#H
(5 E51) 334,065 (689) 333,376
Other comprehensive income Hitp2EKBA
Currency translation difference on HEREREL BN ER
consolidation - 1,563 1,563
Total comprehensive income FHMALE - 1,563 1,563
Balance as at 31 December 2017 R=Z—tF+=-A=+—-H
) 334,065 874 334,939
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M B R I ()

16.Reserves (Continued)

16.5#%%& (&)

(b) Company (b) 7]
Employee
share-based Retained
compensation profits/
reserve (accumulated
Share  Contributed REX AT losses)
premium surplus EEME RERA/ Total
RpEE BARS fE  (ZEER) @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BETTL BT AR AR
At 1 January 2016 N-3—~E-F—B 126 1081112 3892 (15890  1,110.240
Profitfor the year KEERF - - - 3748 3217458
Share issued under share option scheme BRBRESR T RN 9,256 - - - 9,256
Transfer 2 - - (3,894) 3,804 -
Employee share-based compensation benefits bR {2 & & 477 - - 2 - 2
2015 final dividend and special cash dividends ~ —Z-HEXRERER
distribution (Note 21) RAREREDTE (MiE21) - (492,393) - (3201571) (3,693,964
At 31 December 2016 RZE-A~ETZA=1—H 50,382 588,719 = 3,891 642,992
At 1 January 2017 R-_E—+F—F—H 50,382 588,719 - 3,891 642,992
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - (31,555) (31,555)
At 31 December 2017 RZF—+F+-F=1—H 50,382 588,719 - (27,664) 611,437

Loss for the year of the Company mainly comes from
legal and professional fees of HK$7,420,000 (2016:
HK$21,533,000), rental expense of HK$7,942,000 (2016:
nil), staff costs of HK$4,414,000 (2016: HK$1,107,000) and
impairment loss of investment in associate of HK$4,006,000
(2016: nil). Profit for 2016 mainly resulted from the dividend
income from subsidiaries of HK$2,352,257,000 and profit
from disposal of subsidiaries HK$887,579,000.

KRR AFEBEITERBEELE
¥ B FH7,420,00008 T (= & — X F:

21,533,000/ 7T) -
BT (ZE —

N E )
4,414,000 70 (Z&F — /RN F

£ B 7,942,000
8 T pk A
1,107,000

BL) RRBERRZRE ZRERE

4,006,000 L (=&
—ANFRAEZRENVHEBEAD
A2,352,257,000/8 T & B EMEA

—ANEfE) o —F
= BB,
A E

F)887,579,000% 7T, ©

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a result
of the Group reorganisation in 1990 and represents the
difference between the nominal value of the Company’s
shares so allotted and the consolidated net asset value
of the acquired subsidiaries and associate less dividends
distribution. Under Bermudan law, the contributed surplus is
distributable to shareholders under certain circumstances.

In addition, the Company’s share premium of HK$50,382,000
(2016: HK$50,382,000) can be distributed as fully paid-
up bonus shares or applied towards eliminating the
accumulated losses of the Company.

ARBIZBABHIA-—NNTFAKE
SHEMEE - BAQRIRE ZRG EE SR
Iz IMB AR RBE AR ZEHFE
EZEZBRGRBRENKEZEZR - REB

REEN - HARBANRETERLTDIK
FREER o
tt&l\ » NRA B Z B % B50,382,0005 7T

—ZE— X4 : 50,382,000 %) AI{ERRE

%?SIEZIH““/)E AR EA AR 2 BTE
E518 o
RMBERERAERLAT —Z—tFF3k | 165



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M B R I ()

17.Staff costs 17.8 TR A
2017 2016
—E—+F ZZTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
(Restated)
(&%)
Staff costs of continuing operations FEKEXBZEIHA
(including directors’ remuneration) (BRESHE)
Wages, salaries and bonuses TE - ek 36,641 14,800
Directors’ fee E=Yikn 840 890
37,481 15,690
2016
? —/ \ﬁz
Note HK$'000
B aE BT
Staff costs of discontinued operations ERIEREER BT HA
(including directors’ remuneration) (BRESHE) 32
Wages, salaries and bonuses B He kg 130,294
Employee share-based compensation benefits  IABIES 1+ 2 (& E BN &2 F) 2
Unutilised leave pay R 2 B R 470
Pension costs - defined contribution plans RIRERA — EREEFRGTE 4,987
Less: Forfeited contributions o EIRUEEER -
Net pension costs - defined contribution plans  JFRIKE AR — FEB{E A2l 4,987
Pension expense - defined benefit plan RARE X — REMEE 1,978
137,731
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M B R I ()

17.Staff costs (Continued)
(a) Five highest paid individuals

Details of the remuneration of the five highest paid
individuals during the year are set out below:

(a) B EBEHFMA L

FR AuUERSFMALZHMESFBED

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Retirement scheme contributions

Bonuses paid and payable

The remuneration of the five (2016: four)
individuals fell within the following bands:

HK$900,001 - HK$950,000
HK$950,001 — HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001
HK$1,500,001
HK$2,000,001
HK$2,500,001

- HK$1,500,000
- HK$2,000,000
- HK$2,500,000
- HK$3,000,000

T

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
BT T BT
e R RIER S FE= 10,050 4,370
RORGT B 68 60
BT R ERTEAL - 45
10,118 4,475

highest paid AL (ZF—7RF : O) ReFA L2

< TR EIEE
2017 2016
—B—tF —F 5%
900,001 7T — 950,000/ 7T - 1
950,001 7T — 1,000,00078 7T - 1
1,000,001 7T — 1,500,00078 7T 1 2
1,500,001 7T — 2,000,00058 7T 2 =
2,000,00178 7T — 2,500,0007 7T 1 =
2,500,001/ 7T — 3,000,000/ 7T 1 -
5 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

G 6 BB R I A

()

17.Staff costs (Continued)

(a) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

168

The success of the Company hinges on the performance and
commitment of our employees. As the Company continues to
grow, the Company’s compensation philosophy is designed
to provide employees with the opportunity to excel and grow,
while aligning with our business strategies and values. The
Group’s remuneration policy aims to recognize outstanding
performance, retain and attract key talents and ensure
alignment with the interests of our businesses, and thereby
enhancing shareholder value.

The Company has a share option scheme which was
designed to motivate the eligible persons, whose
contributions are beneficial to the performance, growth and
success of the Group, to optimize their future contributions
to the Group and rewarded them for their past contributions
and enabled the Group to attract and retained individuals
with experience and ability. The Remuneration Committee
approved the granting of share options and reported such
grants to the Board of Directors. The grant was made based
on individual’s performance and contributions. Since the
media business was sold to Alibaba Investment Limited on 5
April 2016, all remaining share options were lapsed on that
day and there are no outstanding options under the scheme
as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

17.Staff costs (Continued) 17.E T A (#8)
(b) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer's remuneration (b) EERTHARME

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is BESRITREH cMEeF BT
set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2017: BE_Z—+tF+T-"A=1T—HLFE:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director,
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking:
RELEE (ERAXLEIENBLRSH) BxAuEyMe
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director’s
other services
in connection
with the
Remuneration management
paidor  of the affairs

Employer's  receivable of the
contribution ~inrespect  company or
Estimated toa ofaccepting its subsidiary

moneyvalue retirement  officeas  undertaking
ofother  benefit  director REZEEA
benefits ~ scheme HESZE ARZEHE
Discretionary ~ Housing  EfbA EXl  RESE LESHNA
Fees  Salary  bonuses allowance ffkst  BAEA Y BREELN Total
Name i3 kA He  BERA GERE  EMEE HEANMR  EYEME  SRYEMe Eh
HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000  HK$'000
ARt BETn  ARTn BETn ARt BMTn  BRfn  ERTn BETn

Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Huang Hu i - - - - - - - - -
LvJia af - - - - - - - - -
Independent Non-executive BukirEs
Directors
Song Ming RE - 180 - - - - - - 180
Sun Mingchun g - 180 - - - - - - 180
Woo Chin Wan HRE - 180 - - - - - - 180
Executive Directors HiES
Ou Peng Bl
(appointed as CEQ (R=F—7%
on 9 November 2016) t-ANBEZE
RiTER) - 150 - - - 8 - - 158
Meng Xusfeng e - 150 - - - 8 - - 158

- 840 - - - 16 - - 856
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

17.Staff costs (Continued) 17.E T A (#8)

(b) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration (b) EERTHEARME (&)
(Continued)

N —

For the year ended 31 December 2016: BE_ZT—R"Ft-_A=1T—HLFE:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director,
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking:
WEAES (BRBALTHANBLESH) BRI Me
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
inrespect
of director’s
other services
inconnection
with the
Remuneration management
paidor  of the affairs

Employer's  receivable of the
contribution ~inrespect  company or
Estimated toa ofaccepting its subsidiary

moneyvalue  retirement officeas  undertaking
ofother  benefit  director HEZEEA
benefits  scheme  HEXZE AALENE
Discretionary ~ Housing A/ EXY  REZE QAEEEME
Fees  Salay  bonuses allowance Mg RO SUER U ST Total
Name i ik e WERD GREE BHEBE HEOHR EUMe  dEWEe st
Notes HK$000  HK$000  HK§O000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
Wi A¥Tr BBt A%t AMfn BETr BT Afn BT BT

Non-Executive Directors ~ &78%

Huang Hu i (2 - - - - - - - - -
LvJia At (i) - - - - - - - - -
David.J. Pang ZiE (i)(3) 190 - = = - - - . 190
Tse Kai Chi il ()7, ii)3) - - - 2 - . . . i
Khoo Kay Peng il (1) & - - - - . . - 9
Tong Shao Ming B ()o), i),

(ii)(1) 76 = = = - - - - 76
ChakChungLuenAlbert 2+ ()6), Gi)a),

(ii)(1) 4% = - - - - - - 495

Independent Non-executive B3 TES

Directors
Song Ming S (3 30 - - s - - - - 30
SunMingchun A (ild) 0 ; _ i i } : . 2
Woo Chin Wan MRS (i)3) 30 - - - - - - - 30
Fred HuZuLLiu I i) %6 i} i i _ ; : ) %
David Li Kok Po | (9 108 - - - - - - - 108
Wong Kai Man ERIE (i)(2) 20 - - - - . . . 70
Chua Phuay Hee A (@), )2 81 - - - - - > - 81
YeungHinChungJohn 12 8F (1), i) 2) 81 - - - = = - - 81
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

17.Staff costs (Continued) 17.E T A (#8)

(b) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration (b) EERITHRARME (&)
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016: (Continued) BE-_Z—R"E+-A=t—RHLFE:
(%8)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director,
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking;
HEAES (BRRANTHANBOFER) BRI Me
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
inrespect
of director’s
other services
inconnection
with the
Remuneration management
paidor  ofthe affairs

Employers  receivable of the
contribution ~inrespect  company or
Estimated toa ofaccepting its subsidiary

moneyvalue  retirement officeas  undertaking
ofother ~ benefit diector  FEZEEA
benefits  scheme  HEXZE AFLENE
Discretionary ~ Housing ~ EHA/& EX  REZE QAEEEME
Fees  Salary  bonuses allowance Wfgsr  RAEH SUERR Y S Total
Name 4 e e WETL GREM SEEBE FEOHR EUMe  dEWEe &t
Notes HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK§O000  HK$O000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
i A%Tn BT AT AT BT BT AT BT BT

Executive Directors YrEs
Ou Peng B 010) - - - - - - - - -
Meng Xuefeng FE (1) - - - - - - - - -
Kuok Hui Kiwong By () 4) - - - - - - - - -

Chief Executive Officer ~ fTRiH
Robin Hu Yee Cheng Filhs=
(Ceasedtoactas CEO (BzE—%
from 5 April 2016) MARAREE
fites) - 171 9 450 1 15 - - 1659

1,460 1 9 450 14 15 = = 319
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

G 6 BB R I A

()

17.Staff costs (Continued)

(b) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration
(Continued)

172

Note:

(i)  On 6 June 20186, the following changes are effective:
(1) Tan Sri Dr. Khoo Kay Peng has resigned as a non-executive

2

Director

Dr. Fred Hu Zu Liu has retired as an independent non-
executive Director

Dr. the Hon. Sir David Li Kwok Po has resigned as an
independent non-executive Director

Ms. Kuok Hui Kwong has resigned as an executive Director
Ms. Tong Shao Ming has been elected as an executive
Director

Mr. Chak Chung Luen Albert has been elected as an
executive Director

Mr. Tse Kai Chi has been elected as a non-executive
Director

Mr. Chua Phuay Hee has been elected as an independent
non-executive Director

Dr. Yeung Hin Chung John has been elected as an
independent non-executive Director

(i) On 5 November 20186, the following changes are effective:

M

2

Mr. Ou Peng and Mr. Meng Xuefeng have been appointed
as executive Directors

Mr. Huang Hu and Ms. Lv Jia have been appointed as non-
executive Directors

Dr. Song Ming, Dr. Sun Mingchun and Mr. Woo Chin Wan
have been appointed as independent non-executive
Directors

Ms. Tong Shao Ming and Mr. Chak Chung Luen Albert have
been re-designated as non-executive Directors

(i) On 26 November 2016, the following changes are effective:

M

2

Ms. Tong Shao Ming and Mr. Chak Chung Luen Albert have
resigned as non-executive Directors

Mr.Wong Kai Man, Mr. Chua Phuay Hee and Mr. Yeung Hin
Chung John have resigned as independent non-executive
Directors

Dr. David J. Pang and Mr. Tse Kai Chi have resigned as non-
executive Directors

17.ET A (&)
(b) EERTHARME (&)

B

(i)

(iii) LA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

17.Staff costs (Continued) 17.E T A (#8)

(b) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration (b) EERTHARME (&)
(Continued)

There was no arrangement under which a Director and/or
the Chief Executive Officer waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration in respect of the year.

Directors’ fees paid or payable to Independent Non-
executive Directors during the year were HK$540,000 (2016:
HK$656,398). There was no Directors’ fees received or
receivable by other Non-executive Directors during the year
(2016: HK$233,334). Save from the aforesaid, there were
no other emoluments paid or payable to Non-executive
Directors in 2017.

BEERR, RITRESBBRERZHR
RHRABHERSENRFAZHME -

FAEINIENTFRBIIERTES .
EEMWE A540,0008 T (ZE—~F:
656,398 L) c FABIE A MIEHMITE
EERSIER 2 EZHE (ZT—RF:
233,334870) © Br EXCRTIE SN - RZF
—+FEREE N REMNERTESTNEM
i< o

ARARE—LFAUBRTEER =X
1T AR B AT AT R B AU BB A 2 =) e £
FRBEXAREZRREREER T —
FOARRHERBEBRRA

No options were granted to Directors and/or the Chief
Executive Officer to acquire shares of the Company in 2017,
and all the remaining options granted previously were lapsed
on 5 April 2016 together with the disposal of media business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
0 W Wk Mt (80

(b) EBRITHARME (&)

17.Staff costs (Continued)

(b) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration

174

(Continued)

The director’s fee per annum of each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors (2017: HK$180,000; 2016: HK$100,000
from 1 January to 31 October 2016 and HK$180,000 from
31 October to 31 December 2016) is fixed by the Board
of Directors pursuant to the authority granted by the
shareholders at the Company’s annual general meeting.
Each Non-executive Director, including Independent Non-
executive Director, serving on the Board Committees does
not receive any additional fee (Audit Committee: 2016:
HK$100,000 from 1 January to 6 June 2016 and Nil from 7
June to 31 December 2016; Remuneration Committee: 2016:
HK$50,000 from 1 January to 6 June 2016 and Nil from 7
June to 31 December 2016; Nomination Committee: 2016:

BUBYHNTEEIFEESEHSE (=
T —+F 180,000 ZF— /1 F -
B_E—R"F—A—HEZ+A=+—RHAK
100,000 TR —F—R"Ft+HA=1+—
HE+Z-ZHA=+—H%180,000/7C) AE
EERBRRRARAIRRBEFREET
ZENFEE 2HEEEETEESL
BRFATES (BRBUIFATESE) T
SWBREMEIINMES (BREEG: —F
—RNFEBHIE-RF-HA-HEXRARXR
H /100,000 T kBT —RFRAL
BE+-_A=+— Elft’jT FWEES
—E-RF HE—AR"F—A—HBH=E=EAX

HK$50,000 from 1 January to 6 June 2016 and Nil from AN B /&/50,0008 TRkBE ZFE—RERX
7 June to 31 December 2016; Strategy Committee: 2016: AtBZE+ZA=+T—HARAT  EKZE8
HK$50,000 from 1 January to 6 June 2016 and Nil from 7 g:T-RF:-HFT-—XR"F-H—H

June to 31 December 2016).

The directors’ remunerations are determined with reference
to directors’ remunerations paid by other companies in Hong
Kong.
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ENANBAEL0,0008 T kB —_E—RF
ANAtEEFTZA=T—HBAT  RKZ
Bg: T RF AT RF—H—
B Z/XA73NH /&50,0008 T kB ZF—X
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M B R I ()

18.0perating profit

N

18. 4% & & F

A

Operating profit of continuing operations is stated after ii‘“’i‘«M%WZZ‘«ME?‘JZ«‘?/\TWXI@

crediting:

&5 8K

2017 2016
—F-—tF —T-AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BMTT  BMT

Crediting FSET N
Net rental income from investment properties WEYFERSIFHA 48,460 41,185
Auditor’s remuneration for the current year amounted to RNFEZEETN S 51,100,0008 7T (=

HK$1,100,000 (2016: HK$900,000).

19.Net finance (cost)/income

—754F : 900,000/ 7T) °
19.80 % (BA), WA R 58

2017 2016
—F-—tF —T-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BMT

(Restated)
(FeES)
Finance (cost)/income of continuing operations BHECEEBNTTE (), A

- Interest expense on the loan from — REFPEERATZERK

an intermediate holding company 2B X H (3,846) -
— Interest income on available-for-sale — At EzeEREE

financial asset ZFEWA - 978
— Interest income from bank — |RITABHA 41 24
(3,805) 1,002
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M B R I ()

20.Income tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of
16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year. Corporate Income Tax in the PRC has been provided
at the rate of 25% on the profits of the subsidiary operating

20.FrSRiF X

EBMERTAE R ERR R Z
16.5% (ZZF—7%F : 16.5%) T KB -
A1 AT L Y LA E A AR B 258 2 B
BRAIMEFIE25%F R -

in the PRC for the year.

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BRI
(Restated)
(F=EH)
Current income tax BNERRRIS AR
- Hong Kong profits tax — BEFEH 12,009 7,450
— PRC Corporate Income Tax — REBFERTEH - 2,895
- Under provision in prior year — FFERETR 76 =
Deferred income tax EREFTISHR
- Deferred tax expense/(credits) ELEFIBRAY (M2s) 240 (6,728)
12,325 3,617

The taxation on the profit before income tax of continuing
operations differs from the theoretical amount that would
arise using the taxation rates applicable to the places of

FEREEB 2 RMEHABMNMEELEZ
BMERBRERBARARR REWERRLE
WERHGBERARERAE FﬁfZEZEE‘A’IEEé%Eﬁ

operation of the Company and its subsidiaries as follows: Fi AR @ BT

2017 2016

—E—t+t& —T—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

(Restated)

(r=EH)

Profit before income tax R P15 %54 il 22 7] 264,471 311,336
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% BT #E16.5%

(2016: 16.5%) (ZZ—"F : 16.5%) 518 43,638 51,369
Income not subject to taxation BAZBBA (36,511) 52,940
Effect of different taxation rates in other countries EAtBRRATRF R 2 £ - 985
Tax losses not recognised RiERZ HIAEE 25 81
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes RAEVELFRIBHIR < FZ 5,096 4122
Under provision in prior year FEERETR 76 -
Income tax expense FTSBiRAX 12,325 3,617
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

1. BRERBRENFRK

21.Dividends and cash payment

A special cash payment totaling HK$2,499,499,000 was
paid out of the Company’s retained profits and contributed
surplus in April 2016.

Special cash dividends of HK$975,922,000 and
HK$195,027,000 respectively were paid out of the Company’s
retained profits in October 2016.

The Board has resolved not to declare any interim dividend
or to recommend any final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2017.

22.Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year from continuing operations attributable
to shareholders of HK$249,158,000 (2016 restated:
HK$307,719,000) and the weighted average of 1,567,745,596
shares in issue (2016: 1,566,739,535 shares in issue) during
the year. The calculation of basic earnings per share for the
year ended 31 December 2016 was also calculated based
on the profit from discontinued operations attributable to
shareholders of HK$1,407,641,000.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to

22

ﬁ%lﬁﬁéﬁfﬁé £2,499,499,000/8 7 ' &
R-ZE—RNEFENAEBARANRERF KX
BB TR -

2 Al £975,922, 000;‘%7%&195,027,000;‘%
TZHABEEREER-_ZE—"Ft+ A8
A RHREE B F P E -

EEERRMTERAEZERBE T —
tF T+ A=+t—RLEFEZEFTHK
SRR -

FREF

ERERBFTIBREFARREGEIFEL
BRI 7 BH249,158,0008 7T (=& —
NE&KLEH 307,719,000 7T) MFER
1,567,745,596/% Nt F15 B 1T K (=
T — N4 1 1,566,739,535A% B B TR D)
FTE -BHE_ETE—ARF+_A=+—H1t
iﬁztﬂx%zw%ﬂNE%FHQ?MEME%
IHEBEFABF,407,641,0008 518

FRESAEMNUBRATERBEARR]Z
ﬁﬁﬂxﬁéﬁiﬁxﬂjZﬁﬁ*ﬁrﬁ*ﬁﬁﬂ’]ﬁ%ﬂx%

assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares MESEZ BRI #EME E AR 5 R
arising from exercise of all outstanding share options granted & REBELHBZEETEEROMET

under the Company’s share option scheme. A calculation is
done to determine the number of shares that could have been
acquired at fair value (determined with reference to the latest
available market share price of the Company’s shares) based
on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached
to the outstanding share options. The number of shares
calculated as above is compared with the number of shares
that would have been issued assuming the exercise of the
share options. Since the media business was sold to Alibaba
Investment Limited on 5 April 2016, all the remaining share
options were lapsed on that day and there are no outstanding
options to be exercised since then. Accordingly, there was no
potential dilutive ordinary shares during the year 2017.

BREGTE - REBEARITEBRERN 2R
BRENEBEE  TEEQTE (RER
RARD O EMEETE) JBAZRK
MEE -BELAFMFTEZRHEE -
HREERECHEITEM S ZT Zﬁif’ﬁ
B - ERNHEEKER =
NP AR B HE FAlibaba Investment
Limited * FTEFRIRBERENEB RS - M
Bz B et &l RITEERE - At -
RZZE—tFRWEETHELER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

22.Earnings per share (Continued)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2016 was based on 1,566,739,535
shares in issue, which was the weighted average number of
shares in issue during the year plus the weighted average of
234,372 shares deemed to be issued if all outstanding share
options granted under the Company’s share option scheme
had been exercised.

23.Share-based payment transactions

178

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
which was approved at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 24 May 2010. Since the media business
was sold to Alibaba Investment Limited on 5 April 2016, all
remaining share options were lapsed on that day and there
are no outstanding options under the Scheme as at 31

22.3RBH (&)

BHE-_ZE—XRE+-_A=1+—HIEEW
B iR #E 8 & F Ty iR & € 11,566,739,535
A% B 31T IR (0 AN A 39 B B 1TRR D 0 _E 18
BEAQNRZBREFEBRLE AR
RITEBAREC EITE ?ﬁ«ﬁﬂ#?’%é?"}z
234,37 2B i F R MDETE

3B ERNZRE

AARIERBEBERESE ([578)) R
—E-ZEFRA-+HHEBRITHARRRK
RAEAFAS FEMERB AR EEE
BRZZ—/"FWMNAAALE FAlibaba
Investment Limited * T/ &8 B AR #E R
ERAS MR_E—tER_T— X F

December 2017 and 2016. TZA=1—8  ZFSABRTERR
B -
Movements in the number of options outstanding and their RIE-RNFRARTEZERESE A
related weighted average exercise prices in 2016 were as *E?ﬁﬂﬂ%ii’jﬂﬁﬁzﬁ@bﬁﬂZZD—F :
follows:
No. of Weighted
shares in average
respect of exercise
options price per
granted share
R Sk
RN A TTRE
2016 2016
—TRF eSS
HK$
B
Outstanding at 1 January R—H—BER{TE 6,988,000 1,484*
Exercised during the year (Note 15) RERTTHRE (FiF15) (6,688,000) 1,484
Lapsed during the year RERKIR (300,000) 1,484%
Outstanding at 31 December KW+=—A=+—H
MARTTE = N/A B
Exercisable at 31 December R+ZRA=+—H
Al 1T = N/A @

All outstanding options were lapsed in 2016.

# The weighted average exercise price per share is applicable
up to 5 April 2016 when all the remaining share options were
lapsed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M B R I ()

24.Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash

Flows

(@) Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated

from operations:

2GR ERERMET

(a) RERFRTLEEL R EHIRE ¢

2017 2016
—E—tF —TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
(Restated)
(F&Ey))
Operating profit K= B F 265,692 139,072
Fair value gain on investment properties KEMEANFER (221,000) (118,100)
Depreciation and amortisation e R 1,656 1,887
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE -« BEERRENR
equipment and intangible assets B EE TR - 2
Pension expense RReRx - 1,936
Transfer of DB plan assets to other AENDEBIZFEIBE
retirement funds ERFEMRARES - 520
Employee share-based compensation benefits PARRHES 1+ 2 1B BBt &1 A - 2
Exchange loss/(gain) b 1R (s ) 998 (525)
Decrease in inventories FERD - 25
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable FEUERIA (3E0), B (5,279) 43,683
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FENER - e REMEKEIA
deposits and other receivables S (32hn) 6,212 (15,679)
Decrease in amounts due to associates FERTEEE R AR IE/)I (1,174) (63)
Decrease in amount due to a follow subsidiary FEfH R R B A RIS (2) (39)
Decrease in amount due to the intermediate JE A<t R R4 i@x IR
holding company (3,059) (1,564)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable, FEf 0B - EM B RIER
other payables and accrued liabilities FEET B &L CRd) 792 (46,233)
Decrease in subscriptions in advance TEWGT B &R - (4,123)
Cash generated from operations EEEFCRS 44,836 801
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M B R I ()

24.Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows (Continued)

(b) RERREEE

(b) Cash and cash equivalents

24 RERERMTE (&)

2017 2016

—E—tF —ZT—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BEFT BT T

(Restated)

(K E5)

Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHIAE 112,560 129,455
Short-term bank deposits with original FEZRHAA=(EAATH

maturity of less than three months FEHRIRTTIE SR 6,001 -

118,561 129,455

(c) FREHR

(c) Net debt reconciliation

This section sets out the movements in net debt for each of
the periods presented.

ATBCEH SR B FREES

Total

Liabilities from

financing activity
Borrowing due

after 1 year

REMEZBH2REE
R—FEZHNEE
HK$°000
BT T

As at 1 January 2016 and R=B-—RFE—A—HK
31 December 2016 —E-RFt+=A=+-—H -
Cash flow HE7 (1,435,668)
Other non-cash movement Hib 3R 228 (3,845)
As at 31 December 2017 R=FB—tH+=-A=+—H (1,439,513)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M B R I ()

24.Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash

Flows (Continued)

(d) Disposal of Coastline International Limited

An analysis of net cash inflow in respect of the disposal
of Coastline International Limited is as follows:

24 RERERMTE (&)

(d) i ECoastline International Limited

B H & Coastline International Limited
ZERERADTUOT ¢

HK$'000
BT T
Cash consideration ReRE 990,000
Cash and bank balances disposed of HERS RIRITER (1,358)
Expenses incurred on disposal HEEEZRAY (14,072)
Net cash inflow in respect of the disposal HEZFREMA 974,670

25.Capital risk management

The Group’s primary objective when managing capital is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its businesses as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group structures its capital with due consideration to
risk. The Group manages and adjusts its capital structure
in the light of the changes in economic conditions and risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, repurchase
shares of the Company from shareholders, issue new shares,
or increase or reduce borrowings.

For the purpose of calculating the net debt-to-capital ratio,
the Group defines net debt as total debt (which includes
the loan from an intermediate holding company) less cash
and bank balances, and capital as all components of equity.
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt-to-
capital ratio. As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s net debt-
to-capital ratio was zero, as the Group had no debt.

25. 5 KB ba B 18

AEBEEEAZERZB R NERASE
BRENFELEHEXY - HmEHENE
BARABRREM @ﬂﬁ&&%ﬁﬂﬂﬂ sHHEAA L
PRfEFES o

AEBEEREERRRIBEEHEARE
B ARERFRBENR B RBEE
EZRBEFEHEELRFHBEEELRRE - B
MISAEREEARRE  A&EHE DH%E/)E
NFPRREZBESHE  RABRRBLOARQ
Betn ~ BITHRSIEINSOR D ER ©

RAEFRBEARLEMET - AEEKF
Eﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ (B E P EER
RAIZER) BRRE RPITHES MEAX
ZERRBED ZFIBARED - AREIR
BRERABEALREZRER  RZF—R
Ft-A=+—H AEEFEEERL
T WTHARAEELEAIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

25.Capital risk management (Continued) 25. 8K EERE (&)
The net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 December 2017 was as RZE—+tF+A=T—HZFEEE
follows: $tt7ﬁﬂ—|—
2017 2016

—EBE—tF —ZT—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT

(Restated)
(4=E%))
Total borrowings Eimsa 1,439,513 -
Less: cash and cash equivalents W Be MReEHE (118,561) (129,455)
Net debt FRIE 1,320,952 -
Total equity 1B 1,890,104
Total capital AR 3,211,056
Net debt-to-capital ratio FEEEARLE 411% N/ATEH
The increase in the net debt-to-capital ratio is mainly due R-ZZE—tH+-A=+—8 FARESAE
to the loan from an intermediate holding company as at 31 Zl»‘l:l:?i' MIBEZHRNKE T EZERAR
December 2017. ZERAE -
26.0perating lease commitments 6. ZEHE AT
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had future minimum R-F—tHF+-A=+—H8 AKER
lease payment under non-cancelable operating leases for TFT#Z“”Z‘“M%%WT% 2 i M AEF 2 ANA]
land and buildings for the continuing operations as follows: MEEeMEREA R RKERE MK
T
2017 2016

—E—tF —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Not later than one year T —F 10,392 13,126
Later than one year but not later than five years ~ #:B—FETBBARF 8,664 17,612
19,056 30,738

27.Capital commitments 27. EREIE
2017 2016

—EBE—tF —ZT—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT

Capital commitments for ARERRE—RAEEAQT]
proposed investment in a joint venture (Note 11) 2B I (Wuﬂ 1)
Contracted, but not provided for B RTAER B 2,499,332 -

182 | GREATWALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017



/ / /////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////////// /
S S S S SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS

SSLL LSS LSS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M B R I ()

28.Balance sheet of the Company

28. A PNFEEEEEBR

31 December

31 December

2017 2016
—g—tF T AF
+=A +=A
=+-—H =+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B s BT ¥ T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment I ER Y ] 3,290 -
Interests in subsidiaries SN o 945,226 892,691
Interests in associates B N E) 2 B 2,607 6,612
951,123 899,303
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments, deposits and BNER  Rek
other receivables H e RIR 11 1,441,411 6,665
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEE 13,670 55,092
1,455,081 61,757
Total assets BERE 2,406,204 961,060
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liability EmEIaE
Loan from an intermediate REFREIERARZ
holding company B 13 1,439,513 -
Current liabilities mEAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FESTHT B A 193,061 155,876
Amounts due to associates JE ST *,g.*@ IE 1125 2,250
Accrued expenses FEETER 4,293 3,167
Total liabilities BfEER 1,637,992 161,293
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves BERREE
Share capital &N 156,775 156,775
Reserves i 16(b) 611,437 642,992
Total equity 4R 768,212 799,767
Total equity and liabilities mERNAE 2,406,204 961,060

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the
Board of Directors on 26 March 2018 and was signed on its

behalf.

Mr. Ou Peng
BB e 4
Chairman

B

ARBEEABRAEEEN _T—/\F
AT REMETHUTATRRES

EEA%

Mr. Meng Xuefeng
REEEE
Director

BEF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

29.Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
particularly liquidity and credit risks. Where appropriate, the
Group’s risk management policies seek to minimise potential
adverse effects of these risks on the financial performance
of the Group. The policies for managing these risks are
summarised below.

(a) Cash flow interest rate risk

184

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk arises from cash
balances placed with authorised financial institutions and
loan from an intermediate holding company, which generate
interest income and incur interest expense for the Group.
The Group manages its interest rate risk for cash balances
by placing such balances on various maturities and interest
rate terms.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had loan from an
intermediate holding company of HK$1,435,668,000 (2016:
Nil). It is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100
basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would increase/decrease the Group’s profit for the
year and total equity by approximately HK$1,101,000(2016:
Nil).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the balance sheet date and had been applied to the interest-
bearing financial instruments in existence at that date.
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AEEZEBEYZESRER  FilZ
nBEE M EESRAR AEEZARE
BERREERBEEBAT  SREZFRA
SUAKBMBRAZECARTERE
RE - ZFEBRELEBRBALAT -

(a) iﬁ%u.ﬁﬁﬂ%lﬂ[ﬁ

AEEZHERMERERKEFBRRAR
TRBBCRSEREREPREEZERAT
ZE E%$%IEE%IJE\H&)\&%@&
MEXH - AEEBEBEZEEBRUTR
FHEMEEIEFREEERSHERL
TR B f o

E’;‘:%*‘ti‘f’_ﬂ:ﬂ'*ﬂ REEE
B AR A Rl 2 B 5K1,435,668,000
faﬁ(igﬁé_/\ﬁz 453) BEET A
ZERT  FIRLRE -
ﬂ/Tﬁ 1004!%!5#1% REEZFEF
N ERERSIB N R #91,101,000/8 7T (=
T—RF &)

ElBREINTIIBRENEREFE R
H#EA - jﬁEJEﬁHECEZEITEZﬂﬁ%@F&E
TE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

29.Financial risk management (Continued) 2.2 REMER (F)

(b) Liquidity risk (b) "B E SR
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group will encounter mEPpEcRREASERNBITHERAE
difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with financial H FﬁZ%f“ﬁ%ﬁLl%Zﬂﬁﬁ Zli'i EE
liabilities. The Group’s objective in managing this risk is to BuzRkz BRLEBERARITERLE
maintain a balance between the continuity and the flexibility X HEFEEREEEE VitZIFM (fie]
of funding through the use of bank loans and overdraft, if BE) RMREBEERRZER -
necessary, and the loan from group companies.
The following table details the remaining contractual TRIIRREEBAEEERABEZHRT
maturities of the Group’s financial liabilities at the balance BRHREFE  DERKEHARTRZE
sheet date, which are based on contractual undiscounted eneE (BEEAEHMNEFEZNEN
cash flows (including interest payments computed using FoRERFEBNE - AEREER ZF
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates as at the ) RAEEEXNE IEZFE HEf - &)
balance sheet date) and the earliest date on which the Group EREREFEIERAB ZERZ BT
can be required to pay. The balance includes the accrued B o FERL2HME13 -

interest for the loan from an intermediate holding company.
For details, please refer to Note 183.

Other payables and Loan from an intermediate
accrued liabilities holding company
Hith 708 REFEZERDE
REtEE ZE
2017 2016 2017 2016

—B-tE —TF ZE-tF T F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT

(Restated)

(4 571)
Within 1 year or on demand —FRSIRERK 11,377 10,631 - -
More than 2 but less than 5 years  HBiBREE DR RE - - 1,676,224 -
Carrying amount ERE{E 11,377 10,631 1,676,224 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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29.Financial risk management (Continued)

(c) Currency risk

186

The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group
are denominated predominantly in Hong Kong Dollars. The
Group’s only significant exposure to foreign exchange risk
arises from its cash at bank and available-for-sale financial
assets in RMB and cash at bank in USD.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had cash at bank in RMB
of HK$4,877,000 (2016: Nil) and available-for-sale financial
assets in RMB of HK$1,196,000 (2016: Nil) and cash at bank
in USD of HK$16,826,000 (2016 (Restated): HK$15,622,000).
If the RMB had strengthened/weakened by 10% against
Hong Kong Dollars with all other variables held constant,
it would increase/decrease the pre-tax profit for the year
by HK$607,300 (2016: Nil). If the USD had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against Hong Kong Dollars with all other
variables held constant, it would increase/decrease the pre-
tax profit for the year by HK$1,683,000 (2016 (Restated):
HK$1,562,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in exchange rate had occurred at
the balance sheet date.
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(c) EW AR

AEEZEREENERMAGBHEIRUE
TCRHE « REBEEINEA T Z HE—FXME
RRBENUNARBFEZRITEES RATH#
HEZEBMBEENARAERTHEZRITH

N-ZBE—+E+-_A=+—08 ' ~5&E
BEUARKE 2 R1TIE£4,877,000%
T(ZZ—ARF: &) RUARKFEZ
AHHE S BEE,196,000/8 T (=
T—XFE) RAETHEZERITES
16,826,000 L (ZE — R FLKEF :
15,622,000 7T) ° EFT B E fth B S 4 &5

TEZERT WMARBEBLAE, B
B10% * FAKRB AR R AFE M5
607,300 T (ZE—RF : &) - £ A
HtEHBFTE2BRT  WETHLBS
TLHE,B2E10% - F AT AT & F 1518
i,/ H41,683,0008 7 (ZE—NFKE
Bl : 1,562,000/ 7T) °

FRGFRESTHBRREXZEHCNEE
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29.Financial risk management (Continued)

(d) Creditrisk

(e)

The Group’s credit risk arises mainly from its accounts
receivable.

The Group manages its credit risk associated with accounts
receivable through the application of credit approvals, credit
ratings and monitoring procedures.

Credit sales are only made to customers with appropriate
credit history or high credit standing while sales to new
customers or customers of low credit standing are usually
made on an advance payment or cash on delivery basis.

At as 31 December 2017, the total accounts receivable are
from 10 customers (2016 restated: 3 customers) only.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are
set out in Note 10 to the financial statements.

Fair value estimation

The Group’s investment properties and available-for-
sale financial asset are measured at fair value. The Group
classifies fair value measurements using a fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in
making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the
following levels:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1).

— Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (Level 2).

— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(Level 3).

See Note 6 and Note 9 for disclosures of the investment
properties and available-for-sale financial asset that are
measured at fair value respectively.

20. &R EpEE

B (%)

(d) FERE

(e)

AEBEZEERBRETZHREHEWFIR -

AEBZEBRAEEEYL EFEFERE
&F“ﬁ%am EEHEEYHRIBREZE
E,—L /\/\

AEBEAMABREFERELEARSE
EFRcEFPETRE  HRHMEPHIE
EFAREZER  BEERAELNKK
BERNRTAETRS

R-_E—+F+=-A= + EI BT & FE
WHRIEERETREF (ZE—RFLKE
P =ZH/EF) o
BRAEEFHE 2 EBKFIBZ ZERR
NEERANE—FPFE SR BERE
BEaE10 ©

YNSEEREE

AEBZREMERAIBEEZEREE
ARTFERE - AEBURRFERAZ

AR ZEZEM AT EAERESE
AT EHE AFEGEEHENS RN
I
MHREENBEZEBRMHRE CRE
AR (BAR) -
BREERBIRZ|REIN  EEXAE

ZE#& (BER) M (AREER
) IBRBARR (F24) -

— YHEREABENTSBBEETCEE
FBEZEAEN (AAAERE AR
18) (F£38) °

BREBRAFEAEZRENERAHRLE

ZEMEEZEEER B0 R2HM 6
NMHIFEQ ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

G 6 BB R I A

30.Subsidiaries and associate

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and the

30.M BRI K EE

NGl

RZB—tFE+-_A=+—B  xRFH

]

Group’s principal associate at 31 December 2017 are as FERBRARIRASENEEZH & QR
follows: FaNT
Subsidiaries NG|
Place of incorporation/
registration Nominal
and operations (Kind of value of issued/
legal entity) registered Proportion held
B/ &R E share capital Direct Indirect
Company SEME 27/ BEL= Nature of business
DEER CEEREER) AR AEE Hi BE EBME
Great Wall Pan Asia Asset Hong Kong Ordinary HK$25,560,000 = 100%  Asset management
Management Limited EE T8 25,560,000/87C services
RRTEEREARAA BEEERS
Great Wall Pan Asia Corporate Hong Kong Ordinary HK$5,000,000 = 100%  Corporate finance
Finance Limited &S EEA%5,000,0007 7T services
FERTHERRAR EEBERS
Great Wall Pan Asia Securities Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 = 100%  Securities services
RBREEHFARAA 0 L3#M%10,000,000/87T EH RS
Lyton Investment Limited The Commonwealth of Ordinary US$2 = 100%  Property holding
The Bahamas LRER2ET ESS)
ErRSAMNE
Macheer Properties Limited The British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 = 100%  Property holding
REARREE LRRIET ESS]
Nanchao Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$?2 100% - Dormant
BB ERR2BTT TELR
Nanchao Yau Tong Limited The British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary US$1 = 100%  Property holding
REARREE LRERIET LSS
Sunny Bright Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 = 100%  Property holding
MiEERARAR BA BRR2ET ESEY]
Sunny Success Development Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 = 100%  Property holding
HMAKERAR AR BA BER2ET ESE]
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30.Subsidiaries and associate (Continued) 0. el REkE AT (4])
Associate B )\ 7]
Percentage
of equity
Place of Nominal value attributable
incorporation of issued share to the Group Nature of
Company and operations capital REEEL  business
AE BB TR L I & it & ERTRARE BERAESLE HBEHE
Dymocks Franchise Systems Hong Kong Ordinary 45%  Bookshop operation
(China) Limited* 5 HK$7,700,000 LEEE
=Rk
7,700,000/ 7T
# The accounts of this company were not audited # ZARIZREVWIIERBEBESRMKERS

BM 25755 BT S H 2B S IGE & AT R TS AT
BB A RIEZ

by PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong or other
PricewaterhouseCoopers International member firms.

EERR ERFAIIZARRMBLRRR
$EIZH§ﬁ§’AT£$%l¢W¥%E§

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company and an
associate of the Group which, in the opinion of the Directors,

principally affected the results of the year or formed a ATE i1£$ﬁliﬁ;§§§ﬁttfﬁﬂ
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give ERE HIEMHEA 6%%"72
details of other subsidiaries and associate would, in the FHEREEERERD TLE
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

31.Related party transactions I1.BH AR5

As at the balance sheet date, the Directors regard Great Wall R&EHEH - £ E1HGreat Wall Pan Asia

Pan Asia (BVI) Holding Limited as the immediate holding
company of the Company and China Great Wall Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (“China Great Wall”) as the ultimate
holding company of the Company.

(BVI) Holding Limited B8 2 &l 2 B HE1EAR
/NG fﬁqﬂﬁbﬁﬁ%%fw&@ﬁﬁﬁﬂ
(THRBE&RW ) AARE 2 RELZER AR
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31.Related party transactions (Continued) . A XS (&)
The significant transactions with China Great Wall and RERERBERKEREMBATNAERZ
its group of subsidiaries during the year, and with Kerry ;?*/_\iéﬁiKerry Group Limited (A" A]
Group Limited, the then immediate holding company of the ERCEEERAR) REKE AR E
Company, and its subsidiaries and Hearst Communications Hearst Commumcanns In. (fHCIJ) (7
In. (“HCI”), the holding company of the then indirect AER s EEMNBAR ZERAR) #
subsidiaries of the Company in 2016 were as follows: TTZE?U&%ZZDT :

(a) Transactions with China Great Wall Group (a) EFERHBEB2ZRS
Significant transactions with China Great Wall and its group HARRBEAEMNBARIZERRX SN
of subsidiaries are as follow: o

2017 2016
—B—-tE —ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT E¥EF T

(Restated)
(ke E5)
Rendering of services AR
- Asset management service — BEEIER 35,888 16,810
— Consultancy service — BRI ARFS 1,000 500
(b) Transactions with Kerry Group (b) E2Kerry GroupZ X 5
Significant transactions with Kerry Group Limited, the then M =T —NF&Kerry Group Limited (&
ultimate holding company and its group of subsidiaries B2 SRR R)) REKMTE AR ([Kerry
(“Kerry Group”) and associated companies in 2016 were as Groupl) MBtE ARIETZEAR S A
follows: N
2016
ZE—RF
HK$000
BT
Rendering of services AR
- Advertising revenue — BEkE 400
- Newspaper subscription — 5 BImE 408
Agency fee expenses REERX 507
Consultancy fee expenses ERE{a 223
Logistics distribution expenses MBI 2 7
Sales proceeds from disposal of HEMMEEEr SREEMSHIE
available-for-sale financial assets 1,345
2,890
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M B R I ()

31.Related party transactions (Continued)

(c) Investment in guaranteed notes issued by a the
then related party

In June 2009, the Group acquired guaranteed notes of
US$3,000,000 in the secondary market at a consideration of
US$3,057,000 (equivalent to HK$23,719,000). The notes were
issued by Gain Silver Finance Limited, an indirect subsidiary
of Kerry Group Limited, the then ultimate holding company,
on 25 August 2006. They bear a coupon interest of 6.375%
and will mature in 2017. The notes were all disposed in 2016.

(d) Transactions with HCI Group

HCI, a company formed under the laws of the State of
Delaware in the United States of America exercises, through
its subsidiaries, significant influence over SCMP Hearst
Publications Limited and SCMP Hearst Hong Kong Limited,
both the then indirect subsidiaries of the Company. During
the year ended 2016, the Group had the following significant

(c) REREBZEABAI BT ZERE
B

AZEZNFARA  AEERZHKZMIHIN
1& {3,057,000€ 7T (8 % #°23,719,000
A 7T) B8 A3,000,000F T2 FEREE © 3%
L= HKerry Group Limited (B 2 &
BER AT 2 EEH B2 AGain Silver
Finance LimitedR —ZEZENA = ‘f’ﬂ

BT REAMER6.376% @ R _-F
TFEH - ERPER T RFLE -

(d) BEHCIKE 2R 5

HCIE—RIBEBEERBFRN ENEAEZKT 2
NE HBEWNB AR B HSCMP Hearst
Publications Limited 2SCMP Hearst

Hong Kong Limited (A& AR R & K
ZEEMNBAR) MINEATE - REE

“E-RFILFE  AEBEEHCIREWEB

transactions with HCI and its group of subsidiaries: RAANTEERS !
2016
—FNF
HK$000
BT T
Rendering of services RHLARTS

— Royalty expenses — BHIFX 2,628
- Payment in respect of advertising sales/agency agreements — RMEEHE RERZZAR 1,326
3,854

(e) Key management personnel compensation (e) EEEEBAEZHME
2017 2016
—®-tE T AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEF T BT T
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits ¥4 & H 155 HiE S & A 1,290 7,286
Post-employment benefits RINE RN 16 164
Employee share-based compensation benefits ~ MARAES (2 18 BTN & &7 - 2,812
1,306 10,262

RBERTERERAR —T—tFF®H | 191



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

32.Discontinued operations

Subsequent to the disposal of media business on 5 April
2016, the results of the disposed entities including SCMP
Newspapers Limited, SCMP Publications Limited, SCMP.
com Limited, SCMP Retailing Limited, SCMP.com Holdings
Limited and their subsidiaries (the “Disposed Companies”)
together with the related gain on disposal have been
presented as discontinued operations in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2016.

The result of discontinued operations together with the
related gain on disposal dealt with in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016
were summarized as follows:

(i) Analysis of the results of the discontinued operations

N.BRIEEEK
R-E—AENATALEHBEER

%+ & &8 (B ESCMP Newspapers
Limited * SCMP Publications Limited »
SCMP.com Limited * SCMP Retailing
Limited ~ SCMP.com Holdings Limited }z
HEMBAR) (EHERRF]]) 2 XEE
AHE 2 HERGEEREE_ST—RF+
—A=t+—BLEFEZGETEKGEERT
2INRELIEREERT -

REBE_Z-—R"F+T_A=+—HILFE

REMBHRERAREZERIEREEK L
XEERLEZ AR ESARNT

(i) HERIEEXBFEINUT -

is as follows:
2016
—ERF
Notes HK$'000
[z ST IT
Revenue & 4 210,611
Other income HAaA 3563
Staff costs BIRA 17 (137731)
Cost of production materials BRI (35,148)
Rental and utilities HE KR (6,405)
Depreciation and amortisation e R -
Advertising and promotion BEREE (8,028)
Other operating expenses HAag &Mz (34,884)
Operating loss of discontinued operations ERLREXEB 2 KEHE (11,232)
Net finance income WIEWAF R 507
Share of losses of associates i /NS ) = (1)
Loss before income tax from DRI REER RIS HAIESE
discontinued operations (10,726)
Income tax expense FriSTim X (2,273)
(12,999)
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 2 &7 32(ii) 1,421,731
Profit for the year from discontinued operations CRIEREER 22 FRF 1,408,732
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M B R I ()

32.Discontinued operations (Continued)

(i) Analysis of the results of the discontinued operations

is as follows: (Continued)

Operating profit of discontinued operations is stated after

charging or crediting:

(&)

N.CRIEEEER (&)
(i) HERIBELEBZEEATUT -

BERIEE **%f%zi‘“ B8 MEME REA

TIIBIRES R

2016
—ERF
HK$'000
BT T
Charging B
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - MRRFER
equipment and intangible assets BmIVEE TS 2
Crediting *“_‘*‘I')K
Interest income on bank deposits TR FBHA 507
(i) Analysis of the cash flows of discontinued operations: (ii) S I AR L X FBEIE S HETH -
2016
ZE—RF
HK$'000
BT T
Operating activities K EED (8152)
Investing activities S B RE) (8,368)
Financing activities BEEE (459,367)
Net cash outflow attributable to discontinued operations = 4% |FAR & 2 FEFE(IFIR &R H (475,887)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e M B R I ()

32.Discontinued operations (Continued)

(iii) Disposal of subsidiaries

2.BRUEREXK (&)

(iii) i & BT/ 2 &

Note HK$’000
Bt BT T

Net assets disposed of as at 5 April 2016:

R-EBE—RENAHEAZ

SHEFEE !

Intangible assets B EE 176,630
Property, plant and equipment M - s RRiE 406,024
Defined benefit plan’s assets AENmETEICEE 56,328
Interests in associates 3?%”&72%?’1 319
Available for sale financial assets AHEECeREE 1
Deposit paid for property, plant and equipment Y% - R REE 2 ENRE 1,077
Inventories FE 14,849
Accounts receivable FEWSRIE 229,574
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BRNER - Re REMBKIE 24,349
Taxation recoverable AT EI IR 1,800
Cash and bank balances e MIBIT4 92,252
Trade payables and accrued liabilities Z P ENS IE&FEu+ﬁ1 (157,447)
Amount due to an associate FERT—KEE & A RIFRIE (955)
Subscription in advance TEURET B & (30,780)
Loan from a non-controlling shareholder FEFE IR R 2 B K (2,240)
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFTISIAE (63,266)
Non-controlling interests FEPEHIE M (35,705)

712,820
Translation reserve b 3 (4,341)
Investment revaluation reserve RE S 4

708,483
Expenses incurred on disposal HEEEFX 3,094

711,577
Cash consideration HERE 2,133,308
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries HEKB ARz &R 32(i) 1,421,731

An analysis of net cash inflow in respect of the disposal of

EELENBEARAR 2 FEERADITA

the subsidiaries is as follows: ™
HK$°000
BET T
Cash consideration B RE 2,133,308
Cash and bank balances disposed of HER S KIRITHER (92,252)
Expenses incurred on disposal during the current period IEHHEEL 2 Fx (3,094)
Net cash inflow in respect of disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZFRERA 2,037,962
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M B R I ()

33.Subsequent events B.EHEHESHE
Please refer to Note 11 for details of the subsequent material FHFAEBREREE IS B2HW
event. 110

34.Approval of the financial statements 4. B HMT 2K
The financial statements were approved by the Board of AMBEHRERER_TE—N\F=ZA=+/"H
Directors on 26 March 2018. BE=gfE -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

TS W 4 2
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA BPREMBEE
Year ended 31 December
BZt-B=1-BLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
(in HKS millions, unless otherwise stated) (BEAL BAEHEN) ZE-tf “E-5F —E5-1%F —F-MF -—E-=F
(Restated)
(&=3))
OPERATING RESULTS HERE
Revenue o) 123 2 53 4 1,147
Adjusted operating profitt ERREERA bh 32 35 31 161
Fair value gain on investment properties REN=ATEYE y7x 118 191 1 87
Operating profit 2R 268 150 228 b4 260
Share of (losses)/profits of associates EBEDRR (58)/ B (0) (1) () ) 8
Income tax expense FiEHiRx (12) 4 (5) (9) (27)
Net profit attributable to shareholders from continuing operations R R B HEGL L2 BRA 25 308 285 3 NATER
Net profitattributable to shareholders from discontinued operations  REE(E R AR HEL L% 2 3R7 - 1,408 31 106 NATER
Net profit attributable to shareholders REREFRA 252 1,716 316 137 24
PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK EERSR
Adjusted operating profit per share (in HK cents) BRIEABEERT (A1) 283 201 222 1.99 1034
Basic earnings per share (in HK cents) SREREH (1) 15.89 100.49 18.26 203 1433
Diluted adjusted operating profit per share (in HK cents) SR AREeRH (F1) 283 201 222 1.99 1033
Diluted earnings per share (in HK cents) BRERRN (B1) 15.89 100.49 18.25 203 1432
Dividend per share (in HK cents) BREKS (L) - - 280 6.00 6.20
Net asset value per share (in HKS) BRFEE (B 121 107 216 203 202
FINANCIAL POSITION BB
Property, plant and equipment nE - BEREE 5 2 97 531 566
Total assets BERE 3,363 1,715 3732 3533 3533
Loan from a non-controlling shareholder RE—BHEHMRR 2 E5 - - 2 l -
Total liabilities BT (1471) (36) (38) (363) (378)
Net assets attributable to shareholders Hx%? EHEE 1,892 1679 3318 3116 3,104
Number of shares in issue REAE 1,567745,596 1567,746596 1,561,057,596 1,561,057,59 1,561,067,596
KEY RATIOS EER%
Adjusted operating profit to revenue BRBLE RN 36% 34% 66% 66% 14%
Return on average equity TRADHE 1609%  1232% 9% 1% %
Return on average total assets TIEERERRE 991%  1130% 8% 1% %
Gearing AEARLE 411% - - - -
Current assets to current iabilties RYEEHLRDAL 52.93% 4.35% 4.69% 2.89% 261%
The financial results for media business for the years ended BZE_ZT—+HFRk_ZE—-—XF+HA=+—H
31 December 2017 and 2016 were presented as discontinued IEFEHEBERZ MBHEEZIRERILKE
operations. The figures for the years ended 31 December % -BE_ZT—=F  _T-NFR_T—

2013, 2014 and 2015 have not been restated as they were not HAFT_A=+—BHILFEZHFTREET
prepared using the principles of merger accounting and it would ~ JYHREWIFREH S RAGRA LR GE
involve delay and expenses out of proportion to the benefit to  BXIER K 5 Bt E A B AR R Fl 5 TAEHE o
shareholders.

*  Adjusted operating profit is defined as operating profit before other ~ * AFABLLERFAE AR HMBARKZEY
income and fair value gain on investment properties. FENFTEWZZEERF -
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